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CHRONICLE OF EVENTS
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In line with major national strategies such as the “Belt and Road Initiative” and the development of

the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area”, the Bank has set up a branch in Shenzhen to
provide local customers with professional and high-quality banking services.

ATER [HEHF—BEMEIRERE [-F—

e ) Bl (%) SBRE  HFERPEES S

~ o EERMBRRE TR - BRI o

‘ E The Bank sponsored the “China’s new round of
opening up and the joint construction of the ‘Belt

and Road’ Summit”. Officials of state ministries,
scholars, experts and leaders of the national overseas
Chinese community were invited to have an extensive
discussion on the implementation of the new round
of opening up.
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The Bank’s subsidiaries, Chiyu International
Capital Limited and Chiyu Asset Management
Limited were officially opened on 17 August,
marking the opening of our investment
banking and asset management business.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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To carry forward the belief of Mr. Tan Kah Kee in education development and to celebrate the Centenary of Jimei
University, the Bank joined hands with Mindu Bank Education Fund in a donation of 10 million RMB to Jimei University.
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The Bank participated in “The Community Chest Walk for

Millions” to support the fund-raising campaign for the
family and child welfare services.
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Volunteer team participated in the “Southern
District Health Day” to help over 300 seniors in
body check.
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Volunteer team and their family members
joined the event of “Respecting and Caring for
the Elderly in Southern District, Hong Kong”.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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The Bank continuously dispatched a team
to join the “Oxfam Trailwalker” fund-
raising event.
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The Bank enthusiastically encourages the staff to
participate in a wide range of sport competitions
organised by the XIB Group and other organisations
such as the “Sport Day of The Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association”, “Basketball Competition

of XIB Group” and “Interbank 7-person soccer
competition” by Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong.

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
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The Bank was continually awarded with the :
“Caring Company Scheme” certificate and logo C )
by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service. are
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The Bank organised a variety of recreational
activities such as hiking activities, Bowling
Day and Fund Day at Theme Park for the staff
and their families.
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The Bank has been widely recognised
for its efforts in employee care.
During the year, we were granted the
“Employer of Choice Award 2018”
from JobMarket.
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The Bank kept joining the “Charter on External
Lighting” organised by The Environment Bureau
in order to protect the environment.
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FINANCIAL CHARTS
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I TE Financial Highlights

1L
2018 2017 Change
AT IT AT 0

SE For the year HK$000 HK$000 +- %
FEHUREAEF T 381t A Net operating income before impairment

allowances 2,019,739 1,426,080 +41.63

Bit=pravil] Operating profit 1,210,250 886,890 +36.46

R INl Profit before taxation 1,204,742 898,642 +34.06

TEREF] Profit for the year 1,002,447 751,832 +33.33

— T ——

MEgE y BT BT o
RELER At year-end HK$°000 HK$'000 +- %
REAFOfE Capital and reserves 11,603,196 9,563,497 +21.33
CRTTREUERA Issued and fully paid up share capital 1,772,988 300,000 +491.00
BELEH Total assets 102,872,627 84,088,931 +22.34
MSEER Financial ratios % % +- %
gL A R Return on average total assets ' 1.12 1.18 -0.06
RS iEEsE Return on average shareholders’ equity 10.40 10.40 -
AU ALER Cost to income ratio 33.23 33.44 -0.21
e Loan to deposit ratio ® 61.89 66.82 -4.93
FENME SR E ¢ Average value of liquidity coverage ratio *

B First quarter 152.06 181.56 -29.50
B Second quarter 186.29 177.51 +8.78
EEFE Third quarter 250.75 156.97 +93.78
E Uity Fourth quarter 244.69 143.03 +101.66
18 EE S PRI E4L4E Quarter-end value of net stable funding
@°e ratio °®
Easlicy First quarter N A
121.23 Not applicable Not applicable
AR Second quarter A A
124.96 Not applicable Not applicable
B=FE Third quarter i BN
134.05 Not applicable Not applicable
F eSS Fourth quarter A A
140.22 Not applicable Not applicable
GBI Total capital ratio ® 20.99 19.78 +1.21
ERERH

1. AR
Return on average total assets

2. ARSI

Return on average shareholders’ equity

Profit for the year

H B EGEH9E

Daily average balance of total assets

FERERF

Profit for the year

H SR A A I (8 -2 -1 B AR BRERA Y P9 (B

Average of the beginning and ending balance of total equity holders
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Financial Highlights (continued)

3. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross advances

to customers.

. The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated

basis which comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches in 2017
and from January to September 2018 of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries
from October to December 2018 of the Bank specified by the HKMA for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules. Hence,
the comparative information is not directly comparable.

. The net stable funding ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which

comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches in the first half of
2018 and consolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices,
overseas branches and subsidiaries in the second half of 2018 of the Bank specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules. Hence, the comparative information is not directly comparable.

. Total capital ratio is computed on the combined basis which comprises the positions

of local offices and overseas branches in 2017 and consolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and designated
subsidiaries in 2018 of the Bank specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes
and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. Hence, the comparative
information is not directly comparable.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2018, the major economies in the world experienced a slowdown in
economic growth. The Sino-US trade conflict and the Brexit arrangement
caused increasing instability to the global economies. Although the external
economic environment was complicated and volatile, the Hong Kong economy
sustained steady growth throughout the year.

In view of opportunities and challenges in the operating environment, the
Group aims to pursue sustainable business growth. The Group took various
measures such as structural optimisation to encourage quality of growth and
efficiency, these efforts have enabled the Group to tackle the challenges and
also seize the market opportunities.

In 2018, the Group's businesses maintained a promising development and
achieved remarkable operating results. During the vyear, the Group
successfully obtained approval from the Securities and Futures Commission
and obtained the Type 6 business and Type 9 business license through the
Bank's subsidiaries, Chiyu International Capital Limited and Chiyu Asset
Management Limited. Moreover, the opening of the Shenzhen branch was
approved by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
(CBIRC). In addition, the Group increased its ordinary share capital amounting
to HK$2,945,980,000 by new shares issuance and the instalments for
subscription of new shares were received on 31 December, 2018 and 29
January, 2019, from which the Group has effectively obtained capital resources
to support future development.

With branches in Hong Kong, together with 3 branches and 2 sub-branches in
Fujian and Shenzhen in the Mainland China, the Group remains committed to
enhancing facilities of our branches in order to improve our corporate image as
well as to provide better services to our customers. This is also to represent
our ongoing pursuit of sincere, flexible, customized and professional
cross-border banking and financial services for our customers.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Financial Review

For the year 2018, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$1,002,447,000, increased by 33.33% from last year. This was mainly due to
increase in net interest income. The return on average shareholders’ equity and
the return on average total assets were 10.40% and 1.12% respectively.

Net interest income for the year was HK$1,558,430,000, increased by 63.96%.
It was mainly due to increase in average interest bearing assets by 43.1%, with
net interest margin increased by 24 basis points to 1.79% compared with 2017.
Net fee and commission income dropped by 17.78% to HK$370,819,000.
Operating expenses increased by 40.72% to HK$671,060,000, while the cost to
income ratio decreased by 0.21 percentage point to 33.23%.

In 2018, net charge of loan impairment allowances was HK$138,429,000,
increased by HK$76,129,000 as compared with last year. The classified or
impaired loan ratio also increased by 0.06 percentage points to 0.53%
compared with the end of 2017.

As of 31 December 2018, the total consolidated assets of the group increased
by 22.34% to HK$102,872,627,000 compared with the end of 2017. Advances
to customers increased by 14.65% to HK$48,478,368,000. Customer deposits
also increased by 23.78% to HK$78,329,515,000.

Prospect

Looking forward to 2019, the United State’s Federal Reserve’s interest rate hike
is slowing down, the global economic outlook remains volatile. Although Hong
Kong’'s economy is expected to grow at a steady rate, the potential impact on
financial markets from the trade war should not be ignored. The Group will
pursue a more proactive development strategy, and seize new opportunities,
such as the developing framework of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area and the Mutual Market Access policy. The Group will remain
focus and strive to achieve a steady and rapid business development through
innovation. The Group will continue to fulfil its commitment to corporate social
responsibilities and a dedicated customer service.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Risk Management

Overview

The Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business
development. The Group’s risk management objective is to maintain risk
exposures within acceptable level amid the Group’s efforts made to enhance
shareholders’ wealth. The Group has a defined risk appetite statement
approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that
the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management
governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the
trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses. For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management,
please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of
foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the
Group due to the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate,
interest rate, equity price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate
market risk appetite to achieve a balance between risk and return. For details of
the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial
Statements.

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the
Risk Management Committee (“RC”) and senior management on a periodic
basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical
simulation approach and two years of historical market data, to calculate the
VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level,
and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results.
The back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of
each business day with the actual and hypothetical revenues arising from those
positions on the next business day. Generally speaking, the number of
back-testing exceptions in a rolling 12-month period will not exceed four times,
given a 99% confidence level. The graph below shows the back-testing result of
the VAR against actual revenues of the Group.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)
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There was 1 actual loss exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2018 as shown in the
back-testing results.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising
from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and
liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural.
The major types of interest rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk,
basis risk, yield curve risk and option risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate
Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or
pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains
sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of
cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios without
requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last resort. For details of the Group’s
Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to
-day operational activities.

The Group has put in place effective internal control processes and has
formulated relevant policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
The Group adheres to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of
duties and authorisation. The Group adopts various operational risk
management tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable
operational risks. Business continuity plans are established to substantiate
business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate
backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business
practices, whether genuine or not, causes a potential decline in the customer
base, or lead to costly litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is
inherent in other types of risk and every aspect of business operation and
covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to
continuously monitor reputation risk incidents in the financial industry, so as to
effectively manage and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an incident.
The Group also adopts robust disclosure mechanism to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps to build confidence in the Group and to
establish a strong public image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or
financial conditions of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or
regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in reputation the Group may
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations. The Group has put in place relevant rules and procedures for legal
and compliance risk management.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future
negative impacts on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of
the Group because of poor strategic decision-making, improper
implementation of strategies and inadequacies in response to the changing
market conditions. The Board reviews and approves the strategic risk
management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and
properly endorsed by the senior management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Capital management

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO”) periodically reviews the Bank’s capital structure and adjusts the
capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk,
return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA's requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy
Manual “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank adopts the internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on
the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra
capital needed to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately
captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios
have also been established which enable the flexibility for future business
growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units in accordance with the principles
stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by
the RC. The RMD reports the combined stress test results of the Group to the
Board and RC regularly.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Enhancing customer experience

The bank was approved to set up a branch in Shenzhen by the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and Hong Kong Monetary Authority
during the year, to provide local customers with professional and high-quality
banking services and contribute to the economic reform and opening. The
Bank also sponsored “China's new round of opening up and the joint
construction of the ‘Belt and Road’ Summit”, The summit had an extensive
discussion on the implement of the new round of opening up.

To keep enhancing customer experience, the Bank set up a direct sales team
during the year, conducting district visits directly to promote deposit, loans and
other banking services to customers in the community. To further deepen the
relationship with customers, the Bank also organised a series of funds and
investment talks in various branches, in which financial experts were invited to
share with customers their opinions on market trends and their tactical
strategies in investment.

The Bank strived to develop its mobile banking services by launching an array
of investment trading functions which assisted customers to trade with ease.
The Bank continuously optimised the electronic channels like “Chiyu Wechat
official account”, “Chiyu Mobile Banking App” and “CYB Mortgage App”. These
electronic services not only delivered the Bank’s latest business information
and promotional offers to the customers, but also enhanced their experience in
services.

Advocating environmental awareness

To promote environmental awareness and reduce paper consumption, the
Bank continuously promoted the e-cheque services to personal and corporate
customers as well as various associations and organisations. Through the
e-cheque platform, customers can enjoy secured, convenient and
environmental friendly payment services to manage their finances.

To protect the earth, the Bank kept joining the “Charter on External Lighting”
organised by The Environment Bureau and promised to switch off lighting
installations in the night to minimise light nuisance and energy wastage.

Benefiting Education

The Bank had set up the Chiyu Tan Kah Kee Education Foundation during the
year, this demonstrated our social responsibility, for supporting education and
striving to make contribution to the development and enhancement of the
society. Moreover, the Bank coordinated the donation of RMB10,000,000 to the
Jimei University with the Mindu Bank Educational Fund. The fund will be used
to provide strong support to the charity programmes, such as scholarship,
experiencing learning project, scientific research activity and school
infrastructure.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Contributing to society

In 2018, we participated in The Community Chest Walk for Millions to support
the fund-raising campaign for the Family and Child Welfare Services. To show
the care to the society, the Bank’s volunteer team actively involved in various
volunteer activities such as the “ATM Education Talks for Elderly” organised by
The Hong Kong Association of Banks. The elderly were taught and motivated
to use the ATM and other digital banking services. In 2018, the Bank again
dispatched a team to participate in the "Oxfam Trailwalker" fund-raising event.
Moreover, the volunteer team and their family members joined the event of
“Respecting and Caring for the Elderly in Southern District, Hong Kong”
organised by Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association. Volunteers also joined
the “Southern District Health Day” 2018 organised by The Association of
Industries and Commerce of Hong Kong Southern District Limited, offering free
body check with over 300 elderly people.

Caring for employees

Organised recreational activities to improve employee’s centripetal force
and sense of belonging to the Bank

The Bank is people-oriented. We are committed to providing a harmonious and
friendly working environment for our employees. During the year, tea gathering
was held every week to express our sincere gratitude to employees for their
hard work, and to provide them with a platform for more exchanges.

In order to encourage employees to strike a balance between their career
development and personal life, and to strengthen the bonding among all levels
of staff, the Bank organised a variety of recreational activities during the year,
such as Hiking activities, Bowling Day and Fund Day at Theme Park for the
staff and their families. These activities not only enriched our staff’s life after
work, but also reflected the corporate culture of the Bank-being
people-oriented and caring for the employees.

The Bank has formed different sports teams and enthusiastically encourages
the staff to participate in a wide range of sport competitions organised by the
Group, banking industry and Chinese enterprises. In 2018, our team
participated in the “Basketball Competition of XIB Group” and won the 1st
runner-up in the “Interbank 7-person soccer Competition” organised by the
Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong. These events help motivating the staff to
showcase their team spirit and strive for excellence.

Enhanced the team by broadening their vision

In order to advocate personal growth and compliance culture, the Bank
organised a variety of training programmes, such as compliance and AML
courses, and a series of seminars on property mortgage loans, our staff
improved their knowledge on related regulatory and legal requirements. The
Bank continuously strengthened the human resource management by offering
personalised training programmes to staff such as the Elite Training for MT
Programme participants. The “Management Training Programme” organised
by parent bank offered our staff a chance to go to Xiamen and communicate
with the mainland staff. Also, “Outstanding Performance Award Presentation”
is held every year to boost staff morale and improve sense of coherence.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (continued)

Caring for employees (continued)

Advocating Corporate Culture, Promoting Core Values

In order to reshape the key elements of our corporate culture and formulate a
corporate culture outline, the Bank set up a Corporate Culture Development
Task Force in early 2018, promoting our core values of “Integrity,
People-oriented, Innovative Development and Caring for the Society” and
creating a competitive atmosphere with various measures. We also published
a new staff magazine “Striving for Success”, aimed at promoting the innovative
development of the bank, praising the can-do spirit of our staff and sharing role
models and cases. In the meantime, we demonstrated our positive corporate
image to the public by introducing our corporate culture via electronic channels
like WeChat.

Awards and recognition

In 2018, the Bank was continually awarded with the “Caring Company
Scheme” certificate and logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in
recognition of our support to social care and commitment to employees in the
past year. Besides, the Bank was also recognised for its efforts in employee
care. During the year, we were granted the “Employer of Choice Award 2018”
from JobMarket, commending the excellent performance in human resources
management of the Bank.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are pleased
to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in Note 38 to
the Financial Statements.

Business Review

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to the
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
The above section forms part of this report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 40.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend (the “2018 Final
Dividend”) of HK$80 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Bank at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2018 AGM”), the
2018 Final Dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Bank as at the close of
business at the date of 2018 AGM.

Shares Issued

In order to further enhance the capital strength for future development,
the Bank issued 368,247 and 368,248 ordinary shares on 31
December 2018 and 29 January 2019 respectively at HK$4,000 each
to shareholders of the Bank. Details of the share capital of the Bank
are set out in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$2,269,000 (2017:HK$2,082,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Directors”)
during the year and up to date of this report are:
Chairman Lyu Yaoming (redesignated as Executive
Director on 31 December 2018)
Vice Chairman Zheng Wei
Yu Kwok Chun * (appointed as Vice Chairman
on 31 December 2018)
Tsoi Lai Ha #
Chen Cheng #
Tan Wan Chye #
Woo Chia Wei *
Cheung Wai Hing *
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen *
Chiu Ming Wah* (appointed on 19 February 2019)
Chan Yiu Fai
Fu Kim (resigned on 24 December 2018)
Zhang Canmin # (resigned on 28 December
2018)

Directors

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Bank, the
appointment of directors will be approved by ordinary resolution or by
the decision of the Board of Directors. Approval from the HKMA will
also be obtained in accordance with the Banking Ordinance.

All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Bank, and the re-election of retiring directors should be subject to the
recommendation and review from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board before approval is sought from shareholders
at the AGM.

In accordance with Articles 24(2) and 25 of the Bank’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being must retire
from office at the annual general meeting held each year, but shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Yu Kwok Chun, Mr. Lee Hoi Yin,
Stephen, Mr. Chen Cheng and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Save for Mr Fu Kim (resigned on 24 December 2018) and Mr Chan Yiu
Fai being also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Bank, other
directors of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to date
of this report are:

Fung Chi Lap

Wong Siu Man

Tang Chu, Leonard

Kwong Kei Man

Chan Chun Him

Fan Wing Yu, Winnie (resigned on 1 March 2018)
Yip Man Kai (resigned on 25 June 2018)




4 A 2K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

EEgHS (80
BENRS - ZHREGZ R

AR R B FEAE TR - R RAT S AT T2
ONE) ~ AN ] S E] AR A SR LA SR SR AT
ILAEMEA ~ MHERESE AR RS E R
HEREEILS) - ZHFEEY -

EHAY
AAEIER » ASSRAT G Ak 2 S 1 S (o E A 5 3
B SRR TR AF B T AR &4 -

EEBR SRS Z R

AL IRREIP » A TOCEAE TR AT - @
2SI Z B S ARSI AE T 22 - (RSN
NASRATERAE (AT EC A TR ey s st » T
Fil35 -

R ARTFHIRE RO

IREASRI TSR > R g R TS |
AR T E S TR - ARTER
o] EAI RV EE R E LR -

& GRITS (38 D
AIERFEEE GRITHEGG) T (T (5%
R ZARAZER -

R

2018 4R 2 sl )y R B G pelsat > R BTk 2018
FEFEEREAE EER R RHEENZE -

RE RGO

=R
HER
Fi > 2019F3 H21 H

Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other
body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall
be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liability incurred by
him/her as Director. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit
of Directors against liability which may lawfully be incurred by the
Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This annual report complies with the applicable requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2018 have been audited by
KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Lyu Yaoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 March 2019
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Biographical Details of Directors

Board of Directors

Mr. LYU Yaoming
Chairman and Executive Director

PhD in Economics, Senior Economist, was appointed as the Chairman and is a
member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Bank.
Currently, Mr. Lyu serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of Luso International Banking Limited,
Director of Xiamen International Investment Limited, Deputy Director of Institute
of Finance, Xiamen University. Mr. Lyu had successively served as Branch
Manager of Fuzhou Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Deputy Branch Head of Fujian Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. Since December 1997, Mr. Lyu had successively held the posts of
Executive Director, Vice Executive President and President of Xiamen
International Bank. Mr. Lyu serves as the Vice Chairman and President of
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. since December 2012, and resigned from
the post of President in May 2018.

Mr. ZHENG Wei
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the Xiamen University and is a
senior economist, was appointed the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Bank in March 2017 and was appointed the Chief Executive of the Bank in
June 2017 and is a member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Zheng is an Executive
Director and Vice President of Xiamen International Bank. Mr. Zheng was the
Deputy General Manager of Xiamen International Bank and the General
Manager of the Shanghai Branch of Xiamen International Bank from July 2007
to February 2017. Mr. Zheng had also previously served Xiamen International
Bank as the Deputy Manager of the Credit Department, the Deputy Manager
and Manager of the Credit Management Department, the General Manager of
the Zhuhai Branch and the Assistant General Manager of Xiamen International
Bank.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. YU Kwok Chun
Vice Chairman and Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the MacQuarie University,
Honorary University Fellow of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
of the City University of Hong Kong, he was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director of the Bank in April 2002 and appointed as Vice
Chairman in December 2018. He is also the Chairman of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Bank. Mr. Yu is Chairman of the Yue Hwa Group and Chairman of Yue
Hwa Chinese Products Emporium Limited. Mr. Yu is active in various social
services in Hong Kong as well as in the PRC. Mr. Yu is Executive Member of
the National Committee of The 13th Chinese National People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He is Member of the Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Founding Chairman and First President of
the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited,
Permanent Honorary Chairman and Vice Chairman of Friends of Hong Kong
Association Limited, Chairman of The Hong Kong Federation of Overseas
Chinese Associations, Committee Member of The Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, Permanent Honorary Advisor of the Hong Kong Meizhou
Federation, Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Overseas Chinese General
Association, Permanent Honorary President of Ka Ying Chow Commercial
Association Limited, Permanent Honorary President and Founding Chairman of
the Unified Association of Kowloon West Limited, and Honorary President of the
Hong Kong and Kowloon General Merchandise Merchants’ Association Limited.
Mr. Yu is the Vice President of Overseas Exchange Association of Guangdong
Province, Vice Honorary President of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau
Cooperation Promotion Association of Guangdong Province, Director and Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Jinan University, Guangzhou, Vice President of the
Jinan University Education and Foundation Fund Limited, Guangzhou, Honorary
President of the Board of Directors of Jiaying University, Meizhou, Guangdong
Province, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Beijing Chinese Language
and Culture College, and Director of the First Board of Advisory Directors of Sun
Yat Sen University, Guangzhou. Mr. Yu was awarded the honour of Justice of
the Peace, Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region successively in 1998, 1999 and
2006.

Ms. TSOI Lai Ha
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant and
Certified Financial Planner, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Bank in March 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tsoi is the Chief Financial
Officer of Xiamen International Bank. From June 1995 to May 2013, Ms. Tsoi
served Xiamen International Bank as Group Financial Controller. Prior to joining
Xiamen International Bank, she was Manager at the Financial Planning
Department of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Deputy Manager of the Accounting
Department of Asian Oceanic Group and Group Financial Controller of Mbf Asia
Capital Corporation Holding Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHEN Cheng
Non-executive Director

Graduated from the Hunan Changsha Third Artillery Academy majoring in
Communications and has completed a degree in Economics and Management
at the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China,
he was appointed a Non-executive Director of the Bank in May 2017. Mr. Chen
is the Vice Director of the Committee of Jimei Schools and has been the Curator
of Tan Kah Kee Museum since October 2008. He was an Officer at the Nanjing
Military Region from 1982 to 1989. Mr. Chen was the Head of the Fourth Office
of the Xiamen Municipal Government from February 1989 to September 1996.
Since September 1996, Mr. Chen had been the Vice Principal of the Economy
Department of the Xiamen Chamber of Commerce, until November 2005.

Mr. TAN Wan Chye
Non-executive Director

Holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree from Manchester College of Science
and Technology, University of Manchester, England and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Industrial Administration, he was appointed a Non-executive Director
of the Bank in June 1982. He is also a member of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee and the Audit Committee of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the
largest individual shareholder of the Bank and is the son of Mr. Tan Kong Piat,
the former Chairman of the Bank. Mr. Tan is the Chairman of Tan Kong Piat (Pte)
Ltd, which is a holding company, Tan Kong Piat & Co Pte Ltd, which is an
investment trading company, Asia Industrial Development (Pte) Ltd and Asia
Property Development (Pte) Ltd, which are both property development
companies. He had previously served as a Director of the following companies
importing Chinese canned food and herb, Chung Nam Company (Pte) Ltd, Bin
Hong Co Pte Ltd, Tiong Wan Pte Ltd and Nam Leong Co Sdn Bhd. He took part
in the design & construction of Central Power Stations in England and
Singapore. He is a Chartered Engineer, a Member of the Institute of Mechanical
Engineers, England, and a Member of Institute of Engineers, Singapore. Mr. Tan
is active in the charitable activities in Singapore. He is a board member of
Buddhist Lodge Education Foundation, a board member of Mee Toh School, a
Trustee of Kwan Im Thong Hood Cho Temple and Mee Toh Foundation, they
distribute donations that amount to millions of Singaporean Dollars to schools,
hospitals and charitable organisations.

Prof. WOO Chia-Wei
Independent Non-executive Director

Holds a Master’s Degree and a PhD in Physics from Washington University in
St. Louis in the United States, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Bank in April 2002. He is also a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank. Prof. Woo is also the Senior Advisor to
Shui On Holdings Limited and the President Emeritus of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, an Independent Non-executive Director
of each of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and First Shanghai Investments
Limited. Prof. Woo was previously the President, Provost, Department Head,
and a Professor of several prominent universities in the United States of
America. Prof. Woo was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of
Hong Kong, the Commander of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire
by the United Kingdom, as well as Chevalier de la Legion d’Honneur by the
President of France.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Hing
Independent Non-executive Director

LLB (Hon.), HKU, he was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Bank in November 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank.
Mr. Cheung is a senior partner of Woo Kwan Lee & Lo, Solicitors and the Head
of its Litigation Department. Mr. Cheung is currently the Chairman of Applied
Research Council of the Government of Hong Kong. He also serves as the
Honarary Legal Advisor of Po Leung Kuk, The Hong Kong Tuberculosis, Chest
and Heart Diseases Association and Wai Yin Association. Mr. Cheung is a
trustee of The D. H. Chen Foundation and was a trustee of the Association for
Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China Charitable Trust until the
winding up of its operation. Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
and qualified to practise in England and Wales, Australia (Victoria) and
Singapore. He is also a China-Appointed Attesting Officer and a Civil Celebrant
of Marriages of the Government of Hong Kong.

Mr. LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Accountancy from City of London
Polytechnic, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, and an associate member of The Institute of Internal Auditors, he was
appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank in November
2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Risk
Management Committee of the Bank. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management, at KPMG in London and Hong
Kong. He was an audit partner of KPMG Hong Kong before becoming the
Partner-in-Charge of the Risk & Compliance advisory practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, the PRC and the Asia Pacific region. He retired from
KPMG in 2011,and is currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong Limited. He is a Member of the Board
of the Hospital Authority of Hong Kong and an Independent Director of Prime
Property Fund Asia GP Pte Limited.

Mr. CHIU Ming Wah
Independent Non-executive Director

Awarded a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from Lincoln
University, U.S.A and was a Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) during 2000 to
2014. Mr. Chiu was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Bank in February 2019. He is also the Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee of the Bank. He is at present a Non-executive Director of Shanghai
Electric Hong Kong Co. Ltd. During 2001 to 2014, he was the Head of Audit
(General Manager) of Bank of China (HK) Limited as well as a Non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of Chiyu Bank. He was
member of the Shenyang Chinese National People’s Political Consultative
Conference during 2013 to 2017 and successively been a member of the
National People’s Congress Election Committee of Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAN Yiu Fai
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from
The Open University of Hong Kong, he was appointed an Executive Director of
the Bank in March 2003 and as the Deputy Chief Executive (formerly known as
Deputy General Manager) of the Bank in December 2002. Presently he is
mainly responsible for the business support and internal control functions of the
Bank. Between 1981 and 2001, Mr. Chan had served in the Hua Chiao
Commercial Bank in various positions as the Branch Manager, the Head of
Business Development Department, China Business Department, Strategic
Planning Department and Project Research Department. He was the Head of
the Mainland Branch Business Department of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited after the merger of BOCHK Group in October 2001.
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Bank has followed the guidelines as set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by The Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (hereinafter referred to as the “HKMA”). The Bank is committed to
maintaining the highest corporate governance standards and considers such
commitment essential in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and transparency.

Board of Directors (“Board”) and the Senior

Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term
strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business. It currently
comprises eleven Directors with a variety of different experience and
professionalism. Among them, three are Executive Directors, remaining eight
are Non-executive Directors. Of the eight Non-executive Directors, five are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to
provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board
meetings were held in the year with an average attendance rate of 92%. The
Board authorises the Senior Management to implement the strategies as
approved by the Board. The Senior Management is responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. Senior
Management implements important policies and develops strategies as
adopted by the Board. In order to focus on strategic and material issues that
have significant impact on the Group’s operation, financial performance, risk
management and long-term development, four committees have been
established under the Board to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details
of the committees are given below:
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
(“SC”)

The SC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
strategy management and corporate governance of the Group:

+ study and formulate the Group's development strategy, business objectives,
risk management strategy, capital management strategy, human resource
management strategy, technology development strategy, organisation and
new business development strategy and medium and long-term
development plan;

+ review and evaluate the implementation process of strategies; make
proposal on strategic adjustments in accordance with the changes in the
business environment;

- exercise decision making and monitoring power on behalf of the Board
during the period between the Board meetings;

+ recommend on the setup plan proposed by senior management;

+ monitor corporate governance system, evaluate regularly and make
suggestions to improve the corporate governance of the Group; and

+ check the implementation of the Group's annual business plan and major
investment plans, make recommendations on major investment projects of
the Bank, and report to the board of directors for consideration and
approval.

The members of SC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Yu Kwok Chun (appointed on 21 September 2018 and

(Chairman) redesignated as the Chairman on 31
December 2018)

Mr Lyu Yaoming (appointed as Chairman on 21 September 2018
and redesignated as member on 31 December
2018)

Mr Tan Wan Chye (appointed on 21 September 2018)

Mr Zheng Wei (appointed on 21 September 2018)

Mr Zhang Canmin (appointed on 21 September 2018 and resigned

on 28 December 2018)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Yu Kwok Chun is
Independent Non-executive Director. One SC meeting was held in the year
with an attendance rate of 80%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee (“AC”)

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the
following areas:

+ integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process;
+ internal control systems;

- effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the
General Manager of Audit Department;

- appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification,
independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

« compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and
regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and

+ corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof.

The members of AC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr Cheung Wai Hing

Mr Tan Wan Chye

Mr Yu Kwok Chun

Ms Tsoi Lai Ha

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Lee Hoi
Yin, Stephen, Mr Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Yu Kwok Chun are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Four AC meetings were held in the year with an
attendance rate of 95%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC”)

The RC assists the Board in performing the following duties in respect of the
risk management of the Group:
- formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group;
+ monitoring of various types of risks faced by the Group;

+ review and monitoring of the changes in the Group’s risk profile;

+ review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with the risk management
policies, system, internal control procedures and regulatory requirements;

+ review and approval of significant risk-related policies and risk limits of the
Group; and

+ review of risk-related information submitted by the Group.

The members of RC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman) (appointed on 19 February 2019)

Mr Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen
Mr Zheng Wei
Mr Yu Kwok Chun (resigned as Chairman and member on 19

February 2019)

All of them are Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr Chiu Ming Wah and Mr.
Lee Hoi Yin, Stephen are Independent Non-executive Directors. Four RC
meetings were held in the year with an attendance rate of 100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

The NRC assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group
in the following areas:

+ human resources strategy, remuneration strategy and incentive
framework of the Group,

+ selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
senior Management,

« structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees,

+ remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel,

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees, and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management.

The members of the NRC during the year and up to date of the Report of the
Directors are:

Mr Cheung Wai Hing (Chairman)
Ms Tsoi Lai Ha
Mr Woo Chia Wei

All of them are Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr
Cheung Wai Hing and Mr Woo Chia Wei are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Three NRC meetings were held during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and
proposal to the Board):

+ review the amendment and formulation on the major human resources
and remuneration policies;

+ review on the performance appraisal result and bonus payment for the
year 2017 and the proposal on the salary adjustment for the year 2018 of
the Senior Management and Key Personnel,

- proposal on the Annual Review of the Four Type of Staff as delineated in
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” of HKMA,

- review on the change of Senior Management/Key Personnel of the Bank,
members of the Board of Directors and their remuneration package.
Review on the additional appointment of an Independent and
Non-Executive Director, review on the appointment of an Independent
and non-executive Director as the Vice Chairman of the Bank and
Chairman of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee, and
review on the change of Chairman of the Bank from Non-Executive
Director to Executive Director,

-+ review on the adjustment of organization chart and the reallocation of job
duties among Senior Management due to the change of its members,

- review on the 2018 KPI framework of Senior Management and Key
Personnel of the Bank, and

- review on the proposal for the build up of the bank culture of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”.
It links remuneration with perfformance and risk factors closely. It serves to
encourage staff to enhance their performance and, at the same time, to
strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with
the board principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries
(including the branches and institutions within and outside Hong Kong).

1. Senior Management and Key Personnel

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's “Guideline
on a Sound Remuneration System”:

- “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the
Board who are responsible for oversight of the bank-wide strategy or
material business lines, including Executive Directors, Chief
Executive, General Manager (of the Bank), Deputy Chief Executives,
Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are
directly and materially linked to the risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the profit, including General Managers of
material business lines, General Manager of Financial Markets
Department, as well as General Managers of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the
Remuneration Policy of the Group and will seek consultation from the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and
compliance if necessary, in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The
proposed remuneration strategy and planning is submitted to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to
the Board for approval.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism
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The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism
to formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group,
units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be
cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby
the performance of the Senior Management and different units would
be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building
blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance.
For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will
be tied to their job requirements through the performance
management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be
appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution
towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk management
duties, execution of the bank culture and compliance. Not only is
target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk exposure
involved during the course of work and their core value could also be
evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation of
the Group.

(2) Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with
risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of the Group,
the key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the
performance management mechanism. Credit risk, market risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk form the framework of the risk adjustment
method. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is
calculated according to the risk adjusted performance results
approved by the Board of the Bank and is subject to its discretion.
This method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s variable
remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes as
well as its long term performance and to maintain effective risk
management through the remuneration mechanism.

(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration

Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and
“variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles,
responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that
balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion, so
as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk
management and sound long-term financial stability. Generally
speaking, the higher the grading / responsibility of the individual staff,
the bigger the portion of variable pay will be in his/her total
remuneration.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and
will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the
Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals.
As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include
quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and
non-financial indicators.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)
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(3) Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration
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Management (continued)

The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Bank is
determined by the Board of the Bank on the basis of its financial
performance and the achievement of non-financial strategic business
targets under the long-term development of the Group. Thorough
consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the Variable Remuneration Pool is reached by
the Board of the Bank who makes discretionary adjustment to it if
deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the
Bank’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid
out that year in principle, however, the Board of the Bank reserves
the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation
of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of
the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attached to, and the assessment of which should include risk
modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk
control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job
responsibilities, which is independent from the business they
oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting
and performance management system is applied to ensure the
suitability of performance-based remuneration. The better the
performance of the Department and the individual staff, the higher will
be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time
horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout,
payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be deferred
in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The
Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral. The higher
the job grade of the individual staff, the higher will be the proportion of
deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the
long-term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are
linked to the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the
Group in the next 3 years and the bahavior of the individual staff to
the effect that the variable remuneration could only be vested to such
extent as set for the relevant year in that 3-year period subject to the
condition that the Group’s performance has met the threshold
requirement in the corresponding year. In case of material revision of
the original estimates of the performance of the Group or individual
units, or if a staff is found to commit fraud, or found to be of
malfeasance or in violation of internal control policies, the unvested
portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff will
be forfeited.

-
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

3. WM REE IR E B R (8D

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
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(continued)

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time
horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group (continued)

Compared with the previous years, there was no material change in
the nature and type of above mentioned measures during the year, so
it had no significant influence on the remuneration system of the
Bank.

. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

(1) The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review
with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management
requirements, etc.

(2) The review on the “Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and
“Variable Remuneration Management Policy” of the Bank have
been conducted during the year, so as to demonstrate the
important message of human resources strategy by giving the
balance of “effective incentive” and “prudent remuneration
management”, which is in line with HKMA guidance.

(3) Based on the latest organization structure and the business strategy
of the Bank, the identification criteria & position lists of the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” and etc., as delineated in the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”, were also reviewed.

. External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and
incentive mechanism, the Bank appointed Willis Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited for the reference of its independent opinion in areas of pay
management mechanism and market remuneration data of Senior
Management and key positions. The Bank has taken the relevant market
information into account on the remuneration management.

. Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA to
disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive
mechanism.
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Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 40 to 218 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment allowances of advances to customers
Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s advances to customers as at 31 December 2018 Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances on

amounted to HK$48,478,368,000, net of total expected credit advances to customers measured at amortised cost included

losses (“ECL”) of HK$346,699,000. 11% of the Group’s the following:

advances to customers related to exposures in Mainland - understanding and assessing the design,

China. implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls on financial reporting over the change
of financial instruments standard, approval, recording
and monitoring and restructuring of loans measured at
amortised cost, the credit grading process, the ECL
model development, approval, monitoring, governance
and validation process, and the measurement of
impairment allowances;

Impairment allowances of advances to customers across the - evaluating the accuracy of the classification of advances
banking industry continues to be an area of concern and to customers. We obtained information on how
elevated focus due to the uncertain global economic outlook. management applied the classification requirements of

the new financial instruments standard and the
classification results and on a sample basis we
assessed the contractual cash flow characteristics of
advances to customers and relevant documents in
relation to the business model;
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Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

The Group has applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) which
replaced Hong Kong Accounting Standard 39, Financial
Instruments: recognition and measurement, since 1 January
2018.

The new financial instruments standard has amended the
previous classification and measurement framework for
financial instruments, which determines the amount of loans
and advances subject to assessment of impairment
allowances. ECL may be materially misstated if the
classification and measurement framework for financial
instruments is not properly adopted. Therefore, the
determination of impairment allowances of advances to
customers is subject to the accuracy of the classifications of
the Group’s advances to customers.

The new financial instruments standard also introduced a
more complex expected credit loss model to assess
impairment allowances of advances to customers measured
at amortised cost.

In order to comply with the new requirements, the Group has
developed a new model for measuring impairment allowances
of financial assets including advances to customers.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments made
on transition to the new financial instruments standard
and comparing the list of classification of advances to
customers, the original carrying amounts and new
carrying amounts of advances to customers to assess if
the journal entries have been properly recorded in the
accounting systems;

involving specialists in assessing the reliability of the ECL
model used by management in determining impairment
allowances, including assessing the appropriateness of
the key parameters and assumptions in the expected
credit loss model, including the identification of loss
stages, probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other management adjustments;

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data used
for the key parameters in the expected credit loss model,
by comparing individual loan information on a sample
basis with the underlying agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of the loan
information in the expected credit loss model. For key
parameters derived from external data, we selected
samples to inspect the accuracy of such data by
comparing them with publicly available sources;

for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence from
external sources and comparing it to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss experience and type of
collateral. As part of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions to estimates and input
parameters compared with the estimates and input

parameters on transition to the new accounting standard
and considered the consistency of judgement. We
compared the economic factors used in the models with
market information to assess whether they were aligned
with market and economic development;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

Loan exposures that are not already credit-impaired are
classified as stage 1 on origination and a 12-month ECL
provision is recognised. Loan exposures will transfer to stage
2 if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to origination. Loan exposures are classified as
stage 3 if they become credit-impaired. A lifetime ECL
provision is recognised for loans classified as stage 2 and
stage 3.

ECL may be materially misstated if the exposures with a
significant increase in credit risk are not properly identified,
leading to inaccurate recognition of ECL.

The determination of impairment allowances using the
expected credit loss model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default and discount rate, adjustments
for forward-looking information and other adjustment factors.
Management judgment is involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

In particular, the determination of the impairment allowances
is heavily dependent on the external macro environment and
the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
expected credit losses are derived from estimates including
the historical losses, internal and external credit grading and
other adjustment factors.

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. Management refers to
valuation reports issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors including the market
price, location and use when assessing the value of property
held as collateral. The enforceability, timing and means of
realisation of collateral can also have an impact on the
recoverable amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
impairment allowances as at the end of the reporting period.

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

for key parameters used in the expected credit loss model
which were derived from system-generated internal data,
assessing the accuracy of input data by comparing the
input data with original documents on a sample basis.
We involved our information technology specialists in
assessing the information systems controls critical to the
credit grading process, such as the compilation of the
overdue reports for advances to customers. We also
assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant automated application controls
within these systems, as well as the key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including controls over
access to these systems and controls over data and
change management;

for selected samples of advances to customers that are
credit-impaired, evaluating management’s assessment of
the value of any collateral held by comparison with
available market information. We also evaluated the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contract terms;

in respect of identifying exposures with a significant
increase in credit risk evaluating the validity of
management’s assessment on whether the credit risk of
the loan has, or has not, increased significantly since
initial recognition and whether the loan is credit-impaired
by selecting samples for which we checked loan overdue
information, made enquiries of the credit managers about
the borrowers’ business operations, checked borrowers’
financial information and researched market information
about borrowers’ businesses;

in respect of assessing the accuracy of ECL calculation,
recalculating the amount of impairment allowance for
12-month and life-time credit losses using the expected
credit loss model based on the above parameters and
assumptions for a sample of advances to customers
where the credit risk of the loan has not, or has, increased
significantly since initial recognition, respectively and
comparing to the results from the Group;

assessing the appropriateness of material manual
adjustments and overlays on ECL model outputs; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment allowances of advances to customers (continued)

Refer to notes 2.14, 4.1, 11, 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

The Group is required to retrospectively apply the
classification and measurement (including impairment
allowances) requirements and recognise any difference
between the original carrying amount and new carrying
amount at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018) in
the opening retained earnings or other components of equity
(“Transition adjustments”).

We identified the impairment allowances of advances to
customers measured at amortised cost as a key audit matter
because of the complexity of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgment involved and because of its
significance to the financial results and capital of the Group.

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

— evaluating whether the presentation and disclosures on
impairment allowances of advances to customers
measured at amortised cost and the relevant disclosures
in relation to the change in the financial instruments
standard meet the requirements in the prevailing
accounting standards.

Refer to notes 2.12, 5.1, 21 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2018 the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments was HK$27,036,017,000 of which
HK$2,331,316,000, HK$24,683,236,000 and HK$21,465,000
were classified as level 1, 2 and 3 financial instruments
respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments, which are
stated at their fair values, is based on a combination of market
data and valuation models which often require a considerable
number of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from
readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.

The Group has developed its own models to value certain
level 2 and 3 financial instruments, which involves significant
management judgement.

We identified assessment of the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments
and because of the degree of judgement exercised by
management in developing its own models and in determining
the inputs used in the valuation models.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial

instruments included the following:

— assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the valuation
and independent price verification for financial
instruments;

—  for the key underlying systems used for the processing of
transactions in relation to financial instruments we utilised
our information technology specialists to assess the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of a
selection of relevant automated controls within these
systems. We also assessed the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the key internal controls
over these underlying systems, including controls over
access to these systems and controls over data and
change management;

— assessing the fair values of level 1 and certain level 2
financial instruments by comparing the fair values applied
by the Group with publicly available market data, on a
sample basis;

—  evaluating the methodology adopted by management and
assessing the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used by management in the valuations;

—  engaging our internal valuation specialists to perform, on a
sample basis, independent valuations of certain level 2
financial instruments and comparing these valuations with
the Group’s valuations. Our independent valuations
included  developing models, obtaining inputs
independently and verifying the inputs obtained
independently; and

— assessing whether the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with

reference to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

-
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Fong Hoi Wan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

Fff&E
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Interest income 2,546,178 1,385,960
Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method 2,523,327 1,376,182
Other interest income 22,851 9,778
Interest expense (987,748) (435,456)
Net interest income 6 1,558,430 950,504
Fee and commission income 394,830 473,211
Fee and commission expense (24,011) (22,221)
Net fee and commission income 7 370,819 450,990
Net trading gain 8 71,743 7,935
Net gain on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss 465 793
Net gain on other financial assets 9 5,874 8,167
Other operating income 10 12,408 7,691
Net operating income before impairment
allowances 2,019,739 1,426,080
Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (138,429) (62,300)
Net operating income 1,881,310 1,363,780
Operating expenses 12 (671,060) (476,890)
Operating profit 1,210,250 886,890
Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 13 18,440 11,050
Net (loss)/gain from disposal / revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment 14 (23,948) 702
Profit before taxation 1,204,742 898,642
Taxation 15 (202,295) (146,810)
Profit for the year 1,002,447 751,832

The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CERHEWEESR Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
NS
BE 12 H 31 HiHEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BT AETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SERERRF Profit for the year 1,002,447 751,832
HARAR AT E T 0 FH 2 Wt 2 Y Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
IHH : to income statement:
JBIE Premises:
B E A Revaluation of premises 26 119,251 (9,403)
IRIEFTTE Deferred tax 30 (16,953) 3,798
102,298 (5,605)
DA BET A E A 2wk Equity instruments at fair value through other
T Z BentEss TH comprehensive income:
AN FEEE Change in fair value 24 (2,466) -
99,832 (5,605)
HAg v E o 2 W e I AYIH Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
B : income statement:
DAAFEEE bat A A4 L Debt instruments at fair value through other
W MEBTE comprehensive income:
NEE(E Change in fair value 24 (169,370) -
IR B B e i 2 UL Release upon disposal reclassified to
P income statement 9 (6,061) -
e 2E bR SR Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement (4,439) -
IR IEFRIE Deferred tax 30 32,699 -
o R Available-for-sale securities:
APHEEZEE Change in fair value 24 - (40,553)
RE B 2 B e o E UL Release upon disposal reclassified to
EEd income statement 9 - (8,225)
PRIEFRTE Deferred tax 30 - 9,110
(147,171) (39,668)
R R Currency translation difference (71,895) 88,967
(219,066) 49,299
FERERRBEARERRS Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (119,234) 43,694
FEELHESEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 883,213 795,526
FE(LEEUESEE%E « Total comprehensive income attributable to:
RERI TR B RELS Equity holders of the Bank 883,213 795,526

% 46 £ 218 HZ @A BHK
Sk o

The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LEE BRI E Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BffEE
W12 H 31 H As at 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
-3 ASSETS
JEE AT B < B A7 B AT e LAt <5 i Cash and balances with banks and other
HRENIGEER financial institutions 19 15,446,012 17,287,963
EIRT REM SRS —2 1+ Placements with banks and other financial
{5 AR E BT institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 20 6,302,563 780,905
FUE R LA EE bat A2 Financial assets designated at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 24 364,604 212,225
ITESRTE Derivative financial instruments 21 122,680 129,146
BRSNS S Advances to customers and trade bills 22 49,934,290 43,054,376
e Investment in securities 24 28,262,902 20,011,461
EYE Investment properties 25 233,350 214,910
LUE B Y& d ] Properties, plant and equipment 26 1,738,569 1,552,253
IRIEFRIEE 7 Deferred tax assets 30 12,298 19,911
HAth &z Other assets 27 455,359 825,781
B LR Total assets 102,872,627 84,088,931
=li= LIABILITIES
SRAT B ELMh Rl > FEai e Deposits and balances from banks and
4EER other financial institutions 11,933,270 9,987,634
ITESRTE Derivative financial instruments 21 43,268 18,789
B Deposits from customers 28 78,329,515 63,279,437
HoAtn AR R Other accounts and provisions 29 746,311 1,000,068
JERTTEIHE & Current tax liabilities 75,824 91,552
PRAERTTHE(H Deferred tax liabilities 30 141,243 147,954
=Lk Total liabilities 91,269,431 74,525,434
-3 EQUITY
[iE&N Share capital 31 1,772,988 300,000
i Reserves 7,892,496 7,325,785
AR TR SR TSR AR (B (A Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 9,665,484 7,625,785
HINEATH Additional equity instruments 32 1,937,712 1,937,712
LAY Total equity 11,603,196 9,563,497
LV N Total liabilities and equity 102,872,627 84,088,931

%546 £ 218 H et /E AN 15
R ARG o

KEHEEH 201943 7 21 Hid@
AT A AFRRE

=R Lz
EH EF

The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2019 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

LYU Yaoming
Director

ZHENG Wei
Director
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SEETERRE IR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI A SR TRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
E
Reserves
%Eé@ /A\ZIZ{E{EZ s .
S L] B EERH REEE T wEEm gt FINEATR R
Premises Additional
Share revaluatioq Fair value Regulatorg Translatior; Retained equity Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total instruments equity
AT BT BT BBTot BT A%t BT AT EETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#2018 41 H 1 H2 At 1 January 2018, as
FHATIAR previously reported 300,000 1,122,434 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,942,842 7,625,785 1,937,712 9,563,497
JiE 5 s B4 7% 7 45 8 Adjustment on initial
HIIZS 9 BRAVER application of
HKFRS 9 - - 15,760 - - (4,413) 11,347 - 11,347
#2018 41 A 1 HZ At 1 January 2018, as
E=gll] restated 300,000 1,122,434 (69,125) 325,391 20,003 5,938,429 7,637,132 1,937,712 9,574,844
FEREE A Profit for the year - . . . - 1,002,447 1,002,447 - 1,002,447
HA U - Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - 102,298 - - - - 102,298 - 102,298
PLAFEE S BT A Equity instruments
H 2w zE > at fair value
R fatEs T A through other
o comprehensive
income - - (2,466) - - - (2,466) - (2,466)
PLA (g8 bEt A Debtinstruments
HAh 2 mEUL2E > at fair value
BT HE through other
a comprehensive
income - - (147,171) - - - (147,171) - (147,171)
BRI Currency translation
difference - - 412 - (72,307) - (71,895) - (71,895)
A R AR Total comprehensive
income - 102,298  (149,225) - (72,307) 1,002,447 883,213 - 883,213
BT Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,988 - - - - - 1,472,988 - 1,472,988
Lt B | Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 88,986 - (88,986) - - -
RS | ZfEESNE A Dividends /
THEREHEFE Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (327,849) (327,849) - (327,849)
#2018 4212 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 1,772,988 1,224,732  (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,524,041 9,665,484 1,937,712 11,603,196
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SEETERRE IR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

(&)

#2017 4£1 5 1 H At 1January 2017, as

EHABIHE previously reported
B4 17 BRI B 9 45 8% 69 Adjustment to opening
ke balance of retained
earnings
2017 ££1 5 1 H At 1 January 2017, as
g restated
R Profit for the year
HAth Uz - Other comprehensive
income:
SRR Premises
] Available-for-sale
securities
Bl e Currency translation
difference
ESinllvenis] Total comprehensive
income

BITHINEARATE Issue of additional
equity instruments
W 2 R A7 R Transfer to retained

earnings
12950 Dividend

#2017 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2017

1. FPEEEfhERATEIL R s
ERBEEIEYIERFE
PRIV &S BOR -

2. A PHEERBHEEFEUS
SEEZ BT A A 2 E LS
(2017 ] (i )5 H 2
AR IERERR Y TP E
EZEFA -

3. FrEEEEGEHEASE 39 58
/BB IR EAEAISE 9 IR
HEFIEHUREZLEFIL > 1%
B R EOR B o W A
M E BB A RT —fRE
bz (BREARAIRAREE
A ET TR )

4. HAREEAVEIL R R E AR
BN T BT PR AT & S

BRBIN AR TIRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
ekt
Reserves
%E@é L‘WH{% s .

A2 (et G EERE T PR g Wt BSNEATE  BALE

Premises ; ; Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatory Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve Reserve reserve reserve earnings Total  instruments equity
BT BETIT  BWToT BETIT BETIOT BTt Bl BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,332,651 6,876,532 - 6,876,532
= - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
300,000 1,128,039 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,286,378 6,830,259 - 6,830,259
- - - 751,832 751,832 - 751,832
(5,605) - - - - (5,605) - (5,605)
(39,668) - - - (39,668) - (39,668)
(1,742) - 90,709 - 88,967 - 88,967
(5,605) (41,410) - 90,709 751,832 795,526 - 795,526
- - = - - 1,937,712 1,937,712

- 95,368 - (95,368) - -
300,000 1,122,434 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,942,842 7,625,785 1,937,712 9,563,497

1. Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for the revaluation of investment properties and premises.

2. Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value
through other comprehensive income (2017:available-for-sale) securities held until the
securities are derecognised.

3. In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for
general banking risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition
to the loan impairment allowances recognised under Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“HKAS”) 39/ Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

4. Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for foreign currency translation.

46 F 218 H B AN #2401  The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(=
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash (outflow) / inflow before
taxation 33(a) (995,167) 12,355,313
Hong Kong profits tax paid (150,155) (93,997)
Overseas profits tax paid (53,703) (18,259)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating
activities (1,199,025) 12,243,057
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment 26 (120,462) (54,525)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment - 398
Net cash outflow from investing activities (120,462) (54,127)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 31 1,472,988 -
Issue of additional equity instruments - 1,937,712
Final dividend paid to the equity holders of
the Bank 16 (225,000) -
Distribution to the holders of the additional
equity instruments 16 (102,849) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,145,139 1,937,712
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents (174,348) 14,126,642
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 19,012,716 4,701,085
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (150,226) 184,989
18,688,142 19,012,716

»12 H 31 HZ2EHS KEEHSIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 33(b)

5 46 = 218 H k@A Bk
ZEHREERSY ©

The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEM BRI

1. EEEH

AEE E B ERLIRTT MBI 24/ The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial
KA - services.

1. Principal activities

BT E—FNEERIINAIRER Y The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
H] o N EEE bR R E R i T 78 its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road Central, Hong Kong.

% o
2. FEEFHEER 2. Significant accounting policies

AR mEIARGEM T HFEZ TEGETEL The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
FEEHIATT - financial statements are set out below.

ERFFRIEERRSN > 32 e st BRI W — 2t These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
JEFIAFrA S IR Z BB - otherwise stated.

21 mEEEE

2.1 Basis of preparation

REFZ SGE T BEmR R IREE
GaTAT A & R TR R A
A% > B (EERG R AL IS T A
Mz & BB ELER] - BEGT
RH R el BRI 5t
SR FFEEE (AFEERE) Z
RUE °

ARG GBS A T R S R A
B MERLE A DL P EY IR 2 555
&~ DA PEE(E ARG &
AN A (EREETAE SR
TH) ~ DIAHEIR . E4E -
LLASPES IR Z B &5k B LA
{E S E AR FORR Rt es R Ratis
ERERIIR Y FEF R -

a2 B P PO % R o B 1 4 ST TS i
T FWRAE FERZ G
o BHEIHRN AR
STECRIF(E LA RHHET - &k
v A~ R i B S
BRI = B A ek
i > AL S -

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value revaluation of
investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are
carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
Management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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SEEABERENEE (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. TESECE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 EREE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) BF201841 A 1 HifRsaAYEEt  (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FEEREIEER L BRI AEET for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018
R 1EET & HEART R

Applicable for
financial years

Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after
AP R R 40 5 FEYEAER 201841 A1 H
(&&f&3T7)

HKFRS 40 (Amendment) Transfer of Investment Property 1 January 2018
AR S A 9 5% B T H 201841 H 1 H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
AR B S RIS 15 9 TR P EFERIA 2018 1 H1H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
A AR RS 22 9% MBS RTAMUE 201841 H1H
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1 January 2018

Consideration
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBER (#)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 ERECE (F)
(@) EFr201841 A 1 HEFIMBATE T

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective

FRERFIEER AR ERT (8D

FAETEAA SR A B < B s
AERIEESIA0T

- TAEEEENIEEA05E (&EET) #E
EENER o ZETTEBRE
R AR E YRS
JHBE FRAIOsE - RIS R
FHMEZYIEN G A ERE
MENES RN ARERE
BF > TR R - wEET
] BR B 1 1 5T BRI T &
a1 WIATFIRRTERAN - ERANVZIEET
BWAREENMERFRIEERY
o

- BHRMBEREER SR TR
B BRI EAESE T &
R LA HUEEEEHERISE395%
NEVHERS SETE > EAE S
RIS O5RaR B TERE B BT <Rl
FABIEK -

* AEEIRIE AR - $702018
FAH N RYIE H AilE e &
g AEA S99 - AEREIR )
It R L S (£ 20184F 1
HAUHEIRERA - Uit - hEEF
PR HE IR A E TR A5 395k
UK -

for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is as follows:

+ HKAS 40 (Amendments), “Transfer of Investment Property”. The
amendments provide guidance on deciding when there is a change in use to
transfer a property to or from investment property. The amendments clarify
that a change in use occurs when the property meets or ceases to meet the
definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.
The amendments can be applied prospectively or retrospectively. Early
application is permitted. The adoption of the amendments does not have
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

+ HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
Instruments: recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 sets out the
requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets and financial
liabilities.

« The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that existed at 1
January 2018 in accordance with the transition requirements. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.
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e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBCR (#)

21 HEEE (J)

(a) Efr201841 [ 1 HEFHBATE T
SRR FERI BT ()

(i) TR 2 A S s
AR 9 RE 2018 421 H 1 H
YR ~ i ROARRBRRS ESHY

HogEE -
7

ATEREE
AR 39 FE TAVHIRESER
(201741285 31 H)

MBS RS O ST LA THE
LT AR A T B s 8
Rl A TS E IR R

HHBARES

BB SRR 9 BE T ARG
ik (201841 H1H)

TREFERF
TGRS 39 Bt THYIRE R
(2017 =12 A 31 H)

BB S AERISS 9 BE T RITHING
R (BFEEROReE RSB IR
=IEiD)

HHEAFTHS

TR S RIS O SR T AVRIR4S
i (201821 H 1 H)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) The following table summarises the impact of transition of HKFRS 9 on
retained earnings and reserves and the related tax impact at 1 January

2018.

Fair value reserve
Closing balance under HKAS 39 (31 December 2017)

Recognition of expected credit losses under HKFRS 9 for debt
financial assets at FVOCI

Related tax
Opening balance under HKFRS 9 (1 January 2018)

Retained earnings
Closing balance under HKAS 39 (31 December 2017)

Recognition of expected credit losses under HKFRS 9 (including
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts)

Related tax
Opening balance under HKFRS 9 (1 January 2018)

JERE B B RS
AEHIZE O SR &
Impact of
application of
HKFRS 9

BT T
HK$'000
(84,885)

18,829

(3,069)

(69,125)

5,942,842

(6,411)

1,998

5,938,429
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. FEETHBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HFEERE (8)

(a) BE2018£1 H 1 HiEFMAMNE ST (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FERETRE MR BRI R ABET (&) for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

« DR E BRI M E RAERTAT
B AT RIS T

+ Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition approach are set out below:

(i) ERETE (i) Classification and Measurement

R B s AR ISR 9B B
HEE T (1) DABEREAER

flr e E R St & - =24U(B)
DL PES (BT AIRR (EIRE
SHE o BrERHUE G

Financial assets

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). These supersede HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for sales financial assets
and financial assets measured at FVTPL. The classification of financial

assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
SRS R LA AL E R A Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a
I SRS - BRI TR financial asset in the scope of the standard are not separated from the
RIS O8E T S MR A (b 225 host. Instead, a hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed for
FE R T LSRR - LUK classification.

T ENEERREREE - &5

B BRI 99k i ANTA T

HENME » &H LB

AERIFGE N AR E - 52 IR A

PTAETHA T EHE T4957 5 R

o iR RS e T B

(apay i

F 399k A E B H A%
B~ B EGR ~ Tt R
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Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. FEEHBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEEERE (8

(a) Ef*201841 [ 1 HEFHBATE T
FRERFIEER AR AERT (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) ERETE (&) (ii) Classification and Measurement (continued)

EREE () Financial assets (continued)
THEEAEHHR2018FE1H1H The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance
RIAEEE R aERET &S with HKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for the
SHAERIEE 395 K T M 15 3 o5 Group'’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018.
BAEOSRIY ERGETE

2018441 H1H

At 1 January 2018

Ayl ARTHFE
Classification Carrying Amount
R RIS R AR A B
% 39 5k AR 9 5% 2 39 5% R 9 5%
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000
SRiEE Financial assets
[EETEFR 4 R 7R Cash and balances B YR ST IDN
17 R Hofth 4 Tk with banks and other Loans and Amortised cost
*%E"jé%ﬁ% financial institutions receivables 17.287.963 17.287.826
TESRAT B ot 4l Placements with banks R EWGK BESH R A
ek — 2+ (@ and other financial Loans and Amortised cost
H A EIEE > 1A institutions maturing receivables
e between one and
twelve months 780,905 780,719
FUTE By LN AR Financial assets PUATHEEL FUE R LA TEE(EETA
(EEt AdB% > 4 designated at fair value A= B
Bl through profit or loss FVTPL FVTPL
) (designated) 212,225 212,225
PTAEemE TR Derivative financial DIAFEEL HAMBRH SR B
instruments s AR A TPEE L AR
FVTPL FVTPL
(mandatory) 129,146 129,146
HIE SN E 5 Advances to customers R FEWGER BN R A
i and trade bills Loans and Amortised cost
receivables 43,054,376 43,082,996
Fepaxita Investment in securities A PIAPESE ERT AT A4
— [EREE — debt securities [l
Available FVOCI
for sale 19,920,518 19,920,518
Feeaxita Investment in securities A PLAPESE ERT A A4
— BEEss — equity securities [tk
Available FVOCI
for sale 90,943 90,943
Hith SR EE Other financial assets B YR BESE AR
Loans and Amortised cost
receivables 773,129 772,555
BERERE Total financial assets 82,249,205 82,276,928

SRERIRER A -

S

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. FEETHBER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HFEERE (8)

(a) Efr201841F 1 HEFMBAIEE!
FERERAIMAE R RERN BT (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(it) sy RETE ()
SEREE ()
MR AT 395k
YRR E (E 822018451 1 H i

(ii) Classification and Measurement (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the
carrying amounts under HKFRS 9 on transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January

5 T 1 Y S 9Bk B AR 2018.
BEBM B A9 R H
[EERES
A BT AR B
55 39 BB HAERIES 9 5%
2017 #£12 H iy 2018 421 H
31 HiRmEE EEivh | =HEtE 1 HIREE
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying amount as carrying
at 31 December amount as at 1
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement January 2018
BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
B E R fEERTT.  Cash and balances with
HoAh < F bR Y banks and other
&heR financial institutions 17,287,963 - (137) 17,287,826
FHR1T R HAth & Fif%  Placements with banks
-1+ HAN and other financial
FHHZ EHHE institutions maturing
between one and
twelve months 780,905 - (186) 780,719
FUE B LLAES/E  Financial assets
SFAEEZERE designated at fair value
E through profit or loss 212,225 - - 212,225
TSR T E Derivative financial
instruments 129,146 - - 129,146
BEE R E G Advances to customers
and trade bills 43,054,376 - 28,620 43,082,996
BAEEE Investment in securities
- S - debt securities 19,920,518 - - 19,920,518
- B UrRE R - equity securities 90,943 - - 90,943
HApr G REE Other financial assets 773,129 - (574) 772,555
BERMEE Total financial assets 82,249,205 - 27,723 82,276,928

-
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Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBCR (#)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 HEEERE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) TR 201841 H 1 HiERsa &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FRETREIMAER AR AZET () for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(it) sy RETE ()

SEREE ()

AT B BRI 5T
HyeR TR BEHEER - 5
FEREE2.8 -

FA20184E1 H1H » AR EIE E 5
BB EE 2R DL PE S bat A
frmif st & - 20174 > 5k
TR WO R AT B B DA
HETE - A EE(LE AR
SR HETT U T DA B
& BRI REFRA -

FrA SR A RHIET B A - S
HEAVIRAMER 20184E1 H1H
FERTHOIE AT A T i 2 R 5
SRR -

(iii) ik fE

MRS RS TTH
HEERL | HAERAEEEST
HAIEFEI95E T THAERK )
B FEHE SRR TR HEE
ERNEENE A - (EEER
HYTESD AR B 5 8 Gt A 5
395kAY T EEARK ) A EEHE
BTSSR 5 -

RGBS LU I E BT T THI
fEHEK ) B

o DSE AT B SR A E
(B ¥ 36 & R 5 R 36 4 T
H ~ BRI R A )

- IRIET BB EAERZE15
SRHIEFEE

< DIaPESE bR AR
Wi (PTREER A (53807

- THE YRS

© EEBUHIMBIEREN S K
© EEHELIEL A HEZE
ARSIV SRR -

S B (5 SR
> TT2R2.14 -

S

(ii)

(iii)

Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

The Group’s accounting policies on the classification of financial
instruments under HKFRS 9 are set out in Note 2.8.

At 1 January 2018, the Group designated certain investments as equity
securities as at FVOCI. In 2017, these investments were classified as
available-for-sale and measured at fair value. The FVOCI designation was
made because the investments are expected to be held for the long term
for strategic purposes.

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities remain the same.
The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not
been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
“expected credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a financial asset and therefore
recognises ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting model
in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following items:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, placements and other assets);
- Contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15;

- Debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling);

- Lease receivables;
- Financial guarantee contracts issued; and

- Loan commitments issued, which are not measured at FVTPL.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see Note 2.14.
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2017 £ 12 H 31 H
31 December 2017

SEEM RN (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FTESHECEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) TR201841 H 1 HiEkGHIEst (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FRERHIM AR R RAZET (&) for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
(i) JBkfE (48) (iii) Impairment (continued)
TERA2017TF12H 3T HIRE® The following table reconciles the closing impairment allowance
A et R 395 AV IR E determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 with the
HEFFHI2018F 1 H1HIRBE TS opening impairment allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9
S 75 i 28 P S QSR Y HA R TR A as at 1 January 2018.
(EEREEHEIE

201841 H 1 H

1 January 2018

EAETER RS S
5 39 5k E=Eia | BT R 9 5f
HKAS 39  Reclassification Remeasurement HKFRS 9
AT AT AT BTIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRAEXER Impairment allowances
GG 395 T E Balances with banks and other
IR MEN AN IR T R financial institutions at loans
HinEmlmEsser & and receivables under HKAS 39
RS ERIE 9 BR T /balances with banks and
DUBESH R A 2 TR T R other financial institutions at
HM RS AEER amortised cost under HKFRS 9 - - 137 137
GG 393 T E Placements with banks and other
RS JREUS R IAE SR AT R financial institutions maturing
4 Rt —Z= -+ (@ A between one and twelve
WEHAZ ERIFR & months at loans and
AT S A2 HIES 9 B TR DL receivables under HKAS 39,/
BESHRAR  AF SR T R Hofilr placements with banks and
SRMEE -2+ @AW other financial institutions
FIHA > EHITFIL maturing between one and
twelve months at amortised
cost under HKFRS 9 - - 186 186
EAGEERIE 39 5E T E Advances to customers and trade
TR SRR 28 P B85k B bills at loans and receivables
G S Rm A under HKAS 39 Advances to
SR O 9% T DABESS A customers and trade bills at
CEPEEHNE G amortised cost under HKFRS 9 246,448 - (20,695) 225,753
GEar st AR 39 5F AT Investment in securities at
B ENRRICE & available-for-sale under HKAS
WA RIS 9 5L 39 /investment in securities at
ATPEE L A AM S FVOCI under HKFRS 9
W8 71 A - - - -
GRS 39 5E T E Other financial assets at loans
SRR ES R o St and receivables under HKAS 39
B RS /other financial assets at
9 5 T DABESHRA 2 HoAth amortised cost under HKFRS 9
BRIEE 57 - 574 631
SRR E R AT SERIOR 3% B Loan commitments and financial
JENSL 3 H PR e guarantee contracts issued - - 15,305 15,305
SEEERER Total Impairment allowances 246,505 - (4,493) 242,012

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBCR (#)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 HEEERE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) TR 201841 H 1 HiERsa &t (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FRETREIMAER AR AZET () for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(iv) gt

A 5 R AR R P P s s e 2 )
FOSTHIHTEN G AL - HE
BB HIHEENE B E eI S
THEGIHEN39 - RS A AT
WEM: > WA UE A RS
EPRTARNE - RSB B S
AR ONR I A SR BRI S
AT AREARE

(iv) Hedge accounting

The Group has elected to adopt the new general hedge accounting model
in HKFRS 9. Depending on the complexity of the hedge, this new
accounting model allows a more qualitative approach to assessing hedge
effectiveness compared to HKAS 39 to be applied, and the assessment is
always forward-looking. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements in this regard.

Transition

(v) R

B LTRSS RIS HERAE
TR RIS B
SRR -

DA BB g H
Bl o BRAE I Bt AR IZE9
BElE GORAC T & e =L
MUAREM{E 2 7 20184E1 H1H
) B 17 2 ) R (R 0 T R
It 201 7R B RHI R R
STAEAIEE 395V » MBI
T HE SRR B R -

(v

-

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
have been applied retrospectively, except as described below:

Information relating to comparative periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.

12201841 A1 H (AR EE WA TE
P I T i 5 R R EE 95%)

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application

TRIB R ¥

- EEFTRANSREEN A
R

© FEEE IR S R
B Ry i a8 A 4 (A YR 2
(R RIS ) DARZ LA T
-

eI H - R R b
TR BOR BRI > el E EE
b I NN > xR T EE
WS R G EIIINE TR E &8
®o

of HKFRS 9 by the Group):

- The determination of the business model within which a financial asset

is held; and

- The designation of investments in equity instruments not held for

trading to be classified as at FVOCI (non-recycling).

If, at the date of initial application, the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised for that

financial instrument.




&L A 8K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

SEEABERENEE (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. FESECEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HFEERE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) B 2018£1 H 1 HiEFMAMNE ST (a) Standards and amendments issued that are already mandatorily effective
FEETREIMER BRI AEET (&) for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
s GRS AERE155F TR + HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a
HEERIMIA - FAEMBEERS single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising
HE HII 5 1555 i FH B8 — AU I B e from contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core
FrE RN & PSR AR S 51 E principle that revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to
B o B2 R ATAZ O R R T 2 4K be entitled when control of promised good or service transfers to customers.
K EE AT RS SRS TR e I fE RS It is also applicable to the recognition and measurement of gains or losses
BN ey B U AL i on the sale of some non-financial assets such as properties or equipment
FEHAEV S V(G - HooRm i rEsE that are not an output of ordinary activities. HKFRS 15 also includes a set of
KEtEHEH S IEEREE 4 disclosure requirements about revenue from customer contracts. The new
Y B IR M BB T A A standard will replace the separate models for goods, services and
B - F i Fe s a a5 15 construction contracts stipulated in different standards under the current
YENEIE—EABENEEAE HKFRS. The adoption of this standard does not have a material impact on
Wi A B B SR o 3 U T the Group’s financial statements.

BUA T A B s AR R R [ 4
ST RS AR S SRR
B - BR&f T A B R e 4B R
HALERNI BRI AERY

an .

o ARG S AE SR R 2258 + HK(IFRIC) — Int 22, “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

PYNBEAE B R TEATAE o Eaee Consideration”. The interpretation addresses how an entity should use the

S5 HA A 2 A0 JE P ) R U B R exchange rate on the date of cash payment or receipt for transactions that
i H I SIS S TR involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency. The
TR ME B RE 5) - s T B interpretation can either be applied retrospectively or prospectively. Early
St e TR MR IR e application is permitted. The application of this interpretation does not have
FIERAN - BRaNe% se i s R S F= i a material impact on the Group's financial statements.
MBS HERGE -

« REEHGHN ARG EE LR « The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet

AR AR e R R R effective for the current accounting period.
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SEEM RN (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)
2. FESHEEE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 4REGEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EFEMHEEREBFIMERAMA  (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
EEN 2018 FHEFTERZ HEHI R and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018
E=
A1/ 185] W& RERE R

Applicable for
financial years

Standards/Amendments Content beginning on/after
B B E5 1655 THE 201941 H1H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
AR AR R 235k PRt A HERE I 2 B 20191 H1H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
B B B A 20154 2 20191 H1H
2017 - ARSI AU

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2019

2015 — 2017 cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBER (#)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 mEREE ()

(b) EFEMHEEREBHMERAMA  (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
E£EN 2018 ERpTEGIZ I K& and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)

&5 (&)
THET B EAH R~ B A s Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
AERIFESIAR - the Group is as follows:

* EUET RSO EE - AR EIRI
FHEE RSO E - B PR
BB S 165k - RTEA
SRR PR BT B S RS A B - F
MRz AAHAFTHFEEEEE -
SIRMBHEN g AL
FrEfE &4y BImHERGH
AR MRS S A O T
DI ER AR i (A B S
HIMH A - (BT IS T A
Rl A AR E A ED
EREERD A S S~ B B I RERY
HTEG - HUARIHRIS T B A i E
FACETHRE RIS - IR
IR ERI I » AKRE A R B S A
FHE(EIFHEIII12(8 5 2R T ) ke
R EEE A SR L AL T
IR A T IR R
S

< BRI B S AR S 165 £
BAEE BTN R OB
HHIYISE - g ket JERDR S
SHERIGRIRHE A E A 7
BAE R RIS E A A B
SR [ - 4% BRI 5 36 A 2
o HE2018FE12H31H » A&
S A (B 2 A m] SR A
H &#H X W & #®| Ok
HK$127,140,000 - E &5 HiE »
SR ESH > NI - B
R R AE RIS 16558 » &
Ty AR B B A R AR
FEE( FIRE - 4575 RE E IR T
75 R B AR A I
AR 165RIFIIE B A4 R
TERYRE AR M T S EAAY
Iy LU ST PRI A S 1T A Y
HBRENAR -

BB T AR G R 235
PATEHZ AREETEZ BREE | - 1L
ARTERE AR H BT T e R S R B
R TS PN AT REM: > LLEZ
W et % N HEE MR R T Bii%
RS - g et E
i - AAFFEERTERG o PREZETE
HAREN B RRIIAERNY
a

- As disclosed in Note 36, currently the Group classifies leases into operating

leases. Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of
the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases
(i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

« HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee of leases

for properties, plant and equipment which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the
timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in Note 36, at 31 December 2018, the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to HK$127,140,000 for properties, some of which is payable
between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date. Some of these amounts
may therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on adoption of
HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

+ HK(IFRIC) — Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The

interpretation states that the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income
taxes should be reflected and measured by determining how probable a
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The interpretation
is applied retrospectively. Early application is permitted. The application of
this interpretation will not have a material impact on the Group's financial
statements.

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

SEMBERREEAIRT RATA R
JEAEIRE 12 A 31 DAV B -

AT
B B 2 1 A S s
PRSI 3 (IS - 15
BT AR R ST SR
B PR TR AT
J MR 2 (b R B S L
TA R TN L S5 3  A
EORIBLET)) - EARSTERI A%
B ST 2 SO (LA U
RSB A H AT A
BEREN - ISP R AR 3
TELEREHINE 08 ¢ (a) BURHYE 3
HAF A ELZHE © (b) s
YRR EORER] : J(c) ARy
FARBTERANE - I A SR
R AR EESE 240 A S0
AR S B 1 B RN A
it -

(i) R SLEHRERIRSERS & O

Wiz S [F e 2 2B > ELL
Wi 2 T R L - SERS S BRI
A5 B R A BB W 7 )
HE > TAEWEE B e &
NPE ~ TR AR (BIESA
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SR AR R A A & 1 S AR R
AR NTERE -

HERAIE - FrATIOE AR
Hi R B~ DU 2 BT FY
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ZHERT > Hom Ui H Ao AT
a1 B 7 R R AR HE AL AR E - 9
SRR o MIRCEHE R - HUE
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el )5 2 eI A HE ()
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R PIRE R Fs O U g - 2
% - BRIV GEH T REN

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee). When the Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is the fair values at the acquisition date of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred (including contingent
consideration arrangement) and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed in the income statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If after
assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain.
Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date and considered as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger
accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting
is a way to combine companies under common control as though the
business of the acquiree had always been carried out by the acquirer.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements represent the
consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and consolidated financial
position of the Group as if any such combination had occurred from the
date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common control
(i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required).
The difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the
time of combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all
transactions between the Group and the acquiree, whether occurring
before or after the combination, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Comparative amounts
are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the start of the
earliest period presented unless the acquiree first came under common
control at a later date. The transaction costs for the combination will be
expensed in the income statement.

(1) Inter-company transactions
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2

23

2.4

Consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Business combinations under common control (continued)

(2) Investments in subsidiaries
In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis
of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to
receive payment is established.

Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying net investment hedges.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in
profit or loss. However, foreign currency differences arising from the
translation of the following items are recognised in other comprehensive
income(“OCI”):
- available-for-sale equity instruments (before 1 January 2018) or equity
investments in respect of which an election has been made to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI (from 1 January 2018);

+ a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign
operation to the extent that the hedge is effective; and

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in OCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

24

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a

functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong

Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

 income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation
reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve.
When a foreign entity is disposed, such exchange differences are reclassified
from equity to the income statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value
are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are
designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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2.5 TAEERTEREMES (8) 2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

FREE R Net investment hedge
b T B AR 4 U 2R B S A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised
18 S B S E U S PR R in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on
TEEVTJ géjr AR A U 2 B the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive

SRR 7, S A
Tﬁaﬂﬂﬂmgmﬁfﬁﬁw#z‘ﬁﬂﬁ;ﬁ income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
it A R E T YW SRR 2 operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

B YIE 6 Yt SRS A — &
gy o AR BB NE(EIRF R oy
BRI RN -

2.6 $ETEHSY 2.6 Offsetting financial instruments
AT AT EREFR] > T E Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
B A E > TE HETHRSY  BA L statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
;‘%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%év%‘g}{%gAi%fﬁjﬁEE% offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

FHEEE I eREE AT T
B > ARSI R AT -

2.7 FIBBWARYY - [BBERAS 2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and
A B H expense
(1) FIRUAKZH (1) Interest income and expense
(a) H20184E1 H1HARBEANBER (a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
=R Effective interest rate
FrE Kt B il TEAFE U A RS Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are
Y e R EUE W s = DU S 5L recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective
SRS o interest method.
FERAREESH T EEE 28 The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
H » A AU B H P e i cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
o 4 Bl B 4 B & IR T (E P instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised
Eﬁﬁﬂ'\ﬁ”iﬁ: ) o cost of the financial liability.

S

BIEEREEE  SitEERA=R When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than
0% AEEEGST RIS TR & credit-impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash flows considering all
258 4T B NIIFTA S E o contractual terms of the financial instrument but not expected credit losses.
xg%g*%w;ﬂq%g@ Eﬁﬁ)\é For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on

. Ny yiate) initial recognition, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using
Eﬁ”?ﬁaﬁj\ﬁwm%ﬁ%ﬁwﬁé Al estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses (i.e. no expected
g% O RS E AR ETE A credit loss provision is required at initial recognition).

E A M IR R () TR
AT B PR R BRI -

SHEE R MZRAYAH AR S e dE S The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and
UG EVENAS S ~ B - BEF o &2 fees and points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective
5 A B I i A B A T e interest rate. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly
BN AR B - attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
B R EEEE Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

R BRI EENERN A The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
E W ETESE H ARS8 ~ niRLL which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition
B IS H R B WA TS S uE minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
BRI 4 48 > P2 LA B S04 & using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial

amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance (or impairment allowance before 1st January,

B E SRR THINNE R 25

HE (52018451 F 1 H 52 A5 2018).

EEH) -

4 A FEE VIR HE 2 R P B TEER (= The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
R AS - financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

S
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In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the
gross basis.

For financial assets that were purchased or originated credit-impaired on
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of
interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, please refer to
Note 2.14.

(b) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes fees,
premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties to
the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs which
represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the
written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent
unwinding of the discount allowance is recognised as interest income.
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expense (continued)
(2) Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income and expense that are not an integral part of the
effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself or
has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to other
participants.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss, all transaction costs of financial assets are included in
their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets. A financial asset is
measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(2) Classification

(a) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL);
« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or

« Amortised cost.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets depend
on:

+ The Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

+ The cash flow characteristics of the assets.
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Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

« Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method.

« FVOCI, if the contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for the profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated using the effective
interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.

« FVTPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI. Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group’s management has
elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity
investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used,
fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the
“Net trading gain” line in the statement of profit or loss.

-
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(iii) Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model
in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:
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+ The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of

those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’'s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

+ How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the

Group’s management;

+ The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the

financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

+ How managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether

compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

« The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the

reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Group’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how
cash flows are realised.
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(iv) SHEEEHRERETRERAESE (iv) Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments
FEB AT of principal and interest
MEXREHE » "4hE | BIsEVR For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair
T BRI AR A E - T F value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as
B BT R IR - Bl consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
'%H%FEEJW;E E?‘Ezzliﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂééﬁk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular

period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity

o~ HAFEAE I B B A (B risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

01 SFEBAIRR B - LR

?E o

ML &SRS DA RS R In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
FIERS » AEEEEE T EHNES principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
LG S S REE RS A instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
éﬂﬁﬁ(%fﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁé?ﬁ% (B a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual

cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the

JF A NPAYAN o HEFT=
FFERITHTSEIIRIT - LIRS assessment, the Group considers:

I - ARG EE -

o T]RE MR 407 4 E By i BEA {3 « Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash
IR S flows;

- PEIRREE - Leverage features;

o U GEHARER + Prepayment and extension terms;

- IRFIALEE SR EEENRESR - Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
BRI (FIA0  EEBENTE (e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements); and
FEZHE)

- & U R B R A R B « Features that modify consideration of the time value of money, e.g.
1 ERAEE AR . periodical reset of interest rates.

REEERA o] SR A e E R The Group holds a portfolio of long-term fixed rate loans for which the

FHE ST IR i R 2R A B Group has the option to propose to revise the interest rate at periodic

SHE o EIEEETRE L RAMES TR reset dates. These reset rights are limited to the market rate at the time

\ﬂ% 5 iElt%l IR ST of revision. The borrowers have an option to either accept the revised
= > S HTZE

rate or redeem the loan at par without penalty. The Group has
determined that the contractual cash flows of these loans are solely

FIFR LI RO ARSI T

EE@Q%K ° ZK%EEE%_}EE%%‘% payments of principal and interest because the option varies the interest
ERTHIRHYRER A I ~ (5 rate in a way that is consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
S ~ LB SRR b s R KT other basic lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount
FELEHIRHBAE - HAdRERA outstanding.
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(v) EFoE (v) Reclassification

[ AN B [ U B B 4 R FEHY 275 Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
TERIGN » FEIHEHESL H % > SR recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business

IS AR A B AE - model for managing financial assets.




4 A 2K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

2. FEEHESE () 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 EMEE (8)

() 7% (&)

(b) 201841 H1HRTEFAMNBER

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(2) Classification (continued)

(b) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

() DAAPEB(ETABSZEHE
B

R A BRI e
A FREI R - DUR R AR
BIFUE B RAAHEE baT AR 2
ERMEE -

UFES % R T2 DAL
EREHE > SUBRHE I
SLE R AR A A B A
SRR IENTT R > ROy
BRFHEL SR - ESERA
BERPLESN  FraftTAeR LR
IO IR B R S RS A -

PREHEC 5 HUARR) R e ES N » Al
BEM R AN Heh 2 — TR > B

(L&t A iR 2 SR -

* B DI BR SRR D A (R
RSt B eREE HE - SR
Hub s suis1s - mRA —8z
SR B (— R R T
SHEEIC, ) B

cEARHEMEE - WA
i1~ BRI ARYH S - HEE
T 05 S e T T e N A B
BRI RIS A - HARI RS
P ERAETEAREE - TR
B % 4H < Rl T HL Ay R e R B
EHEFH AR ¢ 2

- HEE—E S EfRE AT E R
B LA R AR - Higtt
R AT A i 4
HENEREEE TR -

BB LU PHEE T OATERE -
LHBERERT AR > WAL
PEETRE R -

ZEE RN PEE (LA
= (CRNEFEMEED) StASS
Ml ESTEREGE B DU PEE
(B3t A B R TR
8 - MHEE T AlEH ASERATE L
AZ—Ho7 o

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at FVTPL at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as a
financial asset at FVTPL, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and
is so designated by the Management:

- eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as  “an accounting mismatch” )
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

- applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that
basis to the key management; or

- relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those
financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/loss
or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at FVTPL. The
interest component is reported as part of interest income.
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other financial
institutions, investment debt securities without an active market and
loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for
impairment losses.

(iii) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active
markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s Management has both the positive intention and the ability
to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i)
other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or regulatory
requirement or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for
impairment losses.
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Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either
designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.
They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
and discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating income
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the financial
asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities
is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities
and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line
basis. Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts
are taken to the income statement.

2.11 Derecognition of financial instruments

(1) Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss.

From 1 January 2018 any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCl in
respect of equity investment securities designated as at FVOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition
that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1

212

213

Derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to
recognised the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the
value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Group retains the obligation to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset is
derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the
servicing.

(2) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in its principal market or the most advantageous
market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation
techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants, that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.
Precious metals are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious metals are
included in net trading gain/loss.

-
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AEEMER L TIEL A FEE L The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following
P ABEN R T ENHIRGES financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
TEORHHRI R
- JBINMET RN EREE - financial assets that are debt instruments;
* THEFEWHERK - lease receivables;
EE I BIEREET - financial guarantee contracts issued;
+ EEHAVEROREE A + loan commitments issued; and
© BFEIEE - - contract asset.
W8 s S A HERRIRE IR - No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
REFEDL =IEEEITAERBERKR The Group measures loss allowances for 12-month or lifetime ECL
1218 F B8 8] 17 28 A A el A A 15 using a 3-stage approach as follows:
e :
FEE iy PERIERi=VS
Stage Description Impairment Loss
1 JEtTH 12 H ATHIME &8
Performing 12-month ECL
2 JETTHRER RS H - (EE R 3 et Dok T EEIHAN 2 T E SRk

Performing but with credit risk increased significantly at reporting Lifetime ECL
date since its initial recognition

3 N EHIHAN Z FRERE SRR
Non-performing Lifetime ECL

12{8 H N Z THIE ER L5 Rl 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on

THEREHENREAN A a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the

BB R ERIEERE - reporting date.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(1) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. They are
measured as follows:

%

o :
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- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: at
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive; and

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse
the holder less any amounts that the Group expects to recover.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt is

credit-impaired, the Group considers the following factors.

+ The market's assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the
bond yields.

+ The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

- The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt
issuance.

+ The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders
suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

+ The international support mechanisms in place to provide the
necessary support as ‘lender of last resort’ to that country, as well as
the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of
the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political
intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial

position as follows:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from
the gross carrying amount of the assets;

+ loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan
commitment component separately from those on the drawn
component: the Group presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any
excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn
component is presented as a provision; and

+ debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is
recognised in the statement of financial position because the
carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual
asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in
impairment losses on financial instruments in the statement of profit or
loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(1) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

(&
FESEREUBE AR

A SR RF i FE W R HY PR R 2 R
bR ek BASH B (7 2 R A T AT B
FYERNAE - AEEIE TR S
EAYNZ AT

© EEBLENRBESEGYIRK
PRV TEBE L PRes 5

IR ROEBIRLE TR ES L
HAFEWGEH fRer

© ERAFES T RENEFIAS
B LEAYE N T ET LA E
B et © A

SEEE = NGRS YA A E/ NS
I A ) L A 2 T Y B LS B
HIPRER

SR 7 2 B i B LB e
SRR (EAH R o RIELE
il 2 WA TR A BR R (T T 1
i (B AR R S E A HE IRV L 5
kA o ASEEE S AR TR
TR R B2 R 48 {0 & 5 g
LR -

0 SR A B i O LS B L e e A
e TR — (AR 7y - il
SRR AR R Al S B Or i (Y
BN RKARERER - T
e EE A EE R ERRE A
SRS HEE - A RS REIL
7 O B2 (5 P oL B 503 3 ey
I A G sy - S EES "
HAtrggE" Pt (RHE27) - A
FEEERRT "HADR R
EIRR B 5 -

EREERRENEMEE

REwEH - AR
AN £ < O e e e LA
1A U DASE B2 P E S R Y {5
BEMEERTREEIR - B
A RIS R e R A Y Al S
R ACH 2 U 4 B R A B R
o Al EREES  EER R, -

Non-integral financial guarantee contracts

The Group assesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an

integral element of a financial asset that is accounted for as a

component of that instrument or is a contract that is accounted for

separately. The factors that the Group considers when making this

assessment include whether:

- the guarantee is implicitly part of the contractual terms of the debt
instrument;

- the guarantee is required by laws and regulations that govern the
contract of the debt instrument;

- the guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in
contemplation of the debt instrument; and

- the guarantee is given by the parent of the borrower or another
company within the borrower’s group.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is an integral element of the
financial asset, then any premium payable in connection with the initial
recognition of the financial asset is treated as a transaction cost of
acquiring it. The Group considers the effect of the protection when
measuring the fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring
ECL.

If the Group determines that the guarantee is not an integral element of
the debt instrument, then it recognises an asset representing any
prepayment of guarantee premium and a right to compensation for
credit losses. A prepaid premium asset is recognised only if the
guaranteed exposure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a
significant increase in credit risk when the guarantee is acquired.
These assets are recognised in other assets (see Note 27). The Group
presents gains or losses on a compensation right in profit or loss in the
line item ‘net charge of impairment allowances’.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes but not
limited to the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless
there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows
has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is
considered impaired.

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an
existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial
difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as
follows.

- If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the
modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash
shortfalls from the existing asset.

- If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the
existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is
treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the
time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted
from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using
the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.
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The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the reliably estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about the following probable loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

» adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

+ national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all other
financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

-
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(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

WA R BB RSB
R E T H R O AR (ER
& IR BRI RHE I B e
HR AT BHE % el T A 4 SRR IR
HIRAFR R PR ARASR SR (F
BT E AR AERIAAEER) B
HHE 2 PR EUE TR - JR(EIE
I AR R SO D Y
HRHIEAE - WHERRUE RN » A
REGRET A 2RI H 35 R E)
MR > R RIRERRATAIE R
Fold G EEEN ERTEIEAER - |
B AREERA AR B EY
G (B E SRR L AR A
B > WAL AE R TEIRE -

S P L Y < R 2 TR T AR
e AR (E B b R PR
FE EF TR U B 2
ARV B -

ARG EAEHEITAE A A STAE - R
RIS S R R AR U AAR B
S SR ETT 0 o EERHE
EATHE A S E A S AR R
ERR TR s A2 B S i
S ER SR EERTA R
SEARRE ST -

Rl E T SR (E R
PR HFE PRI e
HEER G SRR A S
WELZ AR E AR EER
B PRy S A R S PR A R B
A o DL LR SR A B R e 1L

TTERZE RS TR o DS
G E B SRR E R
Lo KA SRR AR TR
ML E A AR B

B ERRAREING - ESERFTA 2
FREFF R EE IR % - AR
HIR2 EERCEITIGY - T RAHIERY
BB AR - A Rl ey

R BRI s 2R T Y EROR
EESE S

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(2) Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to
the extent of its decrease is reversed through the income statement.
With respect to equity instruments, further fair value changes are
recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses
are not reversed through the income statement.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
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(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from
that entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that
entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in
individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.
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If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
independent valuers less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the
intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises,
by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

-
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

+ Properties

+ Plant and equipment

Over the life of government land leases
2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and
expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on the date of
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the
income statement.
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as expense in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the
land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment
properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual leaves,
they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitiement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if
the amounts are significant.
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2.22 Current and deferred income taxes
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Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In these cases, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of
certain assets including financial instruments at FVOCI (2017:
available-for-sale securities) and premises. However, the deferred income
tax is not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused tax credits and
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of financial
instruments at FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale securities) and revaluation
of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged
to other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the
income statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and
loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.

-
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Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the
statement of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and
are reported as “Repossessed assets” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confimed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.




&L A 8K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

e BRI (8)

2. TEEFBER (#)

2.26 HEAEAL
BRI S R = > B LR B
i -

(a)

(b)

{18 N BG4 Z AR R & > 4

ZAEAFELL T BT 15 Ay B A

B T -

(i) T s ERE A

(i) HAREHEAREIEET K

(iii) AR B AR ] 2 B ]
I EEEHABZRE -

LU AR T —hEG R

SRS R

(i) Wb R A SR E

B R (AIEE—fEEAE] ~ I

Jai 2 T R [R] ZI Ja o =) B

AR -

— RS RS

FEEAE (BREENTE

A AT S — Y

J [ —ERE) -

W E R E—F=ENE

BINE -

—EE-FEEZEHNEEN

Bl —FEREZ S =H

HIBRE ] -

Z AR T R T A

BB A fofl Wk SR Y

1 S B (% 2 1A -

(Vi) &% 113832 {£ (a) TH AT ey
{18 N Frzeil s 2] -

(vii) £ (a)(i) 52 o Fr sk A 8 A 1T
ZENBZEEFEREE
7 s {E N S (B0
FZARZEREAT]) HYE R
ANBZRA

(viii) % 11> 2 B2 H AR F B —#y
ZAEMRR > TP £ 2E
N B T AL AL
ZBEAE] -

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

v)

{18 NAVATEI S PR SR ] 528 2052 %
EPNZ A RS Sl 0E Ji 354
1=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

a person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent.

an entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is

an associate of the third entity.

(iv)

v)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 4.1E and note 5 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to impairment and fair values of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Note 4.1E: impairment of financial instruments involves determining
inputs into the ECL measurement model, including incorporation of
forward-looking information.

Applicable before 1 January 2018
Loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Held-for-maturity and available-for-sale investments in securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment
in securities portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
In determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk
characteristics and performance such as external credit rating and market
price, will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or
performance of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and
assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

(ii) Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s accounting policy for valuation of financial instruments is
included in Note 5. The fair value of the financial instruments is mainly
based on the quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price quoted from a broker/dealer for non-exchanged traded financial
instruments.
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accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

Certain critical accounting judgements
accounting policies are described below:

in applying the Group’s

(i) Classification of financial assets — Applicable from 1 January 2018

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Note 2.8(2)(a)(iii) and Note 2.8(2)(a)(iv): assessment of the business
model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Measurement of ECL — Applicable from 1 January 2018

Note 4.1E: establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,
determining methodology for incorporating forward looking information
into measurement of ECL and selection of models used to measure ECL.

Held-to-maturity investments — Applicable before 1 January 2018

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification requires
significant management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to hold
these investments to maturity other than specific circumstances defined
in HKAS 39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to
maturity or due to significant credit deterioration of such investments, it
will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as
available-for-sales securities. The investments would then be measured
at fair value and not amortised cost.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and impairment allowances are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available
tax credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets
recognised.

-
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The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks, as well as its objectives, risk
management governance structure, policies and processes for managing and the
methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
business processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise.
These risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and
updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups of
risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that
the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee (RC), a standing committee established by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of
risks, approving significant risk management policies and monitoring their
implementation. The CYB Executive Management Meeting Committee, effective
since 21 September 2018 is responsible for approving credit transactions
exceeding Chief Executive (CE) ‘s authority. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The CE is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks, and
material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board
of Directors. The Chief Risk Officer assists the CE in managing the Group’s
various types of risks, and approving material risk exposures or transactions within
his authority. With the support from Risk Management Department (RMD) and
Financial Management Department (FMD), the Deputy Chief Executive (DCE) (the
Chief Risk Officer, effective since September 2018) assists the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks and initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to
better monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to
time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment.
He will also take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The
DCE (the Chief Risk Officer, effective since September 2018) and the General
Manager of RMD are also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or
transactions within their delegated authority. In accordance with the principle of
setting the hierarchy of risk management policies approved by the Board, the
senior management is also responsible for approving the detailed risk
management policies of their responsible areas.
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Financial risk management framework (continued)

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the control functions
from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control environment.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence
processes on product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and proceeding to specific product development
activities. Various risk management units are responsible to conduct independent
risk assessment in the product development process..

Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due diligence
process to the satisfaction of all risk management units and approval from
designated unit heads/the management.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss caused by customers or counterparties who are
unable to or unwilling to meet their contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in
the trading book and banking book, as well as on- and off-balance sheet
transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending, trade finance and
treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes well-defined authorities and
responsibilities for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework (continued)

Risk Management Department (RAD) and RMD are responsible for credit
risk management. Various units of the Group have their respective credit
risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of
defence. Both RAD and RMD, which are independent from the business
units, is responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has
the primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to
ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and
updating credit risk management policies and procedures.
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The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk,

and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews

on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
The Credit Risk Assessment Committee, comprising experts from credit
and other functions, is responsible for making an independent assessment
of material credit applications. Credit applications for non-retail exposures
are independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management
units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings
(in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail
exposures, residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used

to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk
information. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used
for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is

required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group adopts an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to
Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master
rating scale is in compliance with the requirement of the Banking (Capital)

Rules.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

Credit Risk Management provides regular credit management information
reports and ad hoc reports to the RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to
counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and credit risk
concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five
categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in
doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into
account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for advances. Ongoing monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a
payment in cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk
arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is
insured with the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In
the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2017:
Nil).
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)
A. Credit exposures
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the
Group without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit
risk equals their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required
to pay if the guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the
committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as
follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activiies of over-the-counter (“OTC”)
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event.
In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included
to form part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA,
collateral is passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate
the exposures.

Advances to customers and trade bills, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 97. Advances to customers
and trade bills, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the
extent considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk
assessment of individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to
customers is analysed on pages 109 to 110. The components and nature of
contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note 34. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit
quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments,
29.36% (2017: 32.84%) is covered by collateral as at 31 December 2018.

-
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4. SEEFEEHE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 55R% (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. E8&&MST B. Credit quality analysis
(a) HEFERKRESHEEN (a) Credit quality of loans and advances
EEER
THINEE SR (EE The following table sets out information about the credit quality of loans and
EE o IR EY IR - advances to customers. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying amount.
2018 2017
12 HENTER IHEERENSS (EERENKS
=858 TEEESE TEHARE 4t Mzt
Loans and advances to Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
ZRIEEEK customers 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BETT BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
& Pass 47,273,923 718,270 - 47,992,193 41,969,153
REHE Special Mention - 229,016 - 229,016 114,007
Ltk Substandard - - 105,671 105,671 152,318
i Doubtful - - 142,578 142,578 35,519
=g Loss . - 8,910 8,910 12,364
TREAER Loss allowance (139,832) (17,599) (189,268)  (346,699) (246,448)
HRAHE Carrying amount 47,134,091 929,687 67,891 48,131,669 42,036,913
2018 2017
12 FHNTER FHMEERENSS EERERNKS
E8EHE THESE THEAESE daEst Hast
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
AR AT 528 Trade bills at amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
= Pass 1,804,245 - - 1,804,245 1,017,463
EERDE Special Mention . - - - -
e Substandard _ _ _ _ _
s Doubtful . . . . .
5= Loss . . . - -
NERIzE = Loss allowance (1,624) . . (1,624) _
SR Carrying amount 1,802,621 - - 1,802,621 1,017,463
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8
B. FEERDT

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis

(b) BRREF SRR EBHE
BIMVEEERER

IR AE SR T R HAt
RIS ER R K

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions. The amounts in the table

T EEEESELUE represent gross carrying amount.
HI{EYR ©
2018 2017
. 12 [@RMTEE JEEERENKS EERENKS
Balances and placements with EeEE TERAESE TERAESE gazt T
TESRfTRHAM SR banks and other financial Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
FEAVSERR R institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
=t Pass 21,572,238 - - 21,572,238 17,892,804
TERE Special Mention . . . . i,
&R Substandard . . . - -
55 Doubtful . . . . _
| iz Loss . . . - -
TREZER Loss allowance (325) . . (325) i,
RRTHIE Carrying amount 21,571,913 - - 21,571,913 17,892,804

2018 12531 0>
R SR E Z SRTT
Tt Al < R AR a5 B B
ik (2017 4 2 f) -

As at 31 December 2018, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2017: Nil).
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4. SREREHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EGERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. E&BZEoT (&) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) REEFERRESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances (continued)
BIMEEFRER

(&)

NI FLE B LA The following tables present the credit quality of debt securities designated at FVTPL.
&L ATE I ER In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are
BHIEHER - 11 reported.

BATRPRATEILT > H
BT N B R

e,

—
2018
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 A3 T SRR “ast
Lower
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BETT B¥Tx BT BTt A¥TE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FUE B LA E & Financial assets
ANfEzs 2 BRlERE designated at
FVTPL - - 154,449 39,215 170,940 364,604
2017
Aaa Aal & Aa3 A1 £A3 A3 LUF fRETAR Hast
Lower
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FE R LA EE T Financial assets
N 2 BRlERE designated at

FVTPL - - 155,638 39,674 16,913 212,225
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 5ERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. EEEESH (8) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) REEFERRESE (b) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances (continued)
BINEECEER

(&)

B8 ML S Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the Group
EEEEEET L 8 manages its corporate and bank lending risk and risk gradings are applied to the
REEEEE R RTT counterparties with individual counterparty limits set.

B J7 AU i
2 R A (E

EFIRENE T -
RS IRGE R H > R At the end of the reporting period, the credit quality of investment in debt securities
BEFT PR ST AT 2 AR 5E analysed by designation of external credit assessment institution, Moody’s Investor
G RAFHENEEE R Services, or equivalent, is as follows:
SIFTANT ¢
2018 2017
B RAST RS Debt securities and
BBE N EE certificate of deposits
(2017 £ : 54522 at amortised cost 12 & AAYTEHA JHEERENS S EERENS S
PIH RERIER  (2017:Held-to-maturity R FERAEIE TR P o
=) and Loans and Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
receivables) 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BT BT BHETIT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - - - . -
Aal & Aa3 Aa1to Aa3 115,445 - - 115,445 -
A1 ZE A3 AltoA3 1,132,189 - - 1,132,189 -
A3 L\,L—F Lower than A3 423,601 N - 423,601 _
SRR, Unrated . . . . R
TRE R Loss allowance (334) R R (334) )

AREE Carrying amount 1,670,901 - - 1,670,901 -
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4. REREE (8)

41 EEEE (8

B. AR (&)

(b) FRBEF SRR EFHE
BINEERFREER

(&)

DUAPEBEE A
[Eillkemiiesmc=d
2 Gk

(2017 £ : THLHE)

Aaa

Aal Z Aa3
A1 & A3
A3 DIF

HRIHIE
TRHEE

Debt securities at
FVOCI
(2017:
Available-for-sale)

Aaa

Aa1to Aa3
A1to A3
Lower than A3
Unrated

Carrying amount

Loss allowance

#2018 412 A 31 H»
SR (85
H%RIFAGE (2017

&)

Hitr SRR

TREZER

Other financial
assets

Pass

Special Mention
Substandard
Doubtful

Loss
Loss allowance

Carrying amount

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances (continued)

2018 2017

12 & B EYTEEA JHEERERIS S EERERNSS
EEEHE TR THHE st HEst

Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2,630,256 - - 2,630,256 3,833,534
4,691,281 - - 4,691,281 2,900,793
11,041,190 - - 11,041,190 8,294,149
5,910,737 - - 5,910,737 3,708,085
2,229,634 - - 2,229,634 1,183,957
26,503,098 - - 26,503,098 19,920,518
14,428 - - 14,428 -

As at 31 December 2018, there were no overdue or impaired debt securities and
certificates of deposit (2017: Nil).

2018 2017
12 fi& FHyTEEH FHESERENS S EERENGS
EEHEE TREHESHR TEHESE 4zt Mgt
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
339,583 8 - 339,591 770,708
- - 1,819 1,819 1,913
- - 534 534 534
- - 125 125 31
(120) - (1,305) (1,425) (57)
339,463 8 1,173 340,644 773,129
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(continued)

4. SRUERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8
B. FEER MM ()

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(b) BRéEEFERXREHER
IMITEERFEEER (&)

(b) Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances (continued)

2018 2017

'-°a"_c°mf_"“me"t$ 12 {5 TR I EERENS EERENSE S
and financial i TG TIGIE vt Gt

FRRJEGKHYERK  guarantee contracts Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
R ES R Rk issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total Total
BT BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
& Pass 11,289,208 70,204 - 11,359,412 10,995,939
%ﬁ‘i Special Mention . 81 ,660 - 81 ,660 _
KR Substandard N . - - -
b Doubtful - - 8,597 8,597 8,598
| iz Loss . . . . -
FRTETEL Total amount 11,289,208 151,864 8,597 11,449,669 11,004,537
ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ Loss allowance (8,427) (22) - (8,449) _

HIEERHI A S50 H
A A B B R AT AR
fE > FSI RSN - 2
TEH TG RO A
o — Ry R E A R
TR MERE - QB
H AN 2 BCEE
A fE RN A B R R (B
B AR Z R B3
A B RS
ZHEAESRRIR A IS
W -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the

borrower.
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4. SRUERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8
B. FEERS (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
(c) BHRIREE

(c) Advances overdue but not impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

HR A B SR AT A

B
2018
AR AR
A 3 @A 3EAE 6 EHHE #H
WUT  FEBEEA FEB1E w1 E 4EET
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one Overdue
three orless year or less for
months or but over but over over one
less three months six months year Total
AT BT BB BT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
= R Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- 15 - Mortgages 6,389 - - - 6,389
- Hit - Others 116,694 - - - 116,694
INH] Corporate
- PEEEEK - Commercial loans 47,923 - - - 47,923
- EERE - Trade finance - - - - -
171,006 - - - 171,006
Ak Trade bills - - . . i}
171,006 - - - 171,006
2017
TR i A
i 3 H 3fE A A 6 fEHH A
LY AEE6EA AEE1E 1A HEEt
Overdue Overdue for Overdue
for six months for one
three orless  yearorless Overdue
months or but over but over for over
less three months six months one year Total
BT AT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ZEER Advances to customers
HEPN Personal
- 1515 - Mortgages 2,713 - - - 2,713
- HAth - Others 77,820 - - 1,153 78,973
INH] Corporate
- PEEEE - Commercial loans 27,182 - - - 27,182
- EHRE - Trade finance - - - - -
107,715 - - 1,153 108,868
g 5 Trade bills - - - - -
107,715 - - 1,153 108,868

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

B. Credit quality analysis (continued)

(d) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:
2018 2017
gEx  BERETHE e R ETE
Market Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BT BB BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 5 - - -
- Others 352 - - -
Corporate
- Commercial loans 176,200 318,122 184,890 344,565
- Trade finance 80,602 - 14,049 18,090
257,159 318,122 198,939 362,655
Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances 189,268 70,115
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 318,122 362,655
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 167,128 193,725
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 90,031 5,214

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no impaired trade bills (2017: Nil).

-
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SEE A ERZENEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 5ERkE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
B. EEEESH (8) B. Credit quality analysis (continued)
(d) BESS (&) (d) Impaired advances (continued)
BESENREZEEE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
MR
2018 2017
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHESBEOREZ ZFE Gross classified or impaired advances to
FREEER customers 257,159 200,201
FHESBEREZZFE Gross classified or impaired advances to
P R e = E Yk customers as a percentage of gross
Eb advances to customers 0.53% 0.47%
B SRR e e Specific provisions made in respect of such
advances 189,268 70,115
FRESTBEOREZ Z & Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are
HERIEA RS E & either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s
SYJAR TIER TR classification of loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.
B TSR L SREE AR
fili Ry AR EGR -
FiE A e 2 A5 (E B RUE The specific provisions represent lifetime ECL (2017:individually assessed
WY 4% 5 TH R impairment allowances) for credit impaired exposures.

(2017 4 : {ERIERME 2%
{E#E(H) -
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(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 5ERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. EREHE C. Concentration risk
(a) FE4F R M E A (E A (a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
BUERT = SRR enhancement
BRGSO FR DA Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to assets in the consolidated
Y& Y B e (5 P LB 4 statements of financial position are as follows:
T
2018 2017
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFRERAT e HoAM < il A A Balance with banks and other
f4E R financial institutions 15,269,350 17,111,899
TEER 1T e Ml 4 Rl i — Placements with banks and other
FE+ T\ AR > E financial institutions maturing
HATFI between one and twelve months 6,302,563 780,905
SUE B LA P E S BT A Financial assets designated at fair
s TREE value through profit or loss 364,604 212,225
TR T A Derivative financial instruments 122,680 129,146
DA SEAE S bat AE A4 Investment in debt securities at fair
W s 2 BT A& value through other comprehensive
income 26,503,098 19,920,518
DL eR R AR 5T & 2 55 5% Investment in securities at amortised
=i cost 1,670,901 -
FEEMRE 5 EE Advances to customers and trade
bills 49,934,290 43,054,376
100,167,486 81,209,069
B B & B AR R DLk Maximum exposure to credit risk relating to items unrecorded in the consolidated
Y IE B 0 B = (S s a0 statements of financial position are as follows:
T
2018 2017
BT AEEETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEEEEREE Direct credit substitutes 10,005 9,930
B SRR 2 SR E fE Transaction-related contingencies 30,801 34,579
B B AR SR B & Trade-related contingencies 604,858 999,301
T R 75 25 ot il S S R 4 Commitments excluding those that
U 2 AR are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 3,652,073 2,646,274
4,297,737 3,690,084

-
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SEE A ERZENEE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. SRUERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8
C. E&EHE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Concentration risk (continued)

(b) AT & PSR4
®

UM B % P & a2
TSR HATHRIT
Ti2 AR SRR BRZ
EE R ARAE R R

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

Yl -
2018
FEA AR WESE
& PR BEzaath HRRE Rkt EREHS
% covered by
Gross collateral
advances or other Classified Specific Collective
to customers security or impaired provision provision
AWt AT AR AR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EEBEZ S Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEemicE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Yt - Property development 2,827,961 59.39% - - 7,351
- VEERE - Property investment 3,386,914 99.82% 21 - 4,237
- BRI - Financial concerns 3,257,733 18.94% - - 21,878
- AL - Stockbrokers 909,296 8.64% - - 2,842
- i R - Wholesale and retail
trade 3,790,704 85.64% - - 5,432
- Bhgde - Manufacturing 1,056,826 24.02% - - 2,854
- T R - Transport and transport
equipment 448,768 99.98% - - 3,246
- (RETESED - Recreational activities 37,260 100.00% - - 26
- HalRHL - Information technology 467,658 2.33% - - 143
- Hith, - Others 4,729,181 64.46% 17,832 2,133 5,594
fEA Individuals
- EEEEAHEETE - Loans for the purchase of
TN SRRt flats in Home
BB B Ovmarship Scheme,
- rivate Sector
HEEZ B Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 37,146 100.00% - - 19
- EEHM e - Loans for purchase of
j=14 other residential
properties 2,825,257 100.00% 5 - 1,314
- 4t - Others 3,745,888 94.59% 352 329 7,401
AEE T Sk Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 27,520,592 69.79% 18,210 2,462 62,337
HoE Trade finance 1,054,516 73.24% 80,602 80,251 1,911
AEEHELYMEHZ G5 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 19,903,260 28.32% 158,347 106,555 93,183
Gross advances to
customers 48,478,368 52.84% 257,159 189,268 157,431

EREHECEEIEEE
BAERCIAY 12 {8 H R Ik
B B ER S FHIHE
(2017 £ ¢ grERFEZ
IREAER)

S

The collective provisions represent 12-month and lifetime ECLs (2017:collectively
assessed impairment allowances) for not-credit impaired exposures.
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SEE I BERZEMEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SRUERREE (8)

41 EERE (8

C. E&EHE (8

(continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(b) ATHESEZERERK
QR (&)
RIS Loans for use in Hong Kong
T PEeRisE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Vg - Property development
- VPEE - Property investment
- RisE - Financial concerns
- SR - Stockbrokers
- R EEE - Wholesale and retail
trade
- Bl - Manufacturing
- ey R - Transport and transport
equipment
- PRHDEE) - Recreational activities
- BEREY - Information technology
- H{h - Others
fEA Individuals
- e EE A HE T - Loans for the purchase of
TN SRS flats in Home
Bl g R Ownership Scheme,
4 e Private Sector
LAt Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme
- MEEHEM YR - Loans for purchase of
BER other residential
properties
- Hithr - Others
AEA S Sk Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
H IR Trade finance
AEEHELYMEHIZ E5K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong
TR Gross advances to

customers

C. Concentration risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2017
FEA B A A g T RIRHEZ HERHhEZ
P EREEEE wazEmt BRE B R AR
Individually Collectively
Gross % covered by assessed assessed
advances collateral Classified impairment impairment
to customers or other security or impaired allowances allowances
BT AT AT AT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
3,211,855 51.01% - - 17,056
3,733,127 98.56% - - 15,300
1,893,717 34.69% - - 9,584
872,019 10.00% - - 4,540
1,740,306 82.88% - - 8,074
2,870,953 20.26% - - 14,240
1,778,285 32.64% - - 9,457
17,209 100.00% - - 67
483,175 2.50% - - 2,557
5,067,141 78.17% - - 21,800
38,303 99.99% - - 30
3,074,108 99.61% - - 2,153
3,188,308 97.93% 108 - 2,378
27,968,506 67.50% 108 - 107,236
715,393 54.54% 14,049 2,412 3,415
13,599,462 46.95% 186,044 67,703 65,682
42,283,361 60.67% 200,201 70,115 176,333




4 A 2K
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tE A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

C. Fle&E+E (&) C. Concentration risk (continued)

(c) FEHEREBSEZER (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
B
THIRN® P a2 it The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
HIEE T EEER S locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For an
T et A EEE R advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
FEES AR - SR E customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

IR A BT AR EL 2
AR R - AR
WRS EYEOR N Z FRAE -

72018412 5 31 H
31 December 2018

E—REZ

BEBE {12 AR

B BB HEE BB HEE BHERR RESEER
Stage 1 &

Stage 3 Stage 2 Impaired or

Total advances impairment impairment Overdue classified

to customers allowances allowances advances advances

AT BETIT EETT AT AT

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

o Hong Kong 39,787,907 91,403 120,254 277,438 107,509
PR A Mainland China 5,273,038 97,865 19,986 51,680 147,631
HAit Others 3,417,423 - 17,191 2,094 2,019
48,478,368 189,268 157,431 331,212 257,159

5% PSR ASETT (1R % of total advances to

customers 0.53%
Ve AE ESE AR HTSLT{E Market value of collateral

held against impaired

advances to

customers 318,122
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LR A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
C. flg&EHE (&) C. Concentration risk (continued)
(c) FEHERRSEZER (c) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

SEEE (8D

2017 12 H 31 H
31 December 2017

EREHl s &raatiz A
Eg e IRAE 2 IRAE 2 BHAER FEE 7 AR
Individually ~ Collectively

assessed assessed Impaired or

Total advances to impairment  impairment Overdue classified

customers allowances allowances advances advances

AT BT AT AT AT

HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

e Hong Kong 36,526,969 - 150,158 91,739 108
R AT Mainland China 3,853,528 69,823 17,023 106,201 198,198
Hthr Others 1,902,864 292 9,152 1,895 1,895
42,283,361 70,115 176,333 199,835 200,201

(5% P48 %EE (7EE % of total advances to

customers 0.47%
SR BRI Market value of collateral

held against impaired

advances to

customers 362,655
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sEEI B EERNTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
D. #iLfiE A= D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements
AR E S (S S R The Group holds collateral and other credit enhancements against certain of its
B 7 4 T 5 R e R G credit exposures. The following table sets out the principal types of collateral held
Th(E - NRAILEEHEAR against different types of financial assets.
[EI TR AH A <8 Rl & 728 T 65
Y F A T -
B RIEER Type of credit exposure

SR B R AH R B R S S L
Percentage of exposure that is subject to
collateral requirements

SRR
2018412 31 H 2017F12H 31 H Principal type of
31 December 2018 31 December 2017 collateral held

RHMRTEEE Trading derivative assets 100.00% 100.00% e
Cash
SR AT e SR Derivatives assets held for risk 100.00% 100.00% 4
management Cash
BEXZFIGE Loans and advances to retail
customers
FARERK Mortgage lending 100.00% 99.61% ey
Residential Property
BN Personal loans 94.65% 97.95% bz
None
DEEERE Loans and advances to 45.88% 54.00% PHERERE - NEEE
corporate customers EOpEA v il

Commercial property,
Floating charges
over corporate

assets
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LR A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8
D. #mfIEAEE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

PTAEMm
AR AT ISR
R R A
HEEIREAT » DLGRRRDT
AL (E B -

PTA SR S RIS
SyFETN ~ BLIEEAT 5 ¥
F CCPs 5% EIE
foeT E E S g
(ISDA) 1y, F5a4E54A
e HEI TINS5 « — %
ime - iR E SR
FEREERT - fila0
EIRNEE B ER
- IE T AT A R 524
TSR - WAEE
BME - HREZSHTF
LEEURE - REET
ISDA fis#fHEH) CSA
EEZFE > HEER
REE R S TFRETT
LR S FE
B - HNELELERS
ST CCPs B IET
LB SRR H A
ffi °

Derivatives

The Group mitigates the credit risk of derivatives by entering into master netting
agreements and holding collateral in the form of cash and marketable securities.

Derivative transactions are transacted on exchanges, with CCPs or entered into under
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting agreements.
In general, under these agreements, in certain circumstances - e.g. when a credit
event such as a default occurs - all outstanding transactions under the agreement
with the counterparty are terminated, the termination value is assessed and only a
single net amount is due or payable in settlement of all transactions with the
counterparty. The Group executes a Credit Support Annex in conjunction with the
ISDA agreement, which requires the Group and its counterparties to post collateral to
mitigate counterparty credit risk. Collateral is also posted daily in respect of
derivatives transacted on exchanges and with CCPs.
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tE A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. REREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
D. #mAIHAEE ()

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

EEEEERK
AEEB BRI FRIFE AT
LTV & HE P D
HHSERCET E R
EHL - LTV RyEssiaas
(BCE RO 2 80 ) B
A mEE TR -
EEFAHET SR EEE
RIEFEEEREREE
HETTHONT © it 2018 ££
12 7 31 B FERE
HHE SRR T (E/2
i 5000 JT (2017
8 i) > S ERU
PO e (2017
i 4E) o

1hRE P AU
HNEEERNEES
B MEEFAVEER
SRR 288 45 1A R B A
BRAIERE - 28000 > Fin
FERLEISMRIE - FTRAAR
S B B OR A SRAER
AP mIERR - AR
BT DLz T =
BE Bt S —IEfL
A A AEEN
B A B B A
TREEIERSE -

EEHINMEEFN
EEIRN - AEE
P EFUE TR
AR (S R AR
—OFEREE - BRE
SREER > AR
A e T AR Y
B LAHIE & RO8 ULTT
B -

Residential mortgage lending

The Group manages the credit exposures for mortgage loans and advances to
customers by using ranges of loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio
of the gross amount of the loan — or the amount committed for loan commitments — to
the value of the collateral. The value of the collateral for mortgage loans is based on
the collateral value at origination updated based on changes in house prices indices.
For credit-impaired loans the value of collateral is based on the most recent
appraisals. At 31 December 2018, the net carrying amount of credit impaired
mortgage loans and advances amounted to HK$5,000 (2017: Nil) and there were no
collaterals held against those loans and advances (2017: Nil).

Loans and advances to corporate customers

The general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant
indicator of credit quality of a loan extended to it. However, collateral provides
additional security and the Group generally requests that corporate borrowers provide
it. The Group may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, floating
charges over all corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.

Notwithstanding focusing on corporate customers’ creditworthiness, the Group
updates the valuation of collateral held against all loan to corporate customers
basically upon annual credit review. For credit-impaired loans, the Group updates the
valuation of collateral more frequently because it provides input into determining loan
recovery actions.
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8
D. #mfIEAEE (8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

D. Collateral held and other credit enhancements (continued)

BRE PR KK
(8
2018 4E 12 A 31 H» &
J5 B RS BORHR T
B OE R OB W
256,802,000 7t (2017
A RS 198,939,000
7T ) - AHFE TSR A b
(EZEREEDZE) (5
{5 By 318,122,000
Je (2017 4F ¢ B
362,655,000 71 )- ¥
HESAIMN S - P
S EEN BB e
EUREE =k

HAr A m g EHE

B b 2% P 51 A4 H L
Hb o REEEERA HA
FARY AT SR (5
Jit > B —F RO EHE E
L M= (DR TIEGN
e

PR E TR E
AR S P i A
SRR et T HUAS
HEAE HAERDFFAT
ERNEE IR A E
FEEWE -

Fo itz

KB E A I
BT RIS -
AYE N @R
VAR BB -

Loans and advances to corporate customers (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the net carrying amount of credit-impaired loans and advances
to customers amounted to HK$256,802,000 (2017:HK$198,939,000 ) and the value of
identifiable collateral (mainly commercial properties) held against those loans and
advances amounted to HK$318,122,000 (2017: HK$362,655,000). For each loan, the
value of disclosed collateral is capped to the nominal amount of the loan that is held
against.

Other types of collateral and credit enhancements

In addition to the collateral included in the tables above, the Group holds other types
of collateral and credit enhancements, such as second charges and floating charges
for which specific values are not generally available.

Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

Details of financial and non-financial assets obtained by the Group during the year by
taking possession of collateral held as security against loans and advances and held
at the year end, are shown below.

2018412 H 31 H #2017 12 H 31 H
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

AT AT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Property 176,467 -

The Group’s policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly
manner. The Group does not generally use the non-cash collateral for its own
operations.
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4. REREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TRHIfE SRR NG

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
FIRBEEFNSE
TR Bt

FERTRE 2.14 By ErETEL

ERE RS

B TR LR
B RN bR E 1
IR - AL & R A
BHGHE N TSRER %
SR BB SRR
YN CE 5% N CPAEL S
Y - i EiEE B AEN
BRI - IR

(B P JRE S B R LR Y
fEERFE - PURRTHEM:

SPEIY H 2 i A L

A E R B SR

EEFEER

© EEERES HORERE
B R &Y R
(PD): f1

« AEWIARHETD R b i
SHATRAIN BEATTRIER AT
AW PD (FETH{TRK
TS S A A B

)

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

See accounting policy in Note 2.14.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

+ the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

- the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of
initial recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in
prepayment expectations).
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8
E. TRHIfESIRAMINET

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)

(EEE =l

AER R AR A R T
SR IE R T R 4 B )
g7 R AR IE
Ao FESA R B (5 B
b ek - (SR EER
IR R R R Y E
MENIEEANRKESR -
BN RAUAN R
PENIER R -

W EE R ERAE
TARAE » (HEHEAE
o (5 B TR Y
b 28 E - Bl
W EERERFH 12
Z TR R 22 52N
PEEREBEES 2 13
Z IR A

B E AR EE
JEUB SRR AR R
ARREIER - 21k
AR R bR
AR EE R RS
o EERPEEESRIIT
BRI -

Credit risk grades

The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced
credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the
nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring
increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is smaller than the difference
between credit risk grades 2 and 3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial recognition based on
available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing
monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk
grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the following data.
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4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERRE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TEEA{SEBLMINEE E. Amounts arising from ECL

fEE bR Significant increase in credit risk

REEEEL A A R s TE The Group allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data
B8 e E 4K B ) that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced
B o R ERIE R S credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
BiC 6 FE R[5 (5 & JE factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the
fgEek - (=& 4 nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

EARE R R E
MNEBRBRKESR -
BERFEHUANREDN

HEEFERAREE -
R ZERO eyl
Corporate exposures Retail exposures All exposures
© EHHETEPRRESOER - (bl - WEUENE PTR80S - RS - BEFEmILREM R — &
Fatimdr B EE - HESEE - R HIERZ (T EhRy

BB EAIBIT40 : BRI  BATATFFR -
EIEER « MSFENENY  HEEE
& EEEEE

+ Information obtained during periodic - Internally collected data on customer « Payment record — this includes
review of customer files - e.g. audited behaviour — e.g. utilisation of credit card overdue status as well as a range of
financial statements, management facilities variables about payment ratios
accounts, budgets and projections.

Examples of areas of particular focus
are: gross profit margins, financial
leverage ratios, debt service coverage,
compliance with covenants, quality of
management, senior management

changes
- EESERIBIEYE - W - SN - T EIEMIEIE - T IREAIEH
s EraPayEE(t
- Data from credit reference agencies, - Affordability metrics - Utilisation of the granted limit

press articles, changes in external
credit ratings

CERNEENEFAE SRR - EE2ERMIINTES - GRETERE - BRI
(CDS) fafs (ARA) (G

+ Quoted bond and credit default swap - External data from credit reference - Requests for and granting of
(CDS) prices for the borrower where agencies, including industry-standard forbearance

available credit scores

© A FTRAYEBUS » BB RO B SRR IEBFISUE IR HYER A FIA K
R EE N B A A AR TEHIEEAL

« Actual and expected significant - Existing and forecast changes in
changes in the political, regulatory and business, financial and economic
technological environment of the conditions

borrower or in its business activities

S
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8
E. TRHIfESIRAMINET

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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BB b LT E
b FRSUIIR G i Ay £ 2
WA o AEERE DA
BRI - E
FOER AR DL RS
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e R EEHIRIRNI LIS
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HEEER -

AEEE RIS
WAV T R Y
My > AR b 7 BR R
A PR R T SR E LY
TERAEE - UK FHHASS
e e R R HE RS T
EEERVEL -

o3 AT B AR R
BRI RZE
KOENRE b2 HIRYRR
B0 DU HA A
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BB BRIEASY
DIV APNE 2 il
B> FHEAVEBKKS
SRS AR R
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Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of
PD for exposures. The Group collects performance and default information about its
credit risk exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region and by type of product and
borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased
from external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to
change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between
changes in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors as well as
in-depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g. forbearance experience)
on the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-economic indicators include:
GDP growth, benchmark interest rates and unemployment. For exposures to specific
industries and/or regions, the analysis may extend to relevant real estate prices.

The Group formulates a “base case” view of the future direction of relevant economic
variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios (see
discussion below on incorporation of forward-looking information). The Group then
uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of PDs.




4 A 2K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

tE A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. REREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TRHIfE SRR NG

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)

RECERBRETREE
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REFEE RS R
IR AERI AR A &
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HME - EHERGRE
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Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by
portfolio and include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a
backstop based on delinquency.

The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, based on the Group’s quantitative modelling, the remaining
lifetime PD is determined to have increased by more than a predetermined range.

Using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience,
the Group may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in
credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of
such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis
on a timely basis.
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4. SREREHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 888 (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
E. TEHl(S a5 mEE E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(&)
REGERGEEREE Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly (continued)
B (&)
VEB—IER4FE R » R As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no
EE BEEEL R later than when an asset is more than 30 days past due or, for certain types of
HAkE e 30 KE(F-EbiH exposure, more than 15 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the
TN FREEE 15 Kk number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment
=5 ey (5 & R\ P Y 2 has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any grace
BN o AR E period that might be available to the borrower.

ST EE & T H 2L
2R AU 2 B 5 Y
REORWEE - HEE I
H AR R BT BE
TESHIEMEIRY] -

7 [ 4t o L e The Group monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant
AR PSS b B 1 increases in credit risk by regular reviews to confirm that:
HOATREAERY AR > DA
2
B
- LRGSR L « the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an
B LR RS B JE exposure is in default;
FRHVEEERS N
c EHEEHIR 30 Ky « the criteria align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
IR B2 AR Y and
EERE R —2 5 A
- 12 ([ H AVELIE R + there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between
(55 1 PEES) HI{FE4E 12-month PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD (stage 2).

HINAVELRER (5
2 [ER) Z[HAVIR
B > AL IEHIIE
FAEGEIH) -
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4. REREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 EEEE (8D
E. TRHIfE SRR NG

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
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Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including
changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
current or potential credit deterioration of the customer.

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result
in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
significantly reflects comparison of:

« its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with

- the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the
original contractual terms.

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
forbearance activities) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Group’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of
default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the
original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised
terms.
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Modified financial assets (continued)

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of
interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and
corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy.

For financial assets modified as part of the Group’s forbearance policy, the estimate of
PD reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Group’s ability to
collect interest and principal and the Group’s previous experience of similar
forbearance action. As part of this process, the Group evaluates the borrower’s
payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various
behavioural indicators.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk
and an expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is
credit-impaired / in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered
to be credit-impaired / in default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that
the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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(&)

BYESR Definition of default

B DU SR - A The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

EERBZ SRS EE

£

- FEALHEIGHERIUE - the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
FeHE R L IR YT By recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
T CAEEfRER) »
B K AT RE 4240
A EEAREETE
EHIE 5

o (B CaEHE BT T HAE « the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the
E R EEETHEE Group. Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has
90 K- —HZFFER breached an advised limit or been advised of a limit smaller than the current
8 AT {5 R A 25 S 4R amount outstanding.
[ BRI e IR I 4R
/DR BRI B R Y AT
Ry o

FEHE SR NS EL In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Group considers indicators that are:

B REEGEELT

FEEE

s EM - EBREES + qualitative — e.g. breaches of covenant;

- TR — FladEieik + quantitative — e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the
BE R AR [E—81T same issuer to the Group; and
NEAEEN S —IH
HiE

o FERAPIERRE 38 R e - based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

EESRIE R -

SR T B 2R ELY Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
e FLER A AT Er significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

W = 1 [ 19 4 7% i 82

b DU B AL -

AEERH 2 B EE The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Group for regulatory
RAFEE BB E AR capital purposes.

FH 8 P 788 B9 3E 98 —
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Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of
whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Group formulates a ‘base case’ view of
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more
additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the countries where the Group
operates, supranational organisations such as the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development (“OECD”) and the International Monetary Fund, and
selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The “base case” represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information
used by the Group for other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The
other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.
Periodically, the Group carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate
its determination of these other representative scenarios.

The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses
for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit
losses.
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(&)

PARTIEERGERE (&) Incorporation of forward-looking information (continued)

KBS RE S U R The economic scenarios included the forecast of the following key indicators.

FERERYTEON] -

2018

EEEEAR R A FE A (E 2R Hong Kong Real GDP Growth Rate 1.7%-3.0%
B B PR R PN A EE A B R China Real GDP Growth Rate 6.0%-6.7%
e e SR China Unemployment Rate 3.75%-3.9%
BHRESRVEHE - THER - #5 HKMA Hong Kong Loans & Advances 0.1%-10.9%
EEETYEYIERRE Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index -11.9%-9.0%

AR N NE Hong Kong Private Consumption 2.8%-7.3%
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Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following
variables:
- probability of default (PD);

- loss given default (LGD);
- exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models
and other historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as
described above.

PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical
rating models, and assessed using rating tools tailored to the various categories of
counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on internally
compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is
available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate
counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then
this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated
considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates.
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the
financial asset. For loans secured by retail property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in
determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios
and, for real estate lending, to reflect possible changes in property prices.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a
financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts. For some financial assets, EAD is
determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in
time using scenario and statistical techniques.
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Measurement of ECL (continued)

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial
assets for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Group measures ECL
considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any
borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk
management purposes, the Group considers a longer period. The maximum
contractual period extends to the date at which the Group has the right to require
repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for retail overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment
component, the Group measures ECL over a period longer than the maximum
contractual period if the Group’s contractual ability to demand repayment and cancel
the undrawn commitment does not limit the Group’s exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment
structure and are managed on a collective basis. The Group can cancel them with
immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day
management, but only when the Group becomes aware of an increase in credit risk at
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk
management actions that the Group expects to take and that serve to mitigate ECL.
These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the facility and/or turning the
outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms.
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(&)
STEEREEES (8) Measurement of ECL (continued)
B IR S H Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial
BERVELRE T 0 R instruments are grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

TRt SR
B B AL

FIFE
R TR « instrument type;
- EEEEER - credit risk grading;
o SERHR TR - collateral type;
o BEHHSEIVER + LTV ratio for retail mortgages;
fEELL
- VIAHERRH - date of initial recognition;
- FEREIHHHE + remaining term to maturity;
cTESR - industry; and
o fEER NIRRT - - geographic location of the borrower.
T ORI E 4H B N Y The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a
BRFEENEEN particular group remain appropriately homogeneous.
AR ETEME
T o
BN EE E SRR For portfolios in respect of which the Group has limited historical data, external
[REVIEELH S - YMEREE benchmark information is used to supplement the internally available data. The
HEZOR A 7S S portfolios for which external benchmark information represents a significant input into
15 o AMTEEE R measurement of ECL are as follows.

Rt R EU G THINE
ERENEYmMA 0 &
AT
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance reconciliation

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of
the impairment allowance by class of financial instrument. The reconciliation is
prepared by comparing the position of impairment allowance between 1 January and
31 December at transaction level.

2018
12 {E A TERA JHEERENSS HERENSS
EEEEE TEHARSE TEEARSE “ast
K FPHEER Loans and advances to Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
customers 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R1R1H Balance at 1 January 147,159 8,049 70,424 225,632
HEZ 12 (@ B ATER=SES Transfer to 12-month ECL
= 1,166 (1,166) - .
EEIHSERENNETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
Hiksa not credit-impaired (4,683) 4,683 _ _
BEE(EERENRLSTE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
E‘}}E credit-impaired (300) (51 3) 813 .
i ANSREE New financial assets
originated 80,297 3,528 . 83,825
[ iR O Financial assets that have
been derecognised (36,315) (4,545) (514) (41,374)
B2 Write-offs - . (24,926) (24,926)
Changes in models . . N .
Unwind of discount of loans
impairment loss . B 2,071 2,071
SN LA Foreign exchange and other
movements (169) (571) (2,143) (2,883)
REEENEETR Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (47,323) 8,134 143,543 104,354
K127331H Balance at 31 December 139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699
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(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
12 fE H TR JHERRERS S ERERENSS
E85E THEARGHE THEAGHE &t
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
H5EE Trade bills 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
®1B1H Balance at 1 January 121 . R 121
B2 12 & S TEHESES Transfer to 12-month ECL
# . - - -
B HEEORENKEETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAEsE not credit-impaired N - -
EEEERETMETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired . . - -
i ASREE New financial assets
originated 4,136 - - 4,136
ERIFEETISRISE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (121) R R (121)
Bt Write-offs . - - -
isidb )] Changes in models . . - -
SN e LAt e, Foreign exchange and other
movements (152) . _ (152)
EEENEETE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (2,360) - - (2,360)
®12831H8 Balance at 31 December 1,624 R R 1,624
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(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
" 12 {@ HE9TEHA JHERRERS S ERERENSS
DL &R R A 5 HE ~ 2 ¥ Debt securities and (S S TEHESE gt
S AT Certificate of deposits at Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
amortised cost 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W181H Balance at 1 January . R } }
HZ 12 (A FATERHZS#5 Transfer to 12-month ECL
# . - - -
B HEEORENKEETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAfsE not credit-impaired . . - -
EEEEREIMETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired . . - -
AR E New financial assets
originated 572 _ B 572
ERIFEETSRIEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised R _ _
Bt Write-offs . - - -
isidb )] Changes in models . . - -
SN Ry A ) Foreign exchange and other
movements (1) _ B (1)
EEENENTE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (237) R B (237)

B12831H Balance at 31 December 334 R . 334
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(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
A0 PEBER ) JH0L - Debt securities and 2ERGEE  FREREGES  SERENES
2EWS B85 K Certificate of deposits at (SR e e T gust
g fair value through other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
comprehensive income 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
wW1H1H Balance at 1 January 18,829 B } 18,829
2 12 (A FATERHZS#5 Transfer to 12-month ECL
B - - - .
ERIHEERENELETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAfsE not credit-impaired . . - -
EE(SEURENVRETER  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired } ) )
AR E New financial assets
originated 8,766 _ _ 8,766
E&RIERNSREEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (3,576) R R (3,576)
= Write-offs ) ) ] )
TR, Changes in models . } ) )
SN Ry A ) Foreign exchange and other
movements 38 _ B 38
BEEENETETE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (9,629) - - (9,629)

W12H31H Balance at 31 December 14,428 R . 14,428
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(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
- - 12 {@ HE9TEHA JHERRERS S ERERENSS
EIRTRHMSRI%E Balances and placements (SR e TEHESE gzt
HEER R AP with banks and other Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
financial institutions 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 323 R } 323
HZ 12 (A FATERHZS#5 Transfer to 12-month ECL
# . . . .
B HEEORENKEETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAfsE not credit-impaired . . - -
EREERENRSSTEE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired . . - -
AR E New financial assets
originated 640 _ B 640
ERIFEETSRIEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (323) R _ (323)
Bt Write-offs . - - -
isidb )] Changes in models . . - -
SN R A e Foreign exchange and other
movements (19) _ B (19)
EEENENTE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (296) R B (296)

B12831H Balance at 31 December 325 R . 325
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E. TEHIS SR8 E. Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
12 {8 B HI7EEA JEEERENKE EERENSS
EERE TRESE TERSIE st
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
HrSpEE Other financial assets 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 631 R } 631
HZ 12 (HFATERHZS#5 Transfer to 12-month ECL
}E - - - -
HEIHMSEREYEETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAEsE not credit-impaired i} } ) )
EREERENRSSTEE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired (6) . 6 -
AR New financial assets
originated 16 _ B 16
EARIFEETHERIERE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (10) R _ (10)
S Write-offs ) } ) )
sidb )] Changes in models . . - -
SN R A e Foreign exchange and other
movements (2) _ ) 3)
EEENEETE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (509) - 1,300 791

B12831H Balance at 31 December 120 R 1,305 1,425
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(&)
BERERR (8D Loss allowance reconciliation (continued)
2018
. 12 {@ HE9TEHA JHERRERS S ERERENSS
BERE R EWEME  Loan commitments and (SR S TEHESE gzt
& financial guarantee Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
contracts issued 12-month ECL credit-impaired credit-impaired Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W1H1H Balance at 1 January 15,305 R } 15,305
HZ 12 (HFATERHZS#5 Transfer to 12-month ECL
# . - - -
B HEEORENKEETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
HAfsE not credit-impaired 1) 1 - -
EEEEREIMETE  Transfer to lifetime ECL
e credit-impaired . - -
AR E New financial assets
originated 5,248 - - 5,248
ERIFEETSRIEE  Financial assets that have
been derecognised (9,807) R _ (9,807)
Bt Write-offs . - - -
isidb )] Changes in models . . - -
SN Ry A ) Foreign exchange and other
movements (110) 1) - (111)
EEENENTE Net remeasurement of loss
allowance (2,208) 22 - (2,186)

W12H831H Balance at 31 December 8,427 22 . 8,449
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

e BRI (8)

4. ERLVERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiEEE 4.2 Market risk

735 B\ 2 15 R Rl 7 5 (A%
CBER ~ AR~ RS {ER - B
) KB HESRITIMNE ~ 7
- ISR E E (L
T T REAS AT BT AR - A
B2 8 B T 69 T 35 L B R
% EHE IR EERH P - T
S E R EAR - AR ALE
W L o e 4 R < S TS 4
SR - GESEE YR b B R
FIAEREEL T - ARCE A LE
I 2 %5 o m R A AR Y T 5
b o (EHEES BRI (RS -

AR g IR e b B H A SR E A
JFRE TSR - T R
EEEZEY - SIETE R
REHD B - & EIH > S A
- MBI AT SRR
B ERRA - ihEsEE
JEfEAT B E I - IR
A SR [ 6 T 8 iR T DL
HEERAIMREEEITIE I - WHECR
RERR A1 F 7 35 [ B £ 42 )
FE AR R A

LR A 5 L B 5 A B R
o e SR SRR
il o £ bR AR
BB ETIR EERE - 1EE
B TR~ BETIEA R SUER
Mo - LR TEEEAIIRER
REETREEY B =EE - >
AHEREEZERE - HEAM
L B R A
AR > B EAL AU
7 5 [ e 15 A N R 2 s ] P9 B

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity
price, commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return. The Group's objective in managing
market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's business, according to the
Group's overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well-
established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s
market risk. FMD is mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior
management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies and limits of the Group,
and ensuring that the aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable
levels.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified into three
levels, and are approved by the RC, ALCO and the General Manager of FMD
respectively. Business units are required to conduct their business within approved
market risk indicators and limits.
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OB ERZEREE (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.2 HiigEbE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
A ERE A. VAR
AREEFAREGEZE % The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
T A - 7 A JE e B senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
ZEENESEH gL - AN calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
EEBRAS Y EEEST = market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over a one-day holding period with
FELTRY 5 S FH R SRR > DUB a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.
£ 2 WEETGEE RS
> 515 99% E(E/KE N
1 KA HA P9 2 B g 1A A
B BL » 75 E AN £ B e AL
[RAH -
N R AR E— 5 T 5 A The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure1 of the
AR mRE Group.
iy 2F 25 24
M 12F31H REKE SERE  PogE
Minimum Maximum
At 31 for for Average for
Year December the year the year the year
AETT BT EETT EBTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR G > E VAR for all market risk 2018 705 54 716 270
2017 486 153 693 420
[ 22 i > J VAR for foreign exchange risk 2018 704 54 716 270
2017 486 153 693 420
TR a2 JE\ (B VAR for interest rate risk 2018 1 - 1 -
2017 - - - -
E Note:
1. N EFEINESE M E R Ay 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.

e {E -
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e BRI (8)

4. SRUERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

A BRE (&) A. VAR (continued)
e e o (L 5B T 4 B Yy —
THEZER - EtA ERRME:
B

Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in
the context of its limitations. For example:

- BRAE R TSR A E AR K - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events
B RE R AE A K P Bl BE H R may not encompass all potential events, particularly those which are
I o — SR 1 extreme in nature;

I

- A KA E AR - the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be
HUEBEE PE—HANEHR liquidated or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk
B AP R Wl it = arising at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may
ST ES E  EEAE TSR be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;
SRR > A[RER RAE 1R
FrA N ER S AT A B
%

- MEEE  ETH 9% EE - the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into
KR - BIARAEF B ERE account losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

K LAS P HER S B
K

- JEBR R DL SR ] 4 R I

HFEAR (Fat AL (RIEEIER

— I S R B TR

REM TS T R R E SRS
PR - AR - e T EE AR
O R PR DL R A RO B (R

REMZE TS AR - T e EE

TR LR RN [ Ja g R 2R o
Y BRI FE T E AV BRI MRS
LIRS 5 5 S TS B0 AT - 0
1994 55T SEH - 1997 Sl
SFEE DR, 2008 SRS -

B. SNERE

REFENEE kARSI
TC R ARBEEEEWE - K
TR S LB AR HE ORF A 1352
KV AER IR AR (14
PARE R B PRERD) 1 Ry Ba L
Ho fAh - ARV E—
B A R E S AR > WA
FISPEEEEY (FIA0S PR ) ERE
EE MR B 7 R {5 P A Y R T

b -

S

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of
business and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators
and limits to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The
stress testing programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on
changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario
analysis on historical events including the 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

B. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the
currency risk exposure of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits
(e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool.
Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps)
are wusually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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LR A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HiigElE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
B. JMNERE (&) B. Currency risk (continued)
PERESGEREH AL The Group had the following net structural positions which were not less than 10% of
YDA N &SRR B 5 the total net structural foreign currency position at the end of the reporting period:

AMEFEERE RSN 5 B
BUEEE10% ¢

2018

AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
e ARE ML
Total
us foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies

‘EREMEER T Net structural position 1,944,791 1,079,684 3,024,475
2017
AT TEE

Equivalent in thousand of HK$
ETT ARME SMEHEEE
Total
us foreign
Dollars  Renminbi  currencies

‘I E iR Net structural position 1,940,694 881,697 2,822,391
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e BRI (8)

4. SRUERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. Interest rate risk

C. FlZmE

R 2 fE AFFOK ~ HER
IR SR S R S A BT A
REE SR TR BG U s RO &K TR (E (B
HRZARIRAN I o ALEEATAHR
bR IE £ A &SRR - 4518
PERPET A A R R s

- FIREETEE - BEHAAYE]
91 H AT AR IR AT AR SR
EMFEFHSUA

- FIREAER R - A FIRSHHIEH
HEERFE > SHENEGRRNE
AR AT AE & 12 R — AT (HE
IR LA FIRIIERE L

- s aER - e SR
SIEPAT ARSI E 3 FLE WA
SRR EEELARPE X

- FEERERRE - HRNEE - A
BARINE H A IR - E IR
TR & A A B o A B
B -

A i B 2P ] D 1
Rl - SRR B
LR (SRR R L
) BEANEERESGLEE
(e IR R - 5
B R AR R 14
B AT B A
5% BT F R
5T » (AR IR
5 BB RIS
RIRAE > P45 F A A T
%+ B BRI R A
ST - R B R
BT B SRR L
s .

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets
and liabilities that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that
the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an
adverse impact on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or
off-balance sheet items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
assets and liabilities.

The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
management. The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by the RC. FMD is responsible for interest rate risk management.
With the cooperation of Financial Markets Department, FMD assists the
ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include,
but are not limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target
balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits, and
submission of interest rate risk management reports to the senior
management and RC, etc.
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e BRI (8)

4. SRUERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

C. FlZmpx (&)

C. Interest rate risk (continued)

A 55 B st S M 2R R e £ B e PR
B R ~ TR BOHRIZER
FlIR e - E 2R R PRI AR
FEER IR EETRGR - FIZREAE
JEfgz ~ FEREIRAE (PVBP) ~ 541 &
HEILLAR(NI) ~ OB EE BN LR
(EV)E - EE R e fE IR aE s >
R > A FESR o B b
EHZEY HEANEHEZEY
S B B AR o AR
R\ Y2 A5 BEAL AR R
JeRL R 15 A R 2 8 ] 9 ] e AR 5%
5 o BB SR TR S 2T
SETSAT - MR RO R S TR
IR EERT AL HBEAYF 2R
W - B R IR TR R B
&R - WL PR R P s
HR TR RIS A 8 -
FHREREHZ R e

TR SR Bl L (NI A A (B {E
BB EE AR (EV) R A 2 S iy £
B 05 ) U A 3 AR R R 1Y 5
B BARGEEE AR E A E
JEH AR - Bt A AR Y
HYF A S A B & A TR
FRUARILLS © (R HT R
{EEERITACREE (B HSHR
ITEAVERE - AR RRINER N
WERAVFHRE) B BL R A
AEBEEER - R EHER G R
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IR © 55 S ATRIEE )]
A ER R E &
FERE RS P iR R R IR TT
TR AFIKOR B EAIRZEE -

The Group set out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, price value of a basis point
(“PVBP”), net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value
sensitivity ratio (‘EV”), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into
different levels, which are approved by the RC, ALCO and the General
Manager of FMD accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to
conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the
relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment process,
which includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and
consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any
material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to the RC for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net
interest income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income for the
year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
value (i.e. the net present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking
book interest rate risk that the Group would face under adverse
circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also used to assess
the impact on net interest income and economic value arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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SESII B ERERITEE (48) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREREHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 iEER (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. FIREE (&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
FEMT T ALEED 12 The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate
H 31 A EEasEsEn risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
e %EVSI 1 amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
NEOUES S ° K
REEY REERA

> A ET B
FSCEIE (M
) 55 -

2018
—& =
—EAN =@R +=ER —ZEHF HEfFME KEtE #ast
Non-
Upto1 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total

ARTIT BRTRT ERTT BRTT A%t BT A%TR
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BE Assets
[T B <2 R AU T R Cash and balances with
HA GRS 4565 banks and other financial
institutions 14,408,002 - - - - 1,038,010 15,446,012

ESRTT R Hoftl 4 b td g Placements with banks and
—ZE+{JHHNEEI> other financial institutions

EHIENL maturing between one and
twelve months - 4,784,315 1,518,248 - - - 6,302,563
FE R DA FAE# (L5 A Financial assets designated
1825 S RhEE at fair value through profit
or loss - - - 210,135 154,469 - 364,604
e TE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 122,680 122,680
B EER L E S S Advances to customers and
trade bills 41,981,083 6,591,112 1,318,363 43,679 53 - 49,934,290
EAINE Investment in securities
- DIAPHEELET AH A - securities at FVOCI
EHW G Z 555 2,431,499 3,244,648 6,269,661 14,557,290 - 88,903 26,592,001
- DIBRGRECAETE 2587 - securities at amortised cost - 710,521 151,698 808,682 - - 1,670,901
&EyE Investment properties - - - - - 233,350 233,350
Y2 ~ BEM R R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,738,569 1,738,569
HA & E (BFEIRERTE  Other assets (including
éé) deferred tax SSSGtS) . . . . N 467,657 467,657
BEEE Total assets 58,820,584 15,330,596 9,257,970 15,619,786 154,522 3,689,169 102,872,627
Al Liabilities
SRAT B Bt & @b ##4% >~ 77 Deposits and balances from
2R GRS banks and other financial
institutions (7,903,660) (22,655) (2,255,961) (1,750,994) - - (11,933,270)
e TE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (43,268) (43,268)
H LK Deposits from customers (34,386,316) (13,358,293) (27,277,475)  (840,862) - (2,466,569) (78,329,515)

HANRTE R EH  (ffEfE  Other accounts and
(IR TE R R IR TE & ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax

liabilities) - - - - - (963,378)  (963,378)
=Vt Total liabilities (42,289,976) (13,380,948) (29,533,436) (2,591,856) - (3,473,215) (91,269,431)
FIREREER O Interest sensitivity gap 16,530,608 1,949,648 (20,275,466) 13,027,930 154,522 215,954 11,603,196

S
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LE A BERENTEE (48 ) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. SEiEEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HiigElE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
C. FIREE (&) C. Interest rate risk (continued)
2017
—F =%

—EAR =EA (@A —ZAF AFDDE EN s “Est

Non-

Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total

BRETOT BT BBTIT BN BT BT BRTT
HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000

BE Assets
[T B <2 R AR T R Cash and balances with
HAth SRR 45 banks and other financial
institutions 16,365,945 - - - - 922018 17,287,963

TESRTT R Hoftl 4 mttd s Placements with banks and
—ZE+{HBNEEI> other financial institutions

EHIE maturing between one and
twelve months - 208,899 572,006 - - - 780,905
FUE R LA HES{EEE A Financial assets designated
1825 S RhEE at fair value through profit
or loss - - - - 212,225 - 212,225
TSR T A Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 129,146 129,146
B EER L E S Advances to customers and
trade bills 33,040,397 9,642,810 134,572 236,466 131 - 43,054,376
A Investment in securities
- AR ERE - Available-for-sale securities 3,385,043 2,130,527 3,701,073 10,703,875 - 90,943 20,011,461
- A ERHIHE S - Held-to-maturity securities . . R R R - -
- BB EER - Loans and receivables - - - - R - -
Eite=Cv/E S Investment properties - - - - - 214,910 214,910
Wk - B R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 1,552,253 1,552,253
HA & E (BFEIRERTE  Other assets (including
BE) deferred tax assets) 23 _ _ _ _ 845,669 845,692
HENIE Total assets 52,791,408 11,982,236 4,407,651 10,940,341 212,356 3,754,939 84,088,931
Al Liabilities
SRIT R HAth &gl i%ts >~ 77  Deposits and balances from
2R GRS banks and other financial
institutions (5,091,298)  (823,556) (1,631,637) (2,300,296) - (140,847) (9,987,634)
ITESMTHE Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (18,789) (18,789)
B Deposits from customers (35,546,776) (11,652,831) (12,106,227) (1,132,773) - (2,840,830) (63,279,437)

HABEE R EH  (FIEERE  Other accounts and
(IR TE R R IR E ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (129,043) - - - - (1,110,531) (1,239,574)

=Vi=ce) Total liabilities (40,767,117) (12,476,387) (13,737,864) (3,433,069) - (4,110,997) (74,525,434)

IS G Interest sensitivity gap 12,024,291 (494,151)  (9,330,213) 7,507,272 212,356 (356,058) 9,563,497
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e BRI (8)

4. SRUERREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mgEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

D. ALEEMBERRIE M=

D. Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group

VAL

AEEEHEERET FTRA
B i - 22 2018 42 12
A 31 H BT FITAR
¥ T G M B AU SR A 4P AT
% 100 (AR - HARRZER
EHR T EENA G Y
JinA&#s 98,000,000 JT (2017
4 2 5% 50,000,000 7T ) - 35 %f
(ERATSC B _EAONISRIURY
FESE BRI -

SRTTRRAZR B

NI R TS M AR AL T SR
TTAR £ B WA R EEIE L
HE - DUT A AT 2
EE

The Group is principally exposed to HK dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2018, if HK dollar, US dollar and
Renminbi market interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of
the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$98,000,000 (2017:
HK$50,000,000) higher. The impact on reserves would be insignificant. The
sensitivity analysis set out above is for illustration only.

Interest rate exposures in banking book

The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks
on the Group’s interest rate exposure for major currencies in its banking book.
Subsidiaries are excluded from the analysis below:

R12 7 31 @&
Impact on positions
at 31 December

2018 2017
BFIEE Earnings perspective BETT AT
HE R Scenarios HK$°000 HK$'000

ARG ET B2 100 BURE Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HK dollar yield curves 184,000 86,000

FITERHG T T 1% 100 FLEL Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
US dollar yield curves (68,500) (59,500)

NIRRT B 100 Eobh Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
Renminbi yield curves (17,500) 23,500

b B R A A
# o Ei s (EARIRIY) T3
TR QAR GH B B AR BRI
S8(L -~ FIBPATIZE) - RaT By
BRI 3 L Bz 7T E BRI 472 HEE
JE\RATE) ~ A E AR -
PRt 2EIME Bk B
BEITEHEENETTEHA
ZRIGCHFIMIH 2 R E
Ml bl bRAKE A A
EEASA AR R 8oy -

S

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several
assumptions, including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation
between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest
rates, the absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the impact of
interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge accounting, all positions being
assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of products in which
actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the Group’s
overall interest rate risk exposures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk

A SRR IR TR AR
WE BB EEIISE TR
% o M A R R AR A 2 Y8
K o AGEEIETR AR ) & 2 s
fRfF > TEOREIE R BB =T
AR IEIRE - TRAUE SR
SR > MR RENE TR ¢ e
HE T B EE /RN
F o REAVHE SRR IEE - AR
BEALEFHNIRATE SR -

AEEEHREE S EERERE > 2
IR E e R - IS AR
AR EILEREAERN LRINET
KRBt - EIRR BRI SR
] o AEEE LI FAFRUR THAVE S
AN - BRI A RIRRE A LR Al
B DAEISE T S ARIOH - BECREEET]
FTRINESAR - AEEIREA I
PR 5 JBE 47 S T HR & 35K »
BEEEAHERN (BEER - f5
R RAFIRIEIED ) - (RS E AT E)
B DAERR A e SRR E &
IEHEBRE > RAESESER TARE
DUEHEAIA R EREEE > fr
RSN o ABEEBCEH AR
F -~ BhERAEMIREYZ AL - Dl
RHEEAFBNED » IIERERRK
R B A B B P A R > E
LR R RER - M R (o < E A
2o R EE SR o ABETET
TERENE R b E S
EHEEN SR 2 Y REEE
BERAR AR A & RIS - A%
FEJREEEHFINER - WEFOK
o PTAETHE, - IR R AR e 4
T IR T REE AR AR BN B R
REERRBE R E ERIS S
THNEEEACURBNER! - KA
BIEDRENME ~ S P Eh M DA HAth
0 e GO Gl 7 )
REE IR HIET T ESETHE - A
B R EhE SRk o A5
G ERIE ARSI - S EATRIE =
GG A o fEFEFETISRE N
TR THISHE T I - BRI G AIEE
TERZTER »

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The
Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to
act as the lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Deposits from customers are the Group’s primary source of
funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the
Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different
term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets
which provides adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims
in case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the use of funds
and sources and tenors of funding to avoid excessive concentration of
assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of
funding strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source.
The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline
to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group,
and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such
as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured
products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to
cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from
other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan. Where
necessary, In order to mitigate liquidity risk, the Group could take different
mitigation actions which include, but are not limited to sales of bonds in the
secondary market, funding from interbank market or repo in the money
market, attracting new deposits and keeping the core deposit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and
assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RC, ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures
the daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk appetite and
policies as set by RC. FMD is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Financial Markets Department to assist the
ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These
indicators and limits include, but are not limited to liquidity coverage ratio
(“LCR”"), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCQO”) and liquidity cushion. The Group applies
cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal
conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution
specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various
severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant management information systems such
as Assets and Liabilities Management System and Basel Liquidity Ratio
Management System are developed to provide data and the preparation for
regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2
“Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the
HKMA, the Group has implemented behaviour model and assumptions of
cash flow analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis
under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under
normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future
cash flow based on contractual maturity date and the assumptions of
customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum cumulative net
cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31
December 2018, before taking the cash inflow through the sale of
outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day
cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$6,579,324,000
(2017: HK$5,907,763,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

43 RegrEsRR (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined
crisis scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of
institution specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of retail,
wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan commitments and
trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer
loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable securities. As at 31
December 2018, the Group was able to maintain a net cash inflow under the
three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to
maintain a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality
marketable securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public
sector entities or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or
marketable securities issued by non-financial corporate with a corresponding
external credit rating of A- or above to ensure funding needs even under
stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2018, the liquidity cushion (before
haircut) was HK$ 12,041,088,000 (2017: HK$9,055,518,000). A contingency
plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based on
stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments.

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective
from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised
institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis.
During the year of 2018, the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than
90%.

The NSFR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
effective from 1 January 2018, the Group, being classified as category 1
authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on
consolidated basis. The Group is required to maintain a NSFR not less than
100%.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.

-
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4. CREREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 rEELEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. EIHAE ST A. Maturity analysis

TRRBAEETY 12
A3MHZEENA

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting

HEAEHH H 47 date to the contractual maturity date.
HINGEEHE &E
K AfEHEELIEE
HAFRIER HA PR 73351 -
2018
—%& = RHEE
Bi# AR =@EA +=EA —EEF AHFEMUL HE {ast
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over 5
On demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BT BMTT BT BT B%TI  BMTI  BETI  B¥TI
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BE Assets
RS R ERGRT R EA  Cash and balances with
SRS R banks and other financial
institutions 1,877,197 13,035,493 - - - - 533,322 15,446,012
TESRAT B HoAt SRl b Placements with banks and
— &+ EHARNTIE other financial institutions
EHIEIT maturing between one
and twelve months - - 4,784,315 1,518,248 - - - 6,302,563
FUE B LI ESE AJE25  Financial assets designated
T EBEEE at fair value through profit
or loss
- [ — Debt securities - 617 1,222 1,771 208,078 152,916 - 364,604
FTESMTE Derivative financial
instruments 96,038 509 7,115 1,415 13,968 3,635 - 122,680
BEENE HER Advances to customers and
trade bills
—Advances to customers 8,777,459 2,696,441 2,839,657 7,645,089 21,484,038 4,688,985 - 48,131,669
5 — Trade bills 166 515,564 196,174 1,090,717 - - - 1,802,621
BENE Investment in securities
- DIAHEE (ST AHEMEEm  — FVOCI
Wt
- R — Debt securities - 1,705,374 1,445974 6,225,817 15,191,767 - - 24,568,932
- s — Certificates of deposit - 473,476 375,693 108,459 976,538 - - 1,934,166
- B — Equity securities - - R R - - 88,903 88,903
- DAt E — Amortised cost
- e — Debt securities - 7,391 1,954 6,994 1,502,850 - - 1,519,189
- s — Certificates of deposit - - R 151,712 - - - 151,712
BB Investment properties - - . R - - 233,350 233,350
W~ BN R Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,738,569 1,738,569
HAn&E (REEEfRIEEE ) Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 85,728 209,050 157,851 541 - - 14,487 467,657
B Total assets 10,836,588 18,643,915 9,809,955 16,750,763 39,377,239 4,845,536 2,608,631 102,872,627
aE Liabilities
SRAT R H M SRl > 770 Deposits and balances from
RGERR banks and other financial
institutions (5,984,733) (1,918,927)  (22,655) (2,255,961) (1,750,994) - - (11,933,270)
TSR TR Derivative financial
instruments (8,021)  (16,824) (2,300) (1,668)  (11,158) (3,297) - (43,268)
B Deposits from customers ~ (23,875,084) (12,977,801) (13,358,293) (27,277,475)  (840,862) - - (78,329,515)
HAHEIE o (BFEER Other accounts and
FRTE R B AR TE & (S ) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (450,543)  (124,344)  (23,575)  (222,329) - - (142,587)  (963,378)
V=t Total liabilities (30,318,381) (15,037,896) (13,406,823) (29,757,433) (2,603,014) (3,297)  (142,587) (91,269,431)
TREE ST Net liquidity gap (19,481,793) 3,606,019 (3,596,868) (13,006,670) 36,774,225 4,842,239 2,466,044 11,603,196
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mEELEE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

A. ZEESHT (8D

A. Maturity analysis (continued)

2017
—F =% AhEE
B —EAN ={EH +fE A —EHE  AFE HEA Hast
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05
On demand 1 month months months years Over 5 years Indefinite Total
AT BETOT BT BT BT BT BNTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
HiE Assets
[ & RAFERTT R A Cash and balances with
SRR AL banks and other financial
institutions 1,220,907 15,845,476 - - - - 221,580 17,287,963
TESRAT e HoAth SRl i Placements with banks and
— T {EHNEIE other financial institutions
SEHIEI maturing between one
and twelve months - - 208,899 572,006 - - - 780,905
FE BN TESR(LET AJ82: Financial assets designated
T EENEE at fair value through profit
or loss
- [ — Debt securities - 615 1,219 217 210,174 - - 212,225
FTEEmTE Derivative financial
instruments 94,753 2,454 12,672 10,757 1,565 6,945 - 129,146
B RS E 5 Advances to customers and
trade bills
- BPEH —Advances to customers 6,888,069 501,969 1,452,333 6,631,279 20,520,973 6,015,631 26,659 42,036,913
ZUE ] — Trade bills 102 209,611 495389 312,361 - - - 1,017,463
B 4 Investment in securities
- Ak — Available-for-sale
- S — Debt securities - 2,632,274 1,403,871 2,663,158 10,182,178 - - 16,881,481
- s - Certificates of deposit - 740,668 773,589 1,114,805 409,975 - - 3,039,037
- EARESGR — Loans and receivables
- EEES — Debt securities - - - _ R _ R R
— s — Equity securities - - - - - - 90,943 90,943
A Investment properties - - - - - - 214,910 214,910
W - B3 Rk Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 1,552,253 1,552,253
HA& E (R EEfRIEEE ) Other assets (including
deferred tax assets) 169,556 650,616 569 2,140 1,101 - 21,710 845,692
BEWE Total assets 8,373,387 20,583,683 4,348,541 11,306,723 31,325,966 6,022,576 2,128,055 84,088,931
Liabilities
SRAT R H M SRR 70 Deposits and balances from
RoGERR banks and other financial
institutions (4,669,693)  (562,453)  (823,556) (1,631,636) (2,300,296) - - (9,987,634)
PTESMTE Derivative financial
instruments (6,350) (2,151) (2,098) - (1,760) (6,430) - (18,789)
R Deposits from customers  (28,086,910) (10,300,696) (11,652,831) (12,106,227) (1,132,773) - - (63,279,437)
HAIETE R (fIFEfERS  Other accounts and
MIERETERIEARE) provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (283,080)  (626,315) (1,699)  (180,008) (518) - (147,954) (1,239,574)
b=t Total liabilities (33,046,033) (11,491,615) (12,480,184) (13,917,871) (3,435,347) (6,430)  (147,954) (74,525,434)
TRENE & Net liquidity gap (24,672,646) 9,092,068 (8,131,643) (2,611,148) 27,890,619 6,016,146 1,980,101 9,563,497
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SEEII BRI EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(&)

4. SRERERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 e (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
A. FHAE SR (&) A. Maturity analysis (continued)
R EER H oy R % The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
W CERATEE () provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets
FA) ZARRRRSCm such as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than
MR o AREEE A one month as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
Tid#®E 1 @HHZE payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is
B BIAIERR ET reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the
YR TEIHE, B residual maturity. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

E ° B A R
s e 2 B
HAEZAEETER S
W 2 8 oy BAR AR
W o HAAREHZ 4
I TSRS R 6
PRoy¥ - BHiFIRZ
B CATBRAE AT AR R
At () -

F i R BB B BHE RS The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order
56 25 2 ST G to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
(ERITE (HE88) # disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held-to-maturity.

B AT
B - FRERIET
RICFHAAE
F -
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(continued)
4. SEEFEEHE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 RegrEsRR (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. ##E&LRIHAH o8 Z R ITER B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
B
(a) JEFTE TE ZIHER (a) Non-derivative cash flows
T T AR 12 The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31
A 31 HY ISR December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual
ELRS AL SR maturty.
B o
2018
—& =7
—EAR =@EA +=@EH —ZERE HEME #st
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
BT AMETT AT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRIEE Financial liabilities
$RTT R Hofth 4 Fit% Deposits and balances
W FE R 4ERR from banks and other
financial institutions (7,905,985) (22,654) (2,316,370)  (1,760,973) - (12,005,982)
PR Deposits from customers (36,864,280) (13,412,061)  (27,734,773)  (894,066) - (78,905,180)
HoAth il & & Other financial
liabilities (549,995) (8,345) (77,829) - - (636,169)
SRE LA Total financial liabilities (45,320,260) (13,443,060)  (30,128,972) (2,655,039) - (91,547,331)
2017
—% =%
—ERR ={EH +Z@H —ENF AFELLE “Est
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to 5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total
AT AT AT AT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial liabilities
$RTT R HoAth 4= Fl#% Deposits and balances
e 20 R asee from banks and other
financial institutions (5,232,703)  (825,630) (1,650,267)  (2,361,932) - (10,070,532)
FFEK Deposits from customers (38,360,180) (11,647,606)  (12,157,297) (1,133,207) - (63,298,290)
H gl & Other financial
liabilities (904,088) (327) (56,577) (518) - (961,510)

SHE EREH Total financial liabilities (44,496,971) (12,473,563)  (13,864,141) (3,495,657) - (74,330,332)
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(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 RgrEsER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. ##& B H 5 Z R ITER B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
Hem (&)
(b) FTETEZHER (b) Derivative cash flows
T T AEER 12 H The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
31 B L FIas &4 EHI H 5 contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that

will be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an
asset or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the

IRZ BB BRI
BEEGERZ A SZHMA

> RFTH R AR contractual undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are
BirAsf TR (R disclosed at fair value.
AHEGENBEERENA

&) BRI PTAE TR
SPEFIRSL > T RIERRY
LA B Ry R AT ER Y

B AR S -
A AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
B4 B T B T S EEFH mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments

that will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and
currency swaps.

Ryl o g EE RS
CRAVER X )
T I R ] -
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4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

43 RegrEsRR (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

B. ##& B H 5t Z R ITEHR B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
Hen (8)

(b) FIETHRZHEER (&) (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

2018
—= ==
—EAN =Z=@A +=@EA —=E#f HEMNE fast
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total

BYTIT BT BT BETIT AR B¥%T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

HOFFER#ESEE > Derivative financial

iRl E i liabilities settled on a
net basis (8,406) 2,030 (8,714) (9,376) (164) (24,630)
YRR LS > Derivative financial
PSR T E instruments settled on a
gross basis
HORA Total inflow 8,611,283 2,363,904 930,055 - - 11,905,242
HERH Total outflow (8,629,885) (2,354,565)  (930,535) - - (11,914,985)

2017
—% =%
—EAN ={EH +={EH —EAF  OFEME “ast
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5
1 month months months years years Total

WHTL BN BT BT BTt BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R R AESEE 2 Derivative financial

PTEEREE liabilities settled on a
net basis (6,101) (1,039) (1,365) (6,842) - (15,347)
PR EEE GG 2 Derivative financial
o, =R instruments settled on a
gross basis

po

l
&

A Total inflow 2,906,945 754,582 779,040 - - 4,440,567
Esyitas} Total outflow (2,906,539)  (742,627) (761,204) - - (4,410,370)

S
JIL
Ny

o
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(continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
43 RgrEsER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
B. ##& QB H 57 Z R ITEHR B. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

Hen (&)

(c) BEAERINEE (c) Off-balance sheet items
BRI Loan commitments
BRAAEES 2018 4F 12 The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
H 31 HHAE R EREE instruments as at 31 December 2018 that the Group commits to extend
&R EMEE 2 TR credit to customers and other facilities amounted to HK$10,801,604,000
TH > ES4e%EEN (2017: HK$9,951,748,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn within
10,801,604,000 jT (2017 one year.
4 g 9,951,748,000
TC) » B EHORIE TR —
FEHRHL
A A O R HA A S il A Financial guarantees and other financial facilities
AREHN 2018 412 F 31 Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
H 2 A 1598 R ECALRA 75 December 2018 amounting to HK$645,664,000 (2017: HK$1,043,810,000)
B & MOk B are maturing no later than one year.

645,664,000 7 (2017
0 HEWE 1,043,810,000
o) > HEHH R4
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e BRI ()

4. SRUERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 TAEH

4.4 Capital management
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The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Group’s overall risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Group’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the
Group’s capital adequacy. The Group has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of banking operation
as further elaborated below:

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach
to calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation
exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the standardised
(credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA
risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate
the general market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate
exposures and, with the approvals from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX
positions in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues
to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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e BRI ()

4. SRUERREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BAEHE (B

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AEEEFY 2018 LA NET
AR RRHEREFUFERE
FEEBRTM T REEARE
FF o WIRVEDR - #e B R EsE —
SRERVEES | NERE A SRR TG
TR E A LSS —E
TARAEMERT T HERER
JRR T ARHVEINEA - fEReE
ZIK%E TR (R R E A
R A AR R KRB
Z@‘ézﬁtt? o (A - ASEEEL
LAY B A EE R E T A &
fi] > DRSS 2 R e
BEARNERCER « REERER N
AT SHETE PR — (5
FRVEAEHIERE > WERES
S AR A R AR v i 2 S
B R FA AN G -

BEFh » AR HE A
HE > HEEAHEHEE g%
W EEREHE - AANEIR
SERRNE ~ BR[O - i (R
i~ (SRR W?”%i?kf‘?&zﬁ
[ERHEE AT R R
AR K E AR K E ZMK
/J"? DIPRIFASEBIAELERT BAFHY
BEARRE REAAGERE I
BRI o ORTTER - [ ERE
BT R MR R

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory
Policy Manual “Supervisory Review Process” in 2018. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed
to cover the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under Pillar I,
and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital
ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges
for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established which enable the
flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The Group
considers this ICAAP as an ongoing process for capital management and
periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation
to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted
to the Board of Directors for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is
built up by assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is
determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance
among risk, return and capital adequacy.
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5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

5. KEMAENATE
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
methods and based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

— Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative contracts.

— Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt
securities and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services vendors. It
also includes properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable
market inputs.

— Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant unobservable
components. It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to
observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to
ensure that fair values are either determined or validated by control units
independent of the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of valuation results from front line businesses and all
other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new models and changes to
models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed market
transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant
valuation issues are reported to senior management, RC and AC.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine
the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market
quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held
by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are
mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

-
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5. BEMNABIANEE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.1 DIAHEENESRMTE 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

FH LA & DAT < B T 2L 2 SR AYAS The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial
{EWapzS: I instruments is as below:
(B MRS Debt securities and certificates of deposit
TR FEEER G - X5 The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market
BHIE 8 T A5 1 R % (L E e PR (AR Y prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using
T 55 3 {0 B {5 R e B3 < R AL 2 43 discounted cash flow technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation
FTIMRE o REER A — (] technique that measures present value using estimated expected future cash
FATEET AR SR » DL—{#m] &2 Wiy flows from the instruments and then discounts these flows using a discount
5 EAEEOEEN TERREEERE rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
7= 7 BRI R e HE IR = AE T = 1 A ER for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
EMEERT - B S BRI B0 corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Bz s T 22 R AT B AT T

BT -

FHETH Derivatives

BN G101 A T H &8 E A OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on
PE ~ 22 - B SR Ay - fE foreign exchange, interest rate, equity or commodity. The fair values of these
FMEAREGE) - (74 THALINER T contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
P PR B O A Y R S R B discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The inputs can be
RIS E AT E - P IS 805 observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
TERZR o R AR Z TGRS - AR rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commaodity prices and
WIS EEFEFR - PR - M2 RS volatilities. Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface may be used for
ERE ~ P IERE RO © A aEig20y less commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
S BARG WE S THRT A P e i 45 1 deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
MR IERT 5 AR B R determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

i o BT TRAY > &
SPERHZ AR 2 A 2 W A

B o

KREEE B I HIITAE T HIEH Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”)
TS S {ERRE R B %S - 3 are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market
B R TSR Z B~ 5% factors movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
FEEREHESEEEENH Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each
¥ BRI TEERE XX 5E counterparty and are dependent on expected future values of exposures,
T DUARARTHIAM T ~ 2 L= R gle] default probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. EEMAENAEE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

51 DIAHESASENSRITE (&) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
A AN PEER A. Fair value hierarchy
2018
FER BER F=EE% gzt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BETIT BRTIT BRTIT A%TT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

SRIEE Financial assets
FLE B LA T 8 bEE ATE25 Financial assets designated
> &EEE (e 24) at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 24)
- BB - Debt securities - 364,604 - 364,604
TR T A ik 21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 122,680 - 122,680
U\/ NVEES R A AT 2L Financial assets measured
mERiEE (HEE24) at FVOCI (Note 24)
- EHET - Debt securities 2,331,316 22,237,616 - 24,568,932
- {FEGE - Certificates of deposit - 1,934,166 - 1,934,166
- BetrEs - Equity securities - 67,438 21,465 88,903
2,331,316 24,726,504 21,465 27,079,285
SRASE Financial liabilities
TR T A 5k 21) Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (43,268) - (43,268)
2017
—fEgd BRI E=EA “aEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AW AT AT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
SREE Financial assets
R BN TEE (R AIEE Financial assets designated
> 4EhgE (MisE24) at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 24)
- EHEESF - Debt securities - 212,225 - 212,225
THESRTE (Jff3E21) Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21) - 129,146 - 129,146
n gt ERE S (fiEE24) Available-for-sale securities
(Note 24)
- B - Debt securities 502,658 16,378,823 - 16,881,481
- kg - Certificates of deposit - 3,039,037 - 3,039,037
- BEEEsR - Equity securities - 76,665 14,278 90,943
502,658 19,835,896 14,278 20,352,832
Shaf Financial liabilities
rrEER T E (fEE21) Derivative financial
Instruments (Note 21) - (18,789) - (18,789)
REEE Y SRIE E A E R E There were no financial asset and liability transfers between Level 1 and Level
NG HEE }:'ZJ}();‘Z“‘*}:'\%& 2 for the Group during the year (2017: Nil).

> AR (2017 4 -

-
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e BRI (8)

5. RENARNAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAFHEETENSR TR (8D

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=|@RHVHEHED)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

2018

EREE

Financial assets

DS EET AR M m

ZSREE

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive

income
vitce RetraEss 4Est
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
* 2018 £1 H 1 H At 1 January 2018 - 14,278 14,278
ez Gains
— Hith 2w — Other comprehensive income
— DUASPEZ(LET — Change in fair value of
A M2 T R 2 financial assets at fair
ZEREERA value through other
FEZL comprehensive income - 6,870 6,870
HA Purchases - 317 317
=] Sales - - -
e =g Transfer out of Level 3 - - -
#2018 412 A 31 H At 31 December 2018 - 21,465 21,465
2017
BREE
Financial assets
oS
Available-for-sale
securities
EBsEH it dast
Debt Equity
securities securities Total
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2017 1 H1H At 1 January 2017 585,116 5,239 590,355
515 Losses
— Htr2mEidEs — Other comprehensive income
- AR ESHFZ — Change in fair value of
ANEEEE available-for-sale
securities (3,049) (496) (3,545)
HA Purchases - 9,535 9,535
B Sales - - -
EHE =g Transfer out of Level 3 (582,067) - (582,067)
2017 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2017 - 14,278 14,278

42018 47 12 F 31 H } 2017
FA2A3E > YERBESE
PR TR EERIE B
fié -

S

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, financial instruments categorised as level

3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity shares.
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5. RENABNAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 DAFHEETENSR TR (8D

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=BHAVHEES (8

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

FIE 53 05 By B = @ 4L A (2 755 2%
7 A il {E T B RS 2017 48
[ EE =@k - $IRIHELE(R
BYMEERSE:  REEE ST
BRI+ HOAHEREHE AR
P77 ik B E AR EE O B R
RS R AR RS
ER LRSI BH = -

JE_E TR AR RZ
RIS W& T Y ZE B 175 0 RS
G (H AR R s A el
Fa b icHy ERT A E 2 P
TH{E BAEE - 2o A G
ATEREREH A E] > A
EEE - A PEEES R

Debt securities were transferred out of level 3 in 2017 due to change of
valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt securities, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on
unobservable inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore,
these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are estimated using the
discounted cash flow model, on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s
financial position and results, or with reference to multiples of
comparable listed companies, such as average of the price ~earning
ratios of comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price ~earning
ratios of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset

PLEZ M LL R & I E AT value of the underlying equity investments increased/decreased by 5%,
IEEBR - ERE AR the Groups other comprehensive income would have
ERERHEME B 5% 0 HIAR increased/decreased by HK$1,073,000 (2017: HK$714,000).

Sl Hih 2 U S~

JE D AEEE 1,073,000 T (2017

AF  ARmE 714,000 7)) ©

fl{EHER HYIRAEIZ S s
Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range
Input(s)
FE B A EE LG A | &EEFE i N
EHEW IR TH
Unlisted equity instruments at | Net asset value Not applicable Not applicable
fair value through other
comprehensive income
2R D TE Bl =520 il 15.19%
Discounted cash flow model Discount rate (2017: Not applicable)
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GEBR N T 5 SR
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H&—ENE > HIRmE{E A PE

HHE -

HEEEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and information about various financial instruments. The
following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value

of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from
the end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value

approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve

appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the
end of the reporting date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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5. EEMAENATE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
5.2 JEIAESERESRTE (&) 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
R DA L 1 B AR AR S Y < i The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial
TEA » PREIELA T EET RS instruments not measured at fair value, except for the above with their
Rl T B ZIRHEEAAE - carrying values being approximation of fair values.
2018
MRMEE NHE
Carrying value Fair value
T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DR A R R E E Financial assets measured at
(fffzE 24) amortised cost (Note 24) 1,670,901 1,640,600
2017
HRHI{E NE
Carrying value Fair value
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEE Financial assets
BB EGR (I EE 24) Loans and receivables (Note 24) - -
TRIRE BB R A E R T The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with
B2 N VEES - fair values disclosed.
2018
FRhk FoE% F=EHR 4EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BERTRT BRI BRTIT  AETT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

SREE Financial assets
DI SRR AT B BRI A Financial assets measured at
amortised cost - 1,640,600 - 1,640,600
2017
E-REH FIRER FE=ERER daz
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BTt BTt BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BREE Financial assets

SRR BT Loans and receivables - - - -
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5. RENARNAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 A EEIBNIESRERE 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value
AR A — S B R B S e T
SR E AR EIE A E N A F
fH -

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market
to determine the fair value of non-financial assets.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises.
All of the Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year
end. This year, the valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among their staff
Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
KRR BETIE  AEESTH G performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change
EHI BT hE 3% ~ (H{E in valuation methods during the year and the methods used are consistent with
R EEER - (B RN ERE last year.

B8 TR -

BEYISE R

AR 2 VT 5y R SE
E o FTA AR EE 2 RE Y R B E
ERERETEML - REZfEEH
IR IR AT M ERTT AR
NEIETT > HEA B EENEAD
BEEREEG AN EETEE
ZAE O WA EYEEPTE I X
TR LA AR o ESEREEE

() FHJBPERTERHEE
EIEREZR

BT RSB B YRR
HE - TS E ALY T
A ERAE (T5EIhE%)
N2FHGHE REARMER
(BAEAE) - FFEATELEY)
S RG22 R
R - IHERERAER R
RSB SR E A
2,

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either
the market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties or the income capitalisation approach by reference to
market rent and capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the subject
properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the entire
measurement.

REEZYES AN EERA
Mz EEIR > el R
FOBEIIRIYIZETTE o ATERE)
EZHEME - HHESRER
(ER—RETAHEIE TS Lk
RSB G -

(i) BHESBRATE RS
o

Wy F Ry o6 B AR A S )
EZ NP ET AT SR
S ABEAE > FHEAERY)
SEAHB I AT LR YSE 2 A
It (B A E -

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC
where the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales
price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are
generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is
determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
features of the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
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5. EEMAENATE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAHESTBAESRIERE (88) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

(i) ARFE=BRAHESENE (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
w ()
PUR BAE A HEE T ERF 3y The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
B RS =B REEYIERT value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as
BRAMG(E 775 R AR AT follows:
ZRE
A EARRAEZENE T N ATBZE RN Z B AR R
Valuation method Significant Weighted Relationship of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs average to fair value.
TSRO ER | WA el EL e E 6.53% (B A TERE -
WAEAE bz (D (2017: 10.85%) The higher the premium,
Market comparison Premium/(discount) on the higher the fair value.
approach or income features of the property
capitalisation compared to comparable PriEmis - AR -
approach properties The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

YA LR E Premium/(discount) on features of the property is determined after taken into
ZwfE,/ (rE) TH258n] account various factors, such as time for market movement, location,
LB EE R EIRZE L7 accessibility, building age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc., with
5o QIR te 2 TS E) - reference to the differences in features with comparable properties.

i ~ (EEEME ~ R IR0
g - R fiEEmEE -
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5.3 DA ER BHFESRERE (8)
A ANPEATER

R E
ReEYEE (M 25)

WISE ~ S50 Rkt (FfTsE 26)

- FE

FEEREE
ReEYEE (I 25)

WK ~ S0 ekt (FsE 26)

(3

3

FEEZIFSRMEENTFNEZ
HE— R g [FHY
R (2017 42 ¢ J) -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

A. Fair value hierarchy

2018
F—REH F_EH F=EH 4EET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Non-financial assets
Investment properties

(Note 25) - - 233,350 233,350
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 26)

— Premises - - 1,696,410 1,696,410

- - 1,929,760 1,929,760

2017 (restated)

B BTER B=REE HaEtT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Non-financial assets
Investment properties

(Note 25) - - 214,910 214,910
Properties, plant and

equipment

(Note 26)

— Premises - - 1,506,300 1,506,300

- - 1,721,210 1,721,210

There were no non-financial asset transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for
the Group during the year (2017: Nil).
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5. RENABNAHE (8)

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 A ER B ESRERE (8)

5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. Reconciliation of level 3 items

B. E=BHEHEES)
2018
FEBRIERE
Non-financial assets

VI - B RERE
Properties, plant
and equipment

Ea=g7/E S BE
Investment
properties Premises
AT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
2018 1 H 1 H At 1 January 2018 214,910 1,506,300
Wz | (8518) Gains / (losses)
- sk — Income statement
- BEMEAFEFRE — Net gain from fair value
RIS adjustments on
investment properties 18,440 -
- EfiEEZ FEEE — Net loss from
revaluation of
premises - (23,932)
- Hr el — Other comprehensive
income
- BEEM — Revaluation of
premises - 119,251
e Depreciation - (20,452)
HE Additions - 115,244
A S = @4 Transfer into Level 3 - .
BT Reclassification - .
P =4 Exchange difference - (1)
#2018 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 233,350 1,696,410
#2018 - 12 H 31 HFAEMN Total unrealised gains /
FEE Rl & A RN ET AU (losses) for the year
WHENEEHIZE (B1R) included in income _
vl statement for non-financial
e assets held as at 31
December 2018
- REVEAFEFEE — Net gains from fair value
Pt g adjustments on
investment properties 18,440 -
- BEfEEZFNES | (B — Net gains / (losses) from
Ei=)) revaluation of premises . (23,932)
18,440 (23,932)




4 A 2K
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SEEABERENEE (8) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

5. BEMNEBIVARZE (8) 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 DIAHESTBAESRIEE (8) 5.3 Non-financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

B. E=B&VEBE ST (8) B. Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
2017 (restated)
FERLEE
Non-financial assets
V£ ~ BT Rt
Properties, plant
and equipment
Investment
properties Premises
AT T AETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HR2017FE1H51H At 1 January 2017 203,860 1,489,261
Wezs 1 (&518) Gains / losses
- sk — Income statement
- BEMEAFEFEE — Net gain from fair value
73RN adjustments on
investment properties 11,050 -
— B EE TG — Net gain from
revaluation of
premises - 702
- Hr 2w — Other comprehensive
income
- REEL — Revaluation of
premises - (9,403)
TEE Depreciation - (18,058)
WME Additions - 42,962
LN Ty 1 Transfer into Level 3 - -
BT Reclassification _ 836
HR2017£12 531 H At 31 December 2017 214,910 1,506,300
#2017 412 H 31 HFEN Total unrealised gains for the
JEEFEE N FENET AU year included in income
A B 2 4T statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31
December 2017
- BEMENEFAES — Net gains from fair value
peallg adjustments on
investment properties 11,050 -
- Bl EEZFGE — Net gains from
revaluation of premises - 702

11,050 702
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LrEWTBERFRMTEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. EFISUA 6. Net interest income
2018 2017
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FIEMA Interest income
707 [E] 2 Fe HoAth < bt A 1y Due from banks and other financial institutions
FOH 294,567 100,053
I B S Advances to customers and trade bills 1,603,113 984,511
BHEEE RN FEERE AR Investment in securities and financial assets at
2 BRNEE fair value through profit or loss 628,275 297,312
Hifty Others 20,223 4,084
2,546,178 1,385,960
FIESZH Interest expense
[5] 2 B HoAh 4 Bl i RS 2 A K Due to banks and other financial institutions
15 (81,493) (46,963)
B Deposits from customers (904,092) (381,329)
oA Others (2,163) (7,164)
(987,748) (435,456)
JEFIEUCA Net interest income 1,558,430 950,504

BZE 2018 4F 12 H 31 HILF Included within interest income is HK$2,071,000 (2017: HK$2,639,000) of interest with
J& 27 F| S A BLFE R ST Ko ek respect to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31
1B 53R HE T R B AN December 2018.

2,071,000 7¢ (2017 4 : i

2,639,000 jr) ©

FELLAPEE(LEF A B 2 & Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$2,523,327,000 (2017:
BE A EL B Rl & fE AT E AR A HK$1,376,182,000) and HK$987,748,000 (2017: HK$435,456,000) for financial assets and
BT AR R B ST 55 5 B st financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
2,523,327,000 JT (2017 4 :

iz 1,376,182,000 JT ) Bz ks

987,748,000 jT: (2017 4% : &

4% 435,456,000 7T ) ©
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LraWBERERMTEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

w

7. BFREERFASEA 7. Net fee and commission income

2018 2017
BETIT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB RASWA Fee and commission income
IR Insurance 59,862 114,042
e & Securities brokerage 101,192 106,287
el Loan commissions 89,332 146,827
SRR Payment services 32,542 24,640
P L 4 Bills commissions 19,096 18,025
EFE Safe deposit box 9,019 17,139
B VAN Funds distribution 9,362 10,845
HAth Others 74,425 35,406
394,830 473,211
BEERAESSTH Fee and commission expense
Fee & Securities brokerage (14,798) (13,930)
Hofth Others (9,213) (8,291)
(24,011) (22,221)
PREE R ASWA Net fee and commission income 370,819 450,990
HeRH - Of which arise from:
JELLA T EE LR AER Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
SRIE SR E through profit or loss
- ARFE S HEU A - Fee and commission income 27,935 150,122
- R R4 H - Fee and commission expense (349) (434)
27,586 149,688
Sab M HAM 2 EEED) Trust and other fiduciary activities
- R R AREU A - Fee and commission income 6,663 6,907
- BE e - Fee and commission expense (722) (429)

5,941 6,478
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LraWBERERMTEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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8. FXFHMW AR 8. Net trading gain
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
PR (51D JRA - Net gain/(loss) from:
YNPEAZ 5y Ko A NEEAS 5 e Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 69,310 6,045
FIFETH Interest rate instruments 2,416 1,993
P Commodities 17 (103)
71,743 7,935
9. HihEMEEFWZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2018 2017
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
DIANEAE S bt At 2T UL Net gain on financial assets measured at
i R R FVOCI 6,061 -
AR R Net gain on available-for-sale securities - 8,225
o Others (187) (58)
5,874 8,167
10. HAMKBULA 10. Other operating income
2018 2017
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR R A Dividend income from investment in securities
- JE LRI E - Unlisted investments 5,941 2,380
B Y 2 A HA Gross rental income from investment properties 5,915 5,046
BRI EEZ WA Incomings in respect of investment properties 221 113
Kl Others 331 152
12,408 7,691

i+ 2018 £ T A BT A There are no direct operating expenses included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment
22 HEARE AR properties” related to investment properties that were not let during 2018 (2017: Nil).
TR B s

(2017 4 : 4iE ) ©
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LraWBERERMTEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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M. BB REE 11. Net charge of impairment allowances
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EHPEH I E D Advances to customers and trade bills 148,460 62,369
A Investment in securities (4,104) -
TRIRCHRAT R ELAt < RS Balances with banks and other financial institutions
145 6ER 21 -
HoAth el Other financial assets 797 (69)
HEEAERI Off-balance sheet (6,745) -
138,429 62,300
12. KETH 12. Operating expenses
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ANBEH (BEEEME) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- SHTBN R A - Salaries and other costs 428,873 286,661
- IRIRECAR - Pension cost 24,127 22,535
453,000 309,196
B RS (CRERE Premises and equipment expenses
e (excluding depreciation)
- REHS - Rental of premises 37,660 35,959
- AR - Information technology 6,825 13,921
- FHAth - Others 11,160 9,896
55,645 59,776
HrEg (FfisE 26) Depreciation (Note 26) 29,297 25,867
I eiiEa Auditors’ remuneration
- FEtss - Audit services 2,191 2,096
- JEREE TR - Non-audit services 26 712
Hpra T Other operating expenses 130,901 79,243
671,060 476,890

13. IEYENVEHFHE 13. Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment properties

ZFEs
2018 2017
BT IT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BV A EFEE Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
SFilzs (s 25) properties (Note 25) 18,440 11,050

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. £ & E{EY¥%E - 2381 14. Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and

15.

%%’éﬁ)a‘ R M=
Ktz R (B /
g

VR ~ [l R S
ZAHEHE
HitFEEZF (BRI

N

El

B

SRR N Z AR IEMH R
T

EN i
wBIE
- FNEFARIH
- TR

EIMIIH
- FENEFARIH

PEAERIA
I 22 AR B g ]
FAME BT R
(Ff$3% 300

T TR IR (i
FHESRFUE RIS 16.5%
(2017 4F 1 16.5% ) 245 -
TN 2 R IR A

BB AT E R 5 TR

S5 -

15.

equipment

2018 2017
ARTIT HBRT T
HK$000 HK$'000

Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings (16) -
Net (loss)/gain on revaluation of premises

(23,932) 702
(23,948) 702
Taxation
Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2018 2017
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 129,485 134,070
- Over-provision in prior year - (2,115)
129,485 131,955
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 58,645 15,974
188,130 147,929
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits (Note 30)
14,165 (1,119)
202,295 146,810

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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LrEWTBERFRMTEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. fR1E (&) 15. Taxation (continued)
REE R AR A EEE The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
PRI » BRR BRI that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

STRATHIEAZ AT ¢

2018 2017

BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

RNl Profit before taxation 1,204,742 898,642
J5F7% 16.5% (2017 4 : Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

16.5% ) #HHEHIIRIH 198,782 148,276
FoAth BR A A 72 TR s Effect of different taxation rates in another country 21,144 (1,747)
AR 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (12,623) (6,570)
P _EARRTHIR B2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 12,077 6,806
ﬁiiﬁ%’ﬁﬁéﬂ% Over-provision in prior years - (2,115)
IREEERI MR E ARG IR Additional tier 1 capital securities dividend payment (16,970) -
>§7WE?255FE Foreign withholding tax (115) 2,160
ST AFRIE Taxation charge 202,295 146,810

TS Effective tax rate 16.79% 16.34%
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LrEWTBERFRMTEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. IRKZMAHE

(i) RERDIREE TRERAVIER

T
358

R

(il) TAAFERERZ AL RS 8 B4
JEREE

AR Rt A RS B
SRR

(iii) A5k A SR Rt R ARHS
— AR HIFE
Fy M 102,849,000 IT
(2017 4« i) -

16. Dividends and Distributions

(i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the current year

2018 2017
e L 51,54 ki
Per share Total Per share Total
A BB peiscd BT
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$’000

Interim dividend - - - -

(i) Dividends payable to equity holders attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

2018 2017

ST L L (514 ks

Per share Total Per share Total

A BETT e BT

HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$’000
Final dividend in respect of

the previous financial

year, approved and paid

during the year 75 225,000 - -

(iii) During the year, amount paid on perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier
1 capital securities is HK$102,849,000 (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

17. BIREFI A

REFG T AR S THYFERK
STHI LS RIE GRREEiRpl) T
Z SRR B IR ORaE T 2%
Risats] - BRI IRGHE - (2
BURARSER R TE & R 050
HEAH &2 5% MR A
KRy R B 2 5% £ 15% A
%F (TR ZIRBEM) - (BRH
FEFRABIR ~ SERTR IR R F I 1L
HIRBSEEN0F Ll LR T
W H100% 2 fle £ BERK - s im3 e
EIFNE T > FHAMFEAMAR 18
FHE e BIRF A PR o ) > FTUL
30%ZE90% L ALK - (B ALK
Az CEEtEATEREIRE) Fr
[

W% (RfEelRp]) 7220005125
1H T AN IR 2 B SRRk
Syt o Fat# 2 ZEE AR
hEREFE S (R (Bt A IR A F]
PR B A R T IR BRSO
EEHARAE -

HE20184E12431H » (EHIRETHE
964,000 77 ( 2017 4E : %y
688,0007T ) 22Utz - IR
Rah B 2 K B LY B B
14,503,000 7¢ ( 2017 4F : &g
14,120,0007T ) » A EE[E )58 fE 5
a1 B 2 fE R 40 AE R &Y B i
4,485,000 70 ( 2017 4E @ %k
3,914,0007T)

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes
exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to
the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes
monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries,
depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon retirement, early retirement or termination of
employment after completing 10 years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of
service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from
30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other than summary
dismissal. All employer’s contributions are subjected to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$14,503,000 (2017: approximately
HK$14,120,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$964,000 (2017: approximately HK$688,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$4,485,000 (2017: approximately HK$3,914,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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LEETEENTEE (&)  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
18. X - S EHERFEA 18. Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s
B emoluments
(a) EEMi& (a) Directors’ emoluments
KREEAREHRAITES Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
ARTT B I B A SRt 2 respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
PR 75 T L R R U AR U > B within the Group during the year are as follows:
EREEWT ¢
2018 2017 (restated)
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEE Directors’ fees 4,751 3,272
HoAth e Other emoluments
- AT FOR AL - basic salaries and allowances 8,869 5,716
- BYE R AEAL - discretionary bonuses 10,343 6,941
- Hpth (ERERREERO - others (including pension contributions) 2,134 1,416
26,097 17,345
KL TR IERMITES Fees of HK$1,908,000 (2017: HK$1,329,000) were paid to the Independent
2 T < 4874 £y 7575 1,908,000 7T Non-executive Directors during the year.

(2017 : 7%41,329,0007T ) °
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LEEEERNTEE (&)  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)
18. X - S EHERFEA 18. Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s
8% (8) emoluments (continued)
(b) CG-5 T E4EHE R THE (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
ANERIH CG-5
HEEREHNZCGC-5 (TRHEM Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
HNRIERES 1) » REE AR HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of
Z SR EEE R TN B the Group during the year are as follows:
BEEREATT -
(i) NENFZTHIETN (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2018
EREEE FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JRIRE T &t FEIRIE AL 4EET
Non- Non-
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

ARTIT ARTIT ERTT ARTIT ARt ARTT
HK$'000 HK$’000  HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000

(& 7 S Fixed remuneration
4 Cash 16,017 - 16,017 11,028 - 11,028
R BN Variable remuneration
4 Cash 9,940 4,260 14,200 5,087 847 5,934
25,957 4,260 30,217 16,115 847 16,962
2017(restated)
A E e TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
S0 HEHE “aEt JRIEHE IEHE aast
Non- Non-
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BNt AETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(& 7 E Fixed remuneration
W Cash 11,471 - 11,471 8,017 - 8,017
VB Variable remuneration
R Cash 6,852 2,937 9,789 4,371 629 5,000
18,323 2,937 21,260 12,388 629 13,017
DL E#BEsET4 (201741 5 The remuneration above includes 7 (2017: 5) members of Senior Management
%) EEEMEE K9 (2017 and 9 (2017: 6) members of Key Personnel.

Fr68) EEAR -




&L A 8K

Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.

LEETEERNTEE (&)  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

18. X - S EHERFEA 18. Directors’, Senior Management’s and Key Personnel’s

8% (8) emoluments (continued)
(b) CG-5 BEAVHFENEIEIESI (b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel under
TEgEEERTIEAEN CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System (continued)
Y (&)
(i) eI (i) Deferred remuneration
2018 2017(restated)
EREEE EZEAR ESREE FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key
Management  Personnel Management Personnel
BT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AR Deferred
remuneration
[ Vested 513 - 498 -
REFIE Unvested 7,722 1,476 3,975 629
8,235 1,476 4,473 629
#w1H1H At 1 January 3,975 629 1,536 -
[Stcamig Awarded 4,260 847 2,937 629
3 Paid out (513) - (498) -
AR AR A T FLRRET Reduced through
performance
adjustments - - - -
w12 H 31 H At 31 December 7,722 1,476 3,975 629

WLIEE IR » AR EE AT
EHEEERANRIRESE
B (RRfERIREFBNGRIRE SRS 1) &

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel
mentioned in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a
Sound Remuneration System.

B - ERERENS
PEBE - AEERETRIGEE
TR o EFERVTECR. (T
Mk, (BRTT)WRACHEL, RIREE
HEERE RERYEE -

FEAA - EAEEEE R
HEAEBAYE - HEBRES
E=PN 7 RCEUN e
EHAER - EAPE - 5
BNAEEZENAS - B
SE 15 B A ARSI RSP T
H -~ SRR - DU
R E B B IREE
B —H=EA -

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
including Executive Directors, Chief Executive, General Manager (of the
Bank), Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial
Officer.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve
the assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk
exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked
to the risk management, or those who have direct influence to the profit,
including General Managers of material business lines, General Manager of
Financial Markets Department, as well as the General Managers of risk
control functions.
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19. EEHRESEERERTT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

B H A SR r &S
&R
2018 2017
BETIT HEETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EFERE Cash 176,662 176,064
AR IR THIAS B Balances with central banks 1,277,587 646,082
FETERTT B Eo A< R A& G Balances with banks and other financial
M4 ER institutions 956,278 620,341
TESRTT R At e Rl — Placements with banks and other financial
1 A NS e institutions maturing within one month 13,035,556 15,845,476
15,446,083 17,287,963
TRAE A Impairment allowances
- SIS - Stage 1 (71) -
- T IEE - Stage 2 - -
- RS - Stage 3 - .
15,446,012 17,287,963

20. TESRfT R E A E&Fii% 20. Placements with banks and other financial institutions maturing

B—z2+_{EHAANF between one and twelve months
HAZ EHAEIR
2018 2017
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETCERAT B HAth < b AR S Balances with banks and other financial
—Z T EARNEHEIZ institutions maturing between one to twelve
TE A months 6,302,817 780,905
TRAE A Impairment allowances
- SIS - Stage 1 (254) -
- FEE TEE - Stage 2 - -
- ISR - Stage 3 - -

6,302,563 780,905
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21. £ TR 21. Derivative financial instruments

AR T AL IR KR AT RRAY T4
TEAOFEE ERER A -

SRR ARG — HIEE S
WEHIAREH -

B RAFR R R SR R SR HY
HGE o REHEIEE R SR R B R
R (QEENRBGZBIFR ) LI LAY
FrE S - B EREIELsN - %

SNSRI IIRERYE T (LT B
B3 (FrATT) RIHERARSE—RER
AR — BB I P AT E AV EAS B
(R ) B (RUEHIE) —E
BeEAeR TEAVER (IR /Y
—HEfipeE - BEEINERIF R E - 10
HERYE T e E T O — B AT HIRE R -
AR SR B T S M i
EERRSUE B BFTHET (WS P
TTHE ) -

AREE AR TREY AU
FEAHEFIIN TR - SIER T
BIEL) HEBEE BRI
KHRERZRGE > E e TR
ZEH )/ ZEBEEAR L T —{E
IR N FITHERZAY 7 SR (Y 2 THE
HIELAVELEE - (B - BRI K
HIARARAER e B AR A FHE - Al
A RE S WA S B P bR A {5 T =
iRl - ST e TEE4I%
FAABARIMER BTSSR RA R E) - (14
SR LEAGETRERAN (HE)
BAH (FfE) B8 S EnRE
FEA [FIARIA BORAT R E) -

REEHET SN ISR E LA ST
THEEANERMREE P - EHEER
B FIZE T SRR T A R A A R
IR AR B 2 A 5 b B SR B
FUE -

PTARE SR E A B B SR TRV 2
b AR SR AN
AT ATHEITA 5 o TR A
EELE RV R AR T A4 FR B AR IR
AHIET A B R RIAR - SR E
LA ERY 2800 > DUET T4
F THGHEIE e R

The Group enters into exchange rate and interest rate related derivative
financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these. Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller
(writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set period,
a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter between the Group and its counterparty or traded through the
stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the end of the reporting dates and certain of them provide a basis for
comparison with fair values of instruments recognised on the statement of
financial position. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates or market interest
rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial
instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before
any transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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21. 74 &FhTH (4) 21. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

AR AL S T R R
BR1R2ANHZEY 4

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

TR RN AE
2018
B8/ BRBEH AHE
Contract/ Fair values
notional &'E =i
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
PEFREGLY Exchange rate contracts
BITHA R i 8 Spot and forwards 998,600 96,280 (8,047)
a3 Swaps 11,850,009 8,795 (19,636)
SNEERE Z 5k Foreign currency options
- EH A - Options purchased 120 1 -
- H AR - Options written 120 - (1)
12,848,849 105,076 (27,684)
FREL Interest rate contracts
s Swaps 2,935,961 17,604 (15,584)
15,784,810 122,680 (43,268)
2017
ISR OPEZE S AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional HiE Al
amounts Assets Liabilities
BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HERELY Exchange rate contracts
BTHA s 2 HA Spot and forwards 930,669 94,753 (6,350)
A Swaps 4,383,736 25,883 (4,246)
SINFERE Zh At Foreign currency options
- EAJARE - Options purchased 3,677 1 -
- AR - Options written 3,677 - (3)
5,321,759 120,637 (10,599)
ESSE| Interest rate contracts
sy Swaps 2,671,358 8,509 (8,190)

7,993,117 129,146 (18,789)
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22. Advances to customers and trade bills

22. EEERKEGE

2018 2017
BETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERNEEY Personal loans and advances
- e - Mortgages 2,874,667 3,131,138
- HoAh - Others 4,591,159 4,209,836
7,465,826 7,340,974
NEIEEK Corporate loans and advances
- PESEERK - Commercial loans 39,958,026 34,226,994
- BERIE - Trade finance 1,054,516 715,393
41,012,542 34,942,387
BEEK Advances to customers 48,478,368 42,283,361
BB ER (KHEI 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- P —sE - Stage 1 (139,832) -
- HEE TR Ex - Stage 2 (17,599) -
- P EE - Stage 3 (189,268) ;
- ?tcfl%uuﬁﬁ - Individually assessed - (70,115)
- RS - Collectively assessed - (176,333)
48,131,669 42,036,913
5B Trade bills 1,804,245 1,017,463
SEIBR R A g Trade bills impairment allowances
- Ex - Stage 1 (1,624) -
- EECRE - Stage 2 - -
- RS Ex - Stage 3 - -
1,802,621 1,017,463
49,934,290 43,054,376

1201812531 H & F &R
FEIESTF] S A5 136,345,000 7T
(20174 - A5#457,270,0007T ) °

As at 31 December 2018, advances to
HK$136,345,000 (2017: HK$57,270,000).

customers included accrued interest of
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23. ERUREERE

23. Loan impairment allowances

2018
i FREE BEREE #a5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20181 H1H At 1 January 2018 147,159 8,049 70,424 225,632
N Charged to income statement (7,158) 10,121 143,842 146,805
TR 2 AU a] B Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible - - (24,926) (24,926)
Ui o] S IR Recoveries (6) - 1,619 1,613
LR E X E G [ Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - - 2,071 2,071
PR 7% Exchange difference (163) (571) (3,762) (4,496)
A 2018 412 31 H At 31 December 2018 139,832 17,599 189,268 346,699
B AR Er st RIS 39 SRRt Comparative information under HKAS 39:
Ebdeir
2017
FEAEHE SRS Haat
Individually Collectively
assessed assessed Total
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
22017 1 H1H At 1 January 2017 83,408 139,382 222,790
ezl Charged to income statement 24,020 38,349 62,369
TR 2 AR el &R Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible (43,873) (290) (44,163)
W EIE s AR Recoveries 3,930 4) 3,926
PR EAE e (ol Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances (2,639) - (2,639)
PR S 7245 Exchange difference 5,269 (1,104) 4,165
2017 F£12 H 31 H At 31 December 2017 70,115 176,333 246,448
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24. BHER

ket
- REBLEE
- REBISN B
- JEE

T
- REE L
- REELIS ET
- JE Ll

R AE R
- B PERE
- PSR
- HE=ER

Rk R AT

Rl -
- E L
- P L
- L
R4

TEETTIERS Z o T

BEE
PRAT R HLAt e R

ANERE

(continued)

24. Investment in securities

2018
DIATHESE  DIAHESE
bRt AE M bRt AR DUBESRRA &5t
s 7 % TS ERZES
Investment in Investment in
securities at securities at
fair value fair value Investmentin
through other through securities at
comprehensive profit amortised
income and loss cost Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Certificate of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong - - - -
- Listed outside Hong Kong 9,009 - - 9,009
- Unlisted 1,925,157 - 151,728 2,076,885
1,934,166 - 151,728 2,085,894
Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 8,607,155 39,215 1,098,955 9,745,325
- Listed outside Hong Kong 5,301,496 170,920 130,580 5,602,996
- Unlisted 10,660,281 154,469 289,972 11,104,722
24,568,932 364,604 1,519,507 26,453,043
26,503,098 364,604 1,671,235 28,538,937
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 - - (334) (334)
- Stage 2 - - - -
- Stage 3 - - - -
- - (334) (334)
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposits 26,503,098 364,604 1,670,901 28,538,603
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 67,438 - - 67,438
- Listed outside Hong Kong - - - -
- Unlisted 21,465 - - 21,465
Total equity securities 88,903 - - 88,903
26,592,001 364,604 1,670,901 28,627,506
Analysed by type of issuer
as follows :
Sovereigns 10,455,426 - - 10,455,426
Banks and other financial
institutions 11,312,388 348,133 1,071,043 12,731,564
Corporate entities 4,824,187 16,471 599,858 5,440,516
26,592,001 364,604 1,670,901 28,627,506

-
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sifr 27

FERkEE

- REEETN

- REBLISN BT
- JE b

s

- AEE R

- INEBRDSH B
- JEEM

TR

- PR
- PR PR
- PR IREE

Fkes B B E5

Ry
- R L

- PEBLSN LT
- SR L

Pt RE R AR AH

HEEATIRIE 2 AT -

BHER
SRAT R HA e A

aifise
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

2017
LUATFES L
s AIEE 2
s ATHHESS SRJERGK Hest
Investment in
securities at
fair value Available-for- Loans
through Sale and
profit or loss securities receivables Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Certificate of deposit:
- Listed in Hong Kong - - - -
- Listed outside Hong Kong - 49,783 - 49,783
- Unlisted - 2,989,254 - 2,989,254
- 3,039,037 - 3,039,037
Debt securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong 39,673 6,929,382 - 6,969,055
- Listed outside Hong Kong 172,552 3,555,700 - 3,728,252
- Unlisted - 6,396,399 - 6,396,399
212,225 16,881,481 - 17,093,706
212,225 19,920,518 - 20,132,743
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1 - - - -
- Stage 2 - - - -
- Stage 3 - - - -
Total debt securities and
certificates of deposits 212,225 19,920,518 - 20,132,743
Equity securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong - 76,665 - 76,665
- Listed outside Hong Kong - - - -
- Unlisted - 14,278 - 14,278
Total equity securities - 90,943 - 90,943
212,225 20,011,461 - 20,223,686
Analysed by type of issuer as
follows :
Sovereigns - 5,099,986 - 5,099,986
Banks and other financial
institutions 195,312 10,359,820 - 10,555,132
Corporate entities 16,913 4,551,655 - 4,568,568
212,225 20,011,461 - 20,223,686
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

SR BT -

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2018
DIAFESE  DAFES
bt ARAME AT AR DABRBRECA
HW iR E5 Z&En SrREZES dEst
Investment in Investmentin Investment
securities at  securities at in
fair value fair value  securities
through other through at
comprehensive profit amortised
income and loss cost Total
AT AT AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2018 E1H1H At 1 January 2018 20,011,461 212,225 - 20,223,686
byl Additions 68,777,569 150,000 1,658,730 70,586,299
JRE ~ HEERFH Disposals, redemptions and
maturity (62,091,145) - - (62,091,145)
g Amortisation 133,638 1,470 17,368 152,476
INEE SR Change in fair value (171,836) 465 - (171,371)
P ST 7=%E Exchange difference (67,686) 444 (4,862) (72,104)
JRAE ZE Impairment allowance - - (335) (335)
201812 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 26,592,001 364,604 1,670,901 28,627,506
2017
DA TESE AL
(BT B4 A FIHIH B
255 Eeea Eeb JEWBGK HEEt
Investment in
securities at
fair value
through Available-  Held-to- Loans
profit for-sale maturity and
and loss securities  securities receivables Total
BT OBETE BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
w2017 E1H1H At 1 January 2017 653,943 12,856,354 - 531,322 14,041,619
A Additions 332,613 30,886,223 - - 31,218,836
JRE ~ IEE R EHA Disposals, redemptions
and maturity (765,846) (24,038,854) - (533,249) (25,337,949)
e Amortisation (11,788) 76,777 - 1,231 66,220
AN FEEE Change in fair value 800 (40,553) - - (39,753)
P07 %H Exchange difference 2,503 271,514 - 696 274,713
JEAE 2 Impairment allowance - - - - -
#2017 =12 H 31 H At 31 December 2017 212,225 20,011,461 - - 20,223,686

-
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25. FrEW 25. Investment properties
2018 2017
AT ERETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
w1H1H At 1 January 214,910 203,860
INPEUES (SR 13) Fair value gains (Note 13) 18,440 11,050
12 H 31 H At 31 December 233,350 214,910
Y& YZE > IR EE I 497 The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
ERIARR A0 T - the leases as follows:
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEEBRA Held in Hong Kong
ALY (B2 50 4F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 223,750 205,810
EEBLINTE Held outside Hong Kong
HHEATHZT (10 4E% 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 9,600 9,100
233,350 214,910
2018 /£ 12 H 31 H » %1 As at 31 December 2018, investment properties were included in the statement of
BRI BN ZIEEY) financial position at valuation carried out at 31 December 2018 on the basis of their fair
[ TR IR AT value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair
F O AT AR A T value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an
20184F 12 H 31 H LLAE(E orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

Fo BRI HE T BRAh(E -
ANPEfEEETRE R EER
BeFr SR T 52
L N IH A YRR
HUSHIERS -
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26. W% -~ BB RN 26. Properties, plant and equipment

B ~ EIE
FE B St 4EET
Equipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
2018 F1 H1HZ Net book value at
WRHFHME 1 January 2018 1,506,300 45,953 1,552,253
g Additions 115,244 5,218 120,462
HE Disposals - (16) (16)
{5 Revaluation 95,319 - 95,319
FEETE (ffsE12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (20,452) (8,845) (29,297)
P T2 754 Exchange difference (1) (151) (152)
2018412 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
WRTHSE 31 December 2018 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
2018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018
RAE B E Cost or valuation 1,696,410 142,521 1,838,931
FEHTEE RRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (100,362) (100,362)
2018 12 H 31 H> Net book value at
MRIAFE 31 December 2018 1,696,410 42,159 1,738,569
i R RAME B E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
SRR
201812 H 31 H At 31 December 2018
FERAME At cost - 142,521 142,521
T E At valuation 1,696,410 - 1,696,410

1,696,410 142,521 1,838,931
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K207 E1H1HZ
MR E

e
s

i
EEREHTE (W 12)
i

e 52 724

2017 £ 12 5 31 H>
W (L

2017 4512 H 31 H
JRAAE S B
RS RRkE

2017 £ 12 5 31 HZ
IREHE

bAtE R RAME S {E
IIITAIT

#2017 £ 12 431 H
FERAE
S E

Net book value at
1 January 2017

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year (Note 12)
Transfer

Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2017

At 31 December 2017

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2017

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

e~ EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2017
At cost

At valuation

i Bai&n dEt

Equipment,

fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
BT BT EHT I
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1,489,261 43,112 1,632,373
43,015 11,510 54,525
(52) (346) (398)
(8,701) - (8,701)
(18,058) (7,809) (25,867)
836 (836) -
1) 322 321
1,506,300 45,953 1,652,253
1,506,300 146,691 1,652,991
- (100,738) (100,738)
1,506,300 45,953 1,552,253
- 146,691 146,691
1,506,300 - 1,506,300
1,506,300 146,691 1,652,991
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26. W5 ~ 2304 Bkt

26. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)

A Z PRI E FAR LIRIB R
PRI -

TEEBRA
RIITHLY (BE4E 50 4F)
A IREEY (10 4223 50 42)

TEEBLINGTH
RIHMEY (iEas 50 42)
HIFHEY (10 422 50 42)

2018412 H 31 H » 7
A BHRIEA Z B E » Ty
ISR I S AT D5
BATARAFN 2018 4
12 7 31 HELAPHEREE
FTErT 2 B2 - A PE
Bt R E B EEAT R
HIEI T RTS8
Bl —THEERERSHH
1% o

R Ll BfEEER > FBE
M EEBT I EE L
RIS -

EaC 7 2 B A 2 EEAh Y
B CR{ED

VS R f it R A R
(B8 s

#2018 4£ 12 H 31 H » &
R EERAEITR RS
B RORME BRI - A
ZM BTN Z B Z R
moE E O R B
442,814,000 7T (2017 4F: :
HEIE 355,329,000 7T ) -

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

2018 2017
AT I T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,244,330 1,144,000
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 415,480 324,500

Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 32,800 34,200
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 3,800 3,600
1,696,410 1,506,300

As at 31 December 2018, premises were included in the statement of financial position at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2018 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value
represents the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and income statement as follows:

2018 2017
AT AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Increase / (decrease) in valuation charged to

premises revaluation reserve 119,251 (9,403)

Net (loss)/gain from disposal and impairment of
premises (23,932) 702
95,319 (8,701)

As at 31 December 2018, the net book value of premises that would have been included
in the Group’s statement of financial position had the premises been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$442,814,000 (2017:
HK$355,329,000).
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27. g E 27. Other assets
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEE Precious metals 39,044 38,418
Uelel & Repossessed assets 157,770 -
JEUREIE R FE - 2 F Accounts receivable and prepayments 259,970 787,420
456,784 825,838
BB AERS Impairment allowances
- HETEE - Stage 1 (120) -
- ISR - Stage 2 - -
- HE S - Stage 3 (1,305) -
- TR {E RS - Individually assessed - -
- FrAH AT - Collectively assessed - (57)
455,359 825,781
28. EEHFERK 28. Deposits from customers
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIEHFR B AR A AR Demand deposits and current accounts 5,401,426 7,924,240
EEEF Savings deposits 18,443,998 20,094,623
TEHR ~ PR R R Time, call and notice deposits 54,484,091 35,260,574
78,329,515 63,279,437
29. HAMRETE R EH 29. Other accounts and provisions
2018 2017
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
oA (T HRIE Other accounts payable 736,519 998,725
HEffg Provisions 1,343 1,343
737,862 1,000,068
EEROREE R S L ORek 2 Impairment allowances of loan commitments
B and financial guarantees contracts issued
- g TEE - Stage 1 8,427 -
- T T IEE - Stage 2 22 -
- HECRSE - Stage 3 - -
746,311 1,000,068

S
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30. FEIEFRIE 30. Deferred taxation
IR R IRIB T B Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
HHIEE1259% TATSAE 5T bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
B pLE E AR B unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income Taxes”.
BLHAE I iR N IR I {E
W 2 BT AR R R R
PR AR -
M FSIR IR N Z SR AL R T The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the statement of
(HE) BETEHEG - financial position, and the movements during the year are as follows:
DR HARFFEN Z S EhAn
T
2018
POERTE
®fE FEEM i} REEE i §Est
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Others Total

BETT  BWTIXT  B%TI  BETRT BRTT AT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

r2018 1 A1 H At 1 January 2018,
Z FRIFIE as previously reported 17,921 205,523 - (53,521) (41,880) 128,043
JE R B s Adjustment on initial
HEHIZE 9 SRR application of HKFRS 9 - - - (1,998) 3,069 1,071
r2018 1 H 1 H At 1 January 2018,
ZEEF as restated 17,921 205,523 - (55,519) (38,811) 129,114
fEz/ (&8) Wgssk Charged / (credited) to
(B3E 15) income statement
(Note 15) 5,832 125 (710) 8,279 639 14,165
fEst,/ (&50) Hiths Charged / Credited to other
T 4 comprehensive income - 16,953 - - (32,699) (15,746)
P 72 4H Exchange difference . . (3) 1,415 - 1,412
2018412 5§31 H  At31December 2018 23,753 222,601 (713) (45,825) (70,871) 128,945
2017
InEHreE
wfzE  BEEG i TR AE HAth Wizt
Accelerated
tax Premises Impairment
depreciation _revaluation Losses allowance Others Total
BT BWTIT BNTT HBETT T HBSTT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
#2017 1 H1H At 1 January 2017 13,971 208,855 - (44,149) (33,069) 145,608
et/ (&E) Wiz Charged/(credited) to
(e 15) income statement
(Note 15) 3,950 466 - (5,834) 299 (1,119)
Bt HA UGS Credited to other
comprehensive income - (3,798) - - (9,110) (12,908)
[ 2 72%H Exchange difference - - - (3,538) - (3,538)
#2017 4212 31 H At 31 December 2017 17,921 205,523 - (53,521) (41,880) 128,043

-
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30. BIEMIE (&) 30. Deferred taxation (continued)
R EEMER R A R Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
THE A R S R legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
B 1T IR RERTIEDA e [E]— taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
R - FIETRHE HE AR offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

A HIE RS I A LR T S T
BETARRS - TIHEM
IRRRNYIR 2 28 Eat

PN -tiiv
2018 2017
BETT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
PR IEE Deferred tax assets (12,298) (19,911)
IEIEFRTE G (F Deferred tax liabilities 141,243 147,954
128,945 128,043
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3. A 31. Share capital

R A A A RER L
MEESIREIRE - WAE
RATRIER A R R

o= °

BA1A1H
ELa THeER
BW12H31H

REEE (ARG 5
13515 » ASRATHIE B AL
fEREE - EmR A AR
HESEAS 1 I B MR SF A 4T
Ho A AR TR R &k
R ET R
SR FTA AR SR TR
AT -

AERITIR20184:12H 3 H
M A T
Hik% - £ 201842125 31
H > & Xi&#T
368,247 it ~ W HUE T
1,472,988,000 j© i
20184E12H 31 H VA5 k
KR R A - 20
2201941 H 29 H 8 17
368,248 [ir ~ W HLE Y
1,472,992,0007T - 722018
FA2H31H > FIRITEUW
HU% 2 R & o W
23,044,000 7% 31f: ££ ¥ 75 i
o e R By HL A JE iR
K BB 2019481
F29 0 48T ) AT
A ETRR R AREA -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank's residual net assets.

2018 2017
BetygE AT B E BT
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
At 1 January 3,000,000 300,000 3,000,000 300,000
Shares issued 368,247 1,472,988 - -
At 31 December 3,368,247 1,772,988 3,000,000 300,000

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the ordinary
shares of the Bank do not have a par value. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank’s residual
assets.

The Bank passed the resolution on 3 December 2018 to issue new shares to its existing
shareholders. The first allotment of 368,247 shares was paid and issued with a
consideration of HK$1,472,988,000 on 31 December 2018 and recognised as share capital
in the financial statement. The second allotment of 368,248 shares was issued with a
consideration of HK$1,472,992,000 on 29 January 2019. As at 31 December 2018, the
Bank received HK$23,044,000 for the second allotment of shares which was recognised as
other account payable in the financial statement. The second allotment of shares was fully
paid and issued on 29 January 2019 and the payable was transferred into share capital in
the financial statement since then.
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32. FIMRATR

32. Additional equity instruments

2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
2.5 [FFEITTAAIEBETREK US$250 million perpetual non-cumulative
BN E AR subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 1,937,712 1,937,712

AT 201711 H29H
BT T EEE25EETT
CHIBRAR R 35 1T A 1% 52
{E#7%%1,938,000,0007T )
HIR AR R ET AR HIN—
goEEdr (THNEARL
B ) A AN ER LR
20224511 H 29 H {2
FliE ] IR > SR AR AR
TEN5.25% - HEEFAFTT
(EFEEIME - ERE AR
AT E NG LA IR B
JEEL {7 BRIV AR FI 2=
e T R

BERBFFHERN—R A
RIT AR BN E A
T HAYRRGE E HCH A E
SR THUSFEA & 2
T o

B8 B ARITR
B B T Y AR
s REVINE AT R
R G e B R e
&R HAR S T T

7220224211 H 29 H 8E(T
HBRREH - ASTHER
i [ P 2] P A AR Y
HYNEATR BHAZES]
B PRR s ARIFTRR A -

20184E5H23H K11 H26
HE 5 Bk S HLARSNE A
T B A& 5#1%51,516,000
TCR HE251,333,0007T

On 29 November 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$250 million
(equivalent to HK$1,938,000,000 net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.25% coupon until the first call date on 29 November
2022. The coupon will be reset every five years if the additional equity instruments are not
redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subject to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would
become non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
29 November 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as
set out in the terms and conditions.

During the year, the coupons of this additional equity instruments were paid with the
amount of HK$51,516,000 and HK$51,333,000 on 23 May 2018 and 26 November 2018
respectively.
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33. TSR ERMEE  33. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) BRELATERFIEEERIGAT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to operating cash

EEHEZRAN
Cfit) Bk

inflow/(outflow) before taxation

2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
(SRl Profit before taxation 1,204,742 898,642
BN EEE Net gain from fair value adjustments on
pEIEm investment properties (18,440) (11,050)
HEYE - 250 Rk Net loss / ( gain) from disposal and revaluation
FESTE S (Ugs) B, of properties, plant and equipment
RS 23,948 (702)
ITE Depreciation 29,297 25,867
T AE Net charge of impairment allowances 138,429 62,300
JFEHIHE®E 3 EA 2 Change in balances with banks and other
TERCERTT B At 4 financial institutions with original maturity over
MR &R > ) three months (1,186,642) 215,763
JFEFEHAH 8 3 EH >~ Change in placements with banks and other
TESRTT B At 4 Flidk financial institutions with original maturity over
T2 BRI &8 three months (2,068,139) 236,904
BUE B DN ES (RS Change in financial assets designated at fair
A2 7 BREE value through profit or loss
) (152,379) 441,718
AR T E 2 8 Change in derivative financial instruments 30,945 (27,893)
HEEIRE SR Change in Advances to customers and trade
) bills (6,999,754) (11,983,458)
FHEARIYE 2 ) Change in investment in securities (9,179,517) (4,570,228)
Hofth & e > 54 Change in other assets 369,051 (104,610)
PRAT R HAt < mbiafE Change in deposits and balances from banks
ik R Gheh > 8 and other financial institutions 1,945,636 8,983,579
BRI &) Change in deposits from customers 15,050,078 17,841,817
HARETE R A5 > S5 Change in other accounts and provisions (262,317) 442,380
PSR S EH)  m A Effect of changes in exchange rates 79,895 (95,716)
s ERe” ORf Operating cash (outflow) / inflow before
H) HA taxation (995,167) 12,355,313
SR SR e Cash flows from operating activities included:
S
- BRI E — Interest received 2,328,166 1,293,175
- BEFIE — Interest paid (758,832) (365,989)
- TR — Dividend received 5,941 2,380
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(b) HE R FFRREHEE
ot

T HE KIFEIHEAE 3
8 B A Z FERRTT R
fit e R AR

JFREHAEAE 3 (HHANZAE
ST R HAt R A 2
TESHFIR

JREIMHEE 3 MHRNZ
JE 2%

JREIMEAE 3 EMHANZ
Tk

(c) B&rSHBARILRATES
iR

JEE A7 B e B A7 SR AT B L
Rl RV4ER
TESRAT B HoAMh < Bl A —
Z+ (AN E
HAfFIX
BHILE
ool 1 DUATAEE LR A
Hf 4L 2 55
Hep o ot i E 25
Hp o B AR 25
LR A BRI R IR
EHH

R RAAR R 3 {E A
DL /Y 5258

ARG IR ER NI
B REREeHEE

(continued)

33. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

2018 2017
BRETT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000

Cash and balances with banks and other

financial institutions with original maturity

within three months 13,881,925 16.910.381
Placements with banks and other financial

institutions with original maturity within

three months 3.453.725 -
Treasury bills with original maturity within
three months 519,685 1,613,199
Certificates of deposit with original maturity
within three months 832,807 489,136
18,688,142 19,012,716

(c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of financial position

2018 2017
ARTT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions 15,446,012 17,287,963
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 6,302,563 780,905
Investment in securities
Of which: FVOCI securities

26,592,001 -
Of which: Available- for-sale securities . 20,011,461
Of which: at amortised cost securities 1,670,901 -
Amount shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position 50,011,477 38,080,329
Less: Amounts with an original maturity of
beyond three months (31,323,335) (19,067,613)
Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement 18,688,142 19,012,716
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34. SRAREE FRIE 34. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR E ORI S IRARE&E The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
AR Y &8 R IRRITE contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and
iRimimsd - HEHETH is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital
Tl A R 4 R i adequacy ratio.
REBEARE A -
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HFEEEREE Direct credit substitutes 10,005 9,930
B SR 2 SR A Transaction-related contingencies 30,801 34,579
BT S RE > SR E B Trade-related contingencies 604,858 999,301
REE SRS > Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
K without prior notice 7,149,531 7,305,474
HAethgdE  FEHH F Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 EEDLT - up to one year 108,304 123,054
-1FED - over one year 3,543,769 2,523,220
11,447,268 10,995,558
e sEC it seE Credit risk-weighted amount 1,439,509 1,579,341
EEERIEEEERE (R The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
1738 (&A) HAN) & - 1k Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
BEEHU AR S F 2 E N & characteristics of each type of contract.

BEEL R -
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35. EAEKRE 35.

ARSI R I 8 st o o 158
2 EARIE AT -

EAEAE R EE RS A
EAAEERELY

DU BB ARIERE 53 ot

ZEBRERELE R DR
AREHZHEFRE TR K
¥ o

36. EMHERE 36.

(a) fERAMEA

UESZ NI 6 A
THEEL TH A%
R 2 A e FH B R B
PRS2 B (BAH S

e A
- T 1A
-1 ER S FER

I A R 2 4L
BT AR S 2 07
finesk H 1.2 i {E sdete
LI ER R B I
PERH AR -

Capital commitments

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
statements:

2018 2017

BT AT

HK$°000 HK$°000

Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 520 578
Authorised but not contracted for - -
520 578

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

Operating lease commitments

(a) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2017
AT AETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 49,067 31,934

- Later than one year but not later than five
years 78,073 33,137
127,140 65,071

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
agreed dates or according to the special condition as stipulated in the leases.
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36. LBTHERE (&)

37.

(b) fERHIFEA

IREEA AT 2 4B
BE4 TYI AL
HEFTTENZRAH
A TH & Fe R < -

e A
- i 14
-1HUEE S FEN

FREE L EHE
TR EEE  FHE
MR 3 E -
R — AR EORFE F fE
SRR s KR R4 HI
> BRIERE S L 2R
IR S -

¥

iz

>

7 5 [ TE T 2 Y R T
A bt H R B e KR
{8 © ZERERLRELEAR
SEEEIE R PR G AR -

P EE SR Ry AN 5 [ 7T
R AMEHA Dyt eiE
BT S R AT R B B
TR B ARB I ZERE
[LZRAEAF B A -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

36. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Land and buildings

- Not later than one year 4,607 4,887

- Later than one year but not later than five
years 1,037 2,401
5,644 7,288

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according
to the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

37. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities
of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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38. 38. Segmental reporting
(a) FEBEY (a) Operating segments information
AREEFEHIL T B =(HEBE T The Group divides its businesses into three operating segments. They are
B e B AR TER -~ 4 Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
SEIRTTIETS IR B SETS © SETS4RI the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
TR BN AN E & P g R E L product type.
(e
B BRI RO SE SR TSR TS 4RI & Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
FEEESHEIRITIRT - BIEREE services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
AR B~ BRI SRR E products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
i S HA(E EARTS ~ B K RkE foreign currency and derivative products. Personal Banking mainly serves
GNEESETE R TR RS » (EER retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate

1THBRFEEZRBEAZE > 1 customers. Treasury manages the funding and liquidity, and the interest
BERITEBGEEZRBAE rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to proprietary
K - BINWEERG  BRTHE trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises,
EHEAN  EEEEHEENREE investment properties and equity investments.

& FIRFISNER L - T HA ) 22
—fil - EEBEAEERA B
B AV MR A S

SETSARINEE ~ &fE -~ YA~ ZH - Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and

zuﬂ;ﬂz%};‘z AN S HHEEENE capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
EETERETE R - EER A segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as

%E%%E@&%i‘%@ﬁ%ﬁx&u& well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment

T PLE S B E G NE funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing

o EEBARESINEM - f7EH mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the

NE & e EREEE > T2 consideration of specific features of the product.

AT R B - B R AR

EE TR

B (8] Y T B A SRR B A S U As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior

A W H EaE e R R management relies primarily on net interest income in managing the

U AZREHFHZERS - NILPT A 2% business, interest income and expense for all reportable segments are

AR AR S DA T - presented on a net basis.
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(a) HEFHED (§)
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38. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2018
EASHT ST WEER Hith /Nt EpHESS e
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
ST ST SR ST ST R ST
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JFFIE (2 A Netinterest (expense)lincome
- Ak - External (455,260) 1,209,930 803,760 - 1,558,430 - 1,558,430
- BSETS - Inter-segment 787,980  (409,780)  (378,200) - - - -
332,720 800,150 425,560 - 1,558,430 - 1,558,430
TRARRTE ARSI A Net fee and commission
income 188,655 180,757 1,407 - 370,819 - 370,819
iEezlEber Net trading gain 28,360 11,262 9,403 22,718 71,743 - 71,743
R HES L Net gain on financial
EN e instruments designated at fair
Hfles value through profit or loss - - 465 - 465 - 465
Hoptrembiie 5 Net (loss)/gain on other
() s financial assets - (187) 6,061 - 5,874 - 5,874
HprECE A Other operating income - 338 611 28,207 29,156 (16,748) 12,408
JEHURERGNTSE  Net operating income before
EBBA impairment allowances 549,735 992,320 443,507 50,925 2,036,487  (16,748) 2,019,739
TR T Net charge of impairment
allowances (3,554)  (144,905) 4,104 5,926 (138,429) - (138,429)
FREBUTA Net operating income 546,181 847,415 447,611 56,851 1,898,058 (16,748) 1,881,310
s Operating expenses (381,494)  (173,657)  (26,908)  (105,749) (687,808) 16,748 (671,060)
ESF]/ (BiE)  Operating profiti(loss) 164,687 673,758 420,703  (48,898) 1,210,250 - 1,210,250
FEEYEE NS E TS Net gain from fair value
2GS adjustments on
investment properties - - - 18,440 18,440 - 18,440
HEE EEPEE - % Net(loss) from
W RS 23k disposal/revaluation of
H) properties, plant and
equipment - - - (23,948) (23,948) - (23,948)
BFERTSFL” (B38)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 164,687 673,758 420,703  (54,406) 1,204,742 - 1,204,742
GE Assets
SEEE Segment assets 10,014,438 44,995,637 45,860,715 2,001,837 102,872,627 - 102,872,627
b={i4 Liabilities
ST EfE Segment liabilities 63,569,114 21,199,392 6,070,074 430,851 91,269,431 - 91,269,431
HAtrEet Other information
BEARME Capital expenditure 1,529 1,126 22 117,785 120,462 - 120,462
JrEE Depreciation 5,857 3,207 93 20,140 29,297 - 29,297
SEERY Amortisation of securities - - (152,476) - (152,476) - (152,476)
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(a) EEHE Y (8D

2017
BB T [5G &R Hitr, /Nt EFHE RE
Personal Corporate
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal _Eliminations  Consolidated
AT HEETT AT AT AT AR BEETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SFFIE (24 YA Netinterest (expense)lincome
- Ak - External (108,683) 705,985 353,202 - 950,504 - 950,504
- PR - Inter-segment 397,871  (205,561)  (192,310) - - - -
289,188 500,424 160,892 - 950,504 - 950,504
SRARRSE ARSI A Net fee and commission
income 243,428 206,682 880 - 450,990 - 450,990
GG (85 Nettrading gain/(loss)
1) 18,406 10,431 843 (21,745) 7,935 - 7,935
BRI ESME Net gain on financial
sEASEG SR instruments designated at fair
I=REEN value through profit or loss - - 793 - 793 - 793
HoAtrRlE 25 Net (loss)/gain on other
(E548) WEs financial assets - (58) 8,225 - 8,167 - 8,167
HAECEA Other operating income 73 592 - 32,220 32,885 (25,194) 7,691
FEHUREEER S Net operating income before
LBBA impairment allowances 551,095 718,071 171,633 10,475 1,451,274 (25,194) 1,426,080
TRAEZER S Net charge of impairment
allowances (1,491)  (60,806) - 3) (62,300) - (62,300)
TR A Net operating income 549,604 657,265 171,633 10,472 1,388,974 (25,194) 1,363,780
KT Operating expenses (293,676) (123,800) (18,736) (65,872) (502,084) 25,194 (476,890)
TEXF/ (B Operating profit/(loss) 255,928 533,465 152,897 (55,400) 886,890 - 886,890
TEEYEENESFE  Netgain from fair value
2GS adjustments on
investment properties - - - 11,050 11,050 - 11,050
e EAYEE - 2R Net gain from
MRS 5 s disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - 702 702 - 702
BFARSF] (B5H8)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 255,928 533,465 152,897 (43,648) 898,642 - 898,642
= Assets
SYEERE Segment assets 11,157,458 37,427,977 33,714,547 1,788,949 84,088,931 - 84,088,931
=iy Liabilities
SrEEE Segment liabilities 46,934,286 20,678,962 6,564,641 347,545 74,525,434 - 74,525,434
HtrEpet Other information
[ ZNEd] Capital expenditure 12,540 758 29 41,200 54,527 - 54,527
e Depreciation 104 17 16,875 8,871 25,867 - 25,867
LY Amortisation of securities - - _ (78,008) - (78,008) - (78,008)

%%’éﬂ)a‘ R M=

38. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) Operating segments information (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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38. EIEHE (&) 38. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) HEHEEIREY (b) By geographical area
DUFER RS = The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations:
SR
2018 2017
HEHUR(E FRHCRE e
YR BRTRAT (BT *EHJ
SBEBUA WR FEEEA #iF
Net operating Net operating )
income before Profit  income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BT BT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong 1,651,477 949,912 1,320,121 875,847
o [5] A Mainland China 368,262 254,830 105,959 22,795
2,019,739 1,204,742 1,426,080 898,642
2018 2017
EE HEE
Total assets Total assets
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
ik Hong Kong 83,843,111 74,240,614
o B Y HE Mainland China 19,029,516 9,848,317
102,872,627 84,088,931
39. B EE 39. Assets pledged as security
2018 F12H31H » A As at 31 December 2018, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$247,788,000 (2017:
B SRR AT 2 B R Ry HK$2,387,000) were secured by bills. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to
A&i%247,788,0007T (2017 secure these liabilities was HK$246,850,000 (2017: HK$2,373,000) included in “Trade
. #E52,387,0007C ) « A& bills”.
EEBEREEEENE
2 ERESE BB
246,850,000, (20174F :
AEWE2,373,000 7T ) ¢ WGP
M | AR -
TA20184E12H31H » A& As at 31 December 2018, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$1,531,520,000
[ A (A R 2 EE Ry (2017: Nil) were secured by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to
A 1,631,520,000 JT secure these liabilities was HK$1,571,559,000 (2017: Nil) included in “Debt securities”.

(20174 + 4) - ALEE By

ERILEAEMENZE
E o | R OB W
1,571,559,000 . ( 2017
) AR TR N
I -
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40. &R T B 7385 40. Offsetting financial instruments
TRIRAEECHES =
BT RS B AR R A
L T T 4 ) <6 il

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

THE
2018
RERMBRRRFEHZ
TERASER
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
. . financial position
_ REMEBRRERT REHBRREES
Eﬁﬁ%?gﬁﬁﬂ Bz Emlem FInNEmEE EMEZ .
B =Vl HH ST A BTk it R
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised  Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
assets financial position financial position instruments received amount
BT BT AT AT AT IT AETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
BEiE Assets
744t Derivative financial
TH instruments 20,877 - 20,877 (5,679) - 15,198
Hth&#E Other assets 443,773 (340,579) 103,194 - - 103,194
464,650 (340,579) 124,071 (5,679) - 118,392
2018
FERVBRRFERIEH
TERREE
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
R . financial position
_ REEBRRERD REBRIES
CHEREM EHr O FImey S A i BB .
=Tt B R FH SRTH e b}
Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
Gross recognised financial
amounts of financial assets liabilities
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities financial position financial position instruments pledged amount
BT T BT T AT IT AT IT ABRETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=i Liabilities
174 4 Fh Derivative financial
TE instruments 5,679 - 5,679 (5,679) - -
HAfth& (& Other liabilities 361,514 (340,580) 20,934 - - 20,934
367,193 (340,580) 26,613 (5,679) - 20,934

S
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40. &FLT E 8 (&) 40. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2017

RENMBRRE IR
TR R

Related amounts not set off

in the statement of financial

. N position
o MBI RS BB R
CHEEER 150 OHERSR SR &S E Sl e .
EREAEER =ik e SR TH BB b |
Gross amounts of
Gross recognised Net amounts of
amounts of financial liabilities financial assets
recognised set off in the presented in the Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
assets  financial position  financial position  instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
=73 Assets
744t Derivative financial
TH instruments 33,653 - 33,653 (5,516) - 28,137
HAth&ZE Other assets 949,188 (424,913) 524,275 - - 524,275
982,841 (424,913) 557,928 (5,516) - 552,412
2017
AR BRI P
THEAHH
Related amounts not set off
in the statement of financial
o - position
o MEARRRT R BRI R
CREEER R CHEleR JRm &5 & CARZ -
=ik =Lkt - S THE b7 Xt T
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of
amounts of recognised financial liabilities
recognised financial assets set  presented in the Cash
financial off in the statement statement of Financial collateral Net
liabilities of financial position  financial position  instruments pledged amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
=0 Liabilities
#5744 Fb Derivative financial
THE instruments 5,516 - 5,516 (5,516) - -
Hfth& (& Other liabilities 443,693 (424,913) 18,780 - - 18,780

449,209 (424,913) 24,296 (5,516) - 18,780
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40. &R T E 2354 (88) 40. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

WHAREESETARBIMT For master netting agreements for OTC derivative transactions entered into by the Group
ETHERZ GG EE related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other
Toheds o (i S AR IR A B H A predetermined events occur.

HIRERNEMR RIFE—2

Sy 2 B e E T ER A

TFERAEE -

M. EEEX 41. Loans to directors
g EE (AR 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong
383k K (AE (FHFEESE Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Flas &) Bif) =5 Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HIHLE » (AR T E 42
2 BEHEER AT -
2018 2017
BETT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
N N F St st Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
X 5 48R outstanding at year end - .
NFENREERERZ S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant

T transactions outstanding during the year - ;
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42. FHE > ER#E A3 5 42. Significant related party transactions

REANEIRYEAE General information of the parent companies:
REEHE IR ER 1T E 4% The Group is ultimately controlled by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., which is a

e PRI T R — T
hEE NRILAIE (TRE )
I H B P SERTT o

Chinese commercial bank established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(a) ERAERBAFEE

&> EAM A EETH controlled by the parent companies

X5

(i) 0]

REEE > H RGN E] The Group’s immediate holding company is Chiyu International Financial Holdings

AP A R
RAE( T EREREE
) EREEE
EE PR E AR A
EleEtE s s EFE
EREARAEHERN
BURERTT A -

R oy B P B SR AT
EITHIAC 5 R A B

SEW) o Y 2018 £ 12
A 31 H > AEEHREE
W R e S T P BB SR T
KT JE A oy 0l R AR

Limited (“Chiyu International Holdings”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xiamen
International Investment Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd.

The majority of transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. arise from
money market activities. As at 31 December 2018, the related aggregate amount due
from and to Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. of the Group were HK$269,051,000
(2017:HK$2,909,000) and HK$2,705,038,000 (2017:HK$3,285,218,000). The
aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
transactions with Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. during 2018 were HK$1,251,000
(2017:HK$271,000) and HK$51,096,000 (2017:HK$1,404,000) respectively.

269,051,000 ¢ (2017
A ¢ ki 2,909,000 TT)
e 2,705,038,000
JC (2017 AR B
3,285,218,000 1) jAA
P A PR R SR T R
Wb g h E
B A R S R 53 1
B 1,251,000 T
(2017 4 : 3% 271,000
IT) K # e 51,096,000
JC (2017 4 ¢ B W
1,404,000 7T) -
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G BSERRMTEE () Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. FHE > ER#E ANT3X S 42. Significant related party transactions (continued)
€:-))

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

(a) EREAFE RBAEER

ZHAMANFETHIR S
(&)

AR oy BERE N B2 2
ﬂﬂ AFINZ A E & P

o A 2018 &£ 12 H 31
EI AEE EAA R CR AR
Hie 45,114,000 75 (2017
A ¢ kg 74,737,000 ) «
% 2018 £ 12 A 31 H Ik
18 BLBE N = P ) 2 HoAtl
N E R UL SR S i AR
T AR Y S U M R R
687,000 7T (2017 4F : i
i 68,000 JT) ©

#%E 2018 4212 F 31 H
1k REE A B
152,916,000 7T f1 3 9 Il
P SRAT B4 AT IR ALY
AR LS 1,529,000
TEMEHCA (2017 422 4)-

HE 2018412 A 31 H
I REEFAE B
341,294,000 77 (& FE
PR ERAT S THY (5 28 27 00
WA B R B K
1,881,000 JLFIEUTA -

BEZGUEBEARRR

THIRIA

- fEE - BROIR(E RIERA
PEZAFRC

- SRETIRISEZ R R e

- Y~ B A R ER
P At B A 42 B B
BT LS

- BEEINE ~ BERR AR R
BT

- 1*% IEREER 0 &

- ““”/4}/\%% 2

E)&Zﬂﬁﬁ]ﬁ%

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arise from deposits from customers. As at 31 December 2018, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$45,114,000 (2017:HK$74,737,000). The aggregate
amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with other
companies controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31 December 2018
was HK$687,000 (2017:HK$68,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the related aggregate amount of the Group invested in the
subordinated debt issued by Luso International Banking Limited was
HK$152,916,000 with the interest income gained during 2018 was HK$1,529,000
(2017:Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, the related aggregate amount of the Group invested in the
debt securities issued by Xiamen International Bank was HK$341,294,000 with the
interest income gained during 2018 was HK$1,881,000.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and
- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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42. FHE > ER#E N3RS 42. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)
(b) FEEREAER (b) Key management personnel
TSR A BEERL Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
e E oI a ) for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
K EEAEE - 58 R including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
EEREEB AL grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary
BEEERSSEHE course of business. During both the current and prior periods, no material
o NEEFIEH E transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
@y FEEEAS holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

TR e R He K
ERRE - PRI R
W RN A B
HRAT R AR AN F 2
B BB
ANEHEITEARR S -

FHEEREBAEEHZE12H The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December
31 H AR Z # A is detailed as follows:
T
2018 2017 (restated)
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

H - HArEEIE T Salaries, other short-term employee
TEF FOR R 1R benefits and post-employment benefits 33,851 23,988
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2 A a . . . .
émmﬁ)jf%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
43. BIBIR IR fEZSE 43, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity
Bk
(a) IR (a) Statement of financial position
12 H31H As at 31 December 2018 2017
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HiE ASSETS
JER A B < B A7 TR AT R oAt <5 il Cash and balances with banks and other
PRI SSER financial institutions 15,446,012 17,287,963
EIRT R H A SR — 2+ = Placements with banks and other financial
{iEl H B > E AT institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 6,302,563 780,905
FUE Ry LA EE LET AT 2 Financial assets designated at fair value
ERIERE through profit or loss 364,604 212,225
PTEER TR Derivative financial instruments 122,680 129,146
KPR E 5B Advances to customers and trade bills 49,934,290 43,054,376
RAE Investment in securities 28,262,902 20,011,461
P& A E] Investment in subsidiaries 11,713 11,713
JRELAL BT Fa 2 E R Amounts due from subsidiaries 163,636 11,642
B YZE Investment properties 233,350 214,910
YISk ~ 250 R AR Properties, plant and equipment 1,628,187 1,531,551
IRIERRIEE Deferred tax assets 12,298 19,911
Fpth & Other assets 454,578 825,781
EFELEE Total assets 102,936,813 84,091,584
b= i=y LIABILITIES
PRAT R HAth R A > R R Deposits and balances from banks and
“EER other financial institutions 11,933,270 9,987,634
TSR T E Derivative financial instruments 43,268 18,789
gy Deposits from customers 78,417,282 63,329,964
JRE AT BT s 2 B Amounts due to subsidiaries 824 3,585
A R R Other accounts and provisions 746,119 1,000,068
JERTFRIEE (5 Current tax liabilities 63,050 87,744
PEAEFITEE Deferred tax liabilities 135,254 144,753
B ELEEH Total liabilities 91,339,067 74,572,537
[=C.N EQUITY
(&N Share capital 1,772,988 300,000
it Reserves 7,887,046 7,281,335
AR TRE R MBS R AR GE Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Bank 9,660,034 7,581,335
HINEART R Additional equity instruments 1,937,712 1,937,712
BARYEEH Total equity 11,597,746 9,519,047
R AL Total liabilities and equity 102,936,813 84,091,584

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2019 and signed on behalf of the

Board by:
LYU Yaoming ZHENG Wei
Director Director
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43. BRI ERfEZSE 43, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

e (8 (continued)
(b) REZSEEIE (b) Statement of changes in equity
BRI ASRIT R
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
R
Reserves
%Eiﬁ!g ’ASIZ{E{EZ . .
223 L i EERE BAEEE e Wt BMEATE  EANE
Premises Additional
Share revaluation Fair value Regulatorg Translation Retained equity Total
capital reserve’ reserve reserve reserve’ earnings Total _instruments equity
BETIL  BETIT E¥TIT BT ABETR BETT EETET AT EETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
#2018 421 H 1 H~ At1 January 2018, as
FHIFIR previously reported 300,000 1,104,169 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,916,657 7,581,335 1,937,712 9,519,047
JiE 7 5 5 75 3 5 & Adjustment on initial
HI[Es O Befyase* application of
HKFRS 9* - - 15,760 - - (4,548) 11,212 - 11,212
22018 421 F 1 HZ At 1 January 2018, as
Ecgd] restated 300,000 1,104,169 (69,125) 325,391 20,003 5,912,109 7,592,547 1,937,712 9,530,259
FEREF Profit for the year - - - - - 1,044,220 1,044,220 - 1,044,220
HAth s - Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - 99,660 - - - - 99,660 - 99,660
PLAEE S {EEF A Equity instruments
Hir U 2s > at fair value
HeffiEza TE through other
- comprehensive
income - - (2,466) - - - (2,466) - (2,466)
LA E{E (b5 A Debtinstruments
Hofth 2 H U2 > at fair value
EBTE through other
- comprehensive
income - - (147,171) - - - (147,171) - (147171)
Currency translation
difference - - 412 - (72,307) - (71,895) - (71,895)
Total comprehensive
income - 99,660 (149,225) - (72,307) 1,044,220 922,348 - 922,348
AT A Issuance of ordinary
shares 1,472,988 - - - - - 1,472,988 - 1,472,988
S B A RF Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 88,986 - (88,986) - - -
JrE | SJHESNE A Dividends /
TEHHEME Distribution to the
holders of the
additional equity
instruments - - - - - (327,849) (327,849) - (327,849)

J/>2018 412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 1,772,988 1,203,829 (218,350) 414,377 (52,304) 6,539,494 9,660,034 1,937,712 11,597,746
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43. BRI fEZSE 43, Statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity

e (8 (continued)
(b) HESEEHER (H) (b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)
BRI AR THEER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
(et
Reserves
B%’Ei{% Q&qﬁ{gﬁ% s .
fatf#s G EEEE T REE S aemm WE MEINEATH  HANE
[2ZN
Premises ) ) Additional
Share revaluatloq Fair valug Regulato Translatlorz Retained equity Total
capital reserve Reserve reserve reserve earnings Total _instruments equity
BRTIT AT BRI BRTT BETOT BT WO AR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
22017 21 [ 1 HZ At1 January 2017, as
FHIFIE previously reported 300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,187,743 6,714,597 - 6,714,597
17 B FI| HA ) 45 83 19 Adjustment to opening
e balance of retained
earnings - - - - - (46,273) (46,273) - (46,273)
#2017 421 5 1 HZ At 1 January 2017, as
Ezedl] restated 300,000 1,111,012 (43,475) 230,023 (70,706) 5,141,470 6,668,324 - 6,668,324
A Profit for the year - - - - - 870,555 870,555 - 870,555
HAth LS Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - (6,843) - - - - (6,843) - (6,843)
] B Available-for-sale
securities - - (39,668) - - - (39,668) - (39,668)
B R Currency translation
difference - - (1,742) - 90,709 - 88,967 - 88,967
Eliene] Total comprehensive
income - (6,843) (41,410) - 90,709 870,555 913,011 - 913,011
BATEINEART R Issue of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - - 1,937,712 1,937,712
L s el Transfer to retained
earnings - - - 95,368 - (95,368)
43S Dividend - - - - - -
#2017 5212 H 31 1 At 31 December 2017 300,000 1,104,169 (84,885) 325,391 20,003 5,916,657 7,581,335 1,937,712 9,519,047

1. FBEEMGGEEI R R 1. Premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the

EIRIBEGREE Y 7 E accounting policies adopted for the revaluation of investment properties and premises.
FrR FHEVEETECE -

2. AVPEERHEBEEREUA 2. Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of fair value
B LR A AM 2 U through other comprehensive income (2017:available-for-sale) securities held until the
(2017: it HE S H 25 securities are derecognised.

FHPEL I RERRNY HET A F(E
B SEEh 54 -

3. FREEEAEGEIERE 39 5t 3. In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for
/S EB TSRS EAE 9 5% general banking risks, including future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition
HEFIREUREEFIL - to the loan impairment allowances recognised under Hong Kong Accounting Standard
&8 HER I S H TR (“HKAS”) 39/ Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9.

2 BB R TR SRAT — MR
b~ (BREARRELERIE
NN
4. PREGEFSNTEL K R R 4. Translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the

BINEHT R TR A S S accounting policies adopted for foreign currency translation.
546 & 218 H @AM B H#E 24  The notes on pages 46 to 218 are an integral part of these financial statements.
BBy

S
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44, KT HENE 44. Subsidiaries of the Bank

#2018 42 12 H 31 HASR The particulars of direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2018 are

TEBREE ATy asfolows:
BRI IRA T -
B FEME CESEMER R HH] B TREA R TEEER
Place and date of Issued Interest
Name incorporation/operation share capital held Principal activities
ERIEAT (REA) ARAE B Lo pilian) 100% PRERARFS R AL B
19814E11 H3H 100,000 7t
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited 3 November 1981 HK$100,000 investment holding
WEEFARAT i fyilicalol 100% PR e R A
19615E12H11H 2,800,000 #7C HE
Seng Sun Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding and
Company, Limited 11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000 leasing of properties
to group companies
flOEARRAE & Syilicalol 100%* £ g epiiing
200145H4H 2 #r
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Investment holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
EREEERARAE A EEpiilidn) 100% ke Juis=UliE
2017 £ 3 13 H 1,000,000 7T
Chiyu International Capital Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Corporate finance
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$1,000,000 advisory
EREEEEARAT HiE Lepiilian) 100% HEEHER
2017 £ 3 513 H 6,800,000 7T
Chiyu Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Asset management
Limited 13 March 2017 HK$6,800,000
i feilian) 100%* ESEEUE S
2018 £ 3 H 29 H 1 57T
Sun King Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100%* Property holding

CASRTHER ARy

29 March 2018

HK$1

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

45. BB EEPERAE]  45. Immediate and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2018, the immediate holding company of the Bank is Chiyu International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., a Chinese commercial bank incorporated in
the PRC.

2018412 31 H &
T2 HBERAF RER
PR > R N EI R AR
TR » HER AT A E] Ry
[EFIEIEESRTT > A EE—
P o g A B AT B
RITAT AR SRR T

46. HEEREE 46. Comparative figures

T e R E ER LT Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement

ERERENEH R - presentation adopted in the current year.
47. IREREZ A 47. Approval of financial statements

KB 2019 4 3 H
21 AECE S R
i -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 21 March 2019.

-
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1. E8EEE
1.1 MR 3 B 2 55K

s 3 EH Z SR
BT -

AR > Eiai

- i 3 {8 H ek
6 (& H

- i 6 {5 H e
14

- Em

A 3 {6 H Z &K

W LA R A

HE LA L A R
RIS E

AR AR
B

b ARREE S E
FEK

S BRSO E BRI
i EREEAFRES
TH RIS B AP 2
FETHTEAREFHT
HEEHEYIZE -

#2018 412 A 31 H 34
HiEEE 3 A %5
BEg (2017 & - ) -

S

Credit Risk

1.1 Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

2018

2017

L& FERK
SFEo
% of gross
advances to

&H

& P ERK
HEHE L
% of gross
advances to

Bl

Amount customers Amount customers
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:
- six months or less but
over three months 65,729 0.14% 32,012 0.08%
- one year or less but
over six months 30,438 0.06% 325 0.00%
- over one year 52,697 0.11% 44,952 0.11%
Advances overdue for over
three months 148,864 0.31% 77,289 0.18%
Specific provisions made in
respect of such advances 189,268 20,014
2018 2017
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 101,192 108,507
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 70,103 72,524
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 78,761 4,765

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three

months (2017: Nil).
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(continued)
1. E5EE (&) 1.  Credit Risk (continued)
1.2 KEHER 1.2 Rescheduled advances
2018 2017
fLr-=y= ¢ =g =5=¢/¢
S| Bt & AEEEE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEHAEFEEFHE Rescheduled advances
(CHIREER T to customers net of
Hﬂﬁ}ﬁ 3 1)% Zg?}( | amounts included in
;ﬁ P K “Advances overdue
= for more than three
months” 96,953 0.20% 107,972 0.25%
EMHEFH TR ERA Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
R 7oy FF I R e X e renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
WA R & T [E = inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
ENEREYGTEZ® advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
e BETEFTGTEIR repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three months”.
& e AH RNy
W 3{E A AVEIEE"
AR 3 (EA &R
7 e
1.3 Igo&EE 1.3 Repossessed assets
AREHEN 2018 £ 12 H There were HK$157,770,000 repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
31 HFFAUIEIEZE R December 2018 (2017: Nil). The repossessed assets represent properties in respect
#4 157,770,000 7t:( 2017 of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or
o) o UREIEETEA voluntary actions by the proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the
T 1B 2 18 SR T AU obligations of the borrowers.

BRI (A
BRI E R
AT E T A A )
T R B9 (75 HE 1T
ISR R -
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(continued)
2.  SNEREE 2. Currency Risk
TRYIMNAEEREZ The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
Lo RIEH ELHIME from trading and non-trading and is prepared with reference to the completion
B TN R G instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.
SRR ASNERE I
2 &E RHmEAE RS
NIIECEES
2018
AT TEE

Equivalent in thousand of HK$
ET BXIT Hit BT HFERT ARW HftyMg SRR

New Others Total

us Euro Japanese Australian Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars Dollars Renminbicurrencies currencies

HE&E Spot assets 32,457,407 732,951 91,164 914071 310,418 14,201,504 354,765 49,062,280

HEaf Spot liabilities (22,683,073)  (371,915)  (103,816)  (892,329)  (309,073) (15,817,853)  (343,083) (40,521,142)
N

EHIE A Forward purchases 1,338,671 19,293 364,630 22,293 2,389 2,598,631 51,003 4,396,910

e Forward sales (10,750,983)  (369,051)  (377,368)  (43,188) (2,499) (1,040,463)  (61,726) (12,645,278)

./ (Rl #5540 Net long/(short)
position 362,022 11,278 (25,390) 847 1,235 (58,181) 959 292,770
2017
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

FETT BT Ht EIT FERETT ANRH  HAthsheg  HMesaEE

New Others Total

us Euro Japanese Australian Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

HEEE Spot assets 24,534,774 329,468 95809 763541 153719 10,672,154 305980 36,855445

HEaf Spot liabilities (20,930,056)  (305,713) (108,052)  (965,005)  (340,842) (11,156,208)  (308,089) (34,113,965)
N

HEHAE A Forward purchases 1,338,717 54,244 352,872 250,185 193,353 1,211,121 69,160 3,469,652

HEHAE Forward sales (4,618,621)  (78,810)  (340,529)  (47,349) (5,868)  (750,245)  (66,766) (5,908,188)

£/ (5 B8 Net long/(short)
position 324,814 @11) 100 1,372 362 (23,178) 285 302,944
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(continued)

3. Liquidity coverage ratio

2018 2017
Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
- First quarter 152.06% 181.56%
- Second quarter 186.29% 177.51%
- Third quarter 250.75% 156.97%
- Fourth quarter 244.69% 143.03%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of
the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches in 2017 and from January to
September 2018 of the Bank specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ( “HKMA” ) for
its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which
comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches and subsidiaries from October to
December 2018 of the Bank specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in
accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules. Hence, the comparative information is not
directly comparable.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under section
“Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.
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4. REFEFHELE 4. Net stable funding ratio

2018
TEEE SRR Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
?Eé@éﬁ@
- BFE - First quarter 121.23%
- BEOEE - Second quarter 124.96%
- BT - Third quarter 134.05%
- FBIUFE - Fourth quarter 140.22%
B e B4 LRI T A4S The quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
HEENEEEEES T methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
BB RS IR T A R
fERETH -
2018 4F PR FREmE The net stable funding ratio is computed on the unconsolidated basis which comprises
EE 4R TS GRET the positions of local offices and overseas branches in the first half of 2018 and

-y - consolidated basis which comprises the positions of local offices, overseas branches

%igfﬁg;ﬁgi;i;ig and subsidiaries in the second half of 2018 of the Bank specified by the HKMA for its
» < regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules. Hence, the

1T Z AR HR R KON TE comparative information is not directly comparable.

Jﬁﬂ@éf#ﬁ'&’ﬁ%&mﬁﬁﬁﬁZZ&

MR ~ I T RIS

EIEEEERE S=p-20 e AN

Ift HEEE B R e E PR

e
HRABEE 4 P RILFEN The additional information of net stable funding ratio disclosures is available under
MRESHRAETEE section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

www.chiyubank.com 1 I BZ45

#eEE , —HTRIEE -
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5 RAEHE 5.
5.1 BEAHHER

Capital management

5.1 Basis of regulatory combination

2017 FEAVETERUE & OFE
BEJOIREE CERATSE (A0
AT Kt eBRmEE
HUE SR ASRIT Z A
WERE SO NMITHARK -
2018 VBT ERUELR G5
BEJIREE CHRATSE (A0
A Reds a8 R E
HUE BOR B ASRIT Z A
WL ~ BINT RAEE
Al

EG T H > HlfE R
I R AR SR A T
J@ AT HA B
44 -

BIEE GG S
B > A B B AR E
EHFERENRITEAEZ
FEET

The combined basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank’s local offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA for its
regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules in 2017.
The consolidated basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the
Bank’s local offices, overseas branches and designated subsidiaries specified by
the HKMA for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking

(Capital) Rules in 2018.

For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with

HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in Note 44.

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of combination are as

follows:

2018 2017
B BEARGH BN N
R Name Total assets Total equity Total assets  Total equity
AT T BT BETT BHTT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
ERFITREAN)ER/AE  Chiyu Banking Corporation FiEA N
(Nominees) Limited Not applicable Not applicable 831 831
BEEFEARAFE Seng Sun Development AEA B
Company, Limited Not applicable Not applicable 43,657 43,308
OEAIRATE Grace Charter Limited | PN
Not applicable Not applicable - (10,983)
Sun King Limited R i
Not applicable Not applicable - -
ERBFEEARBRAE Chiyu International Capital
Limited 60,996 47,424 23,528 19,812
EREEEHEARAT Chiyu Asset Management
Limited 6,803 5,347 6,800 6,141

UR G INCIEE =2
Wy T AR - AR
2 BT -

2018412 A 31 H >
A AL TR B 2 B L LA
FEREE BUE A HFtE - M
FEFEIE G ERISR S 5
[ (2017 £ : 46k) -

LLE g =0y L
BT 44 -

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Additional
information — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
combination but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in Note 44.

-
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(continued)
5. EAEH (#) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 ERIEE 5.2 Capital ratio
2018 2017
T F R — 4 E AR CET1 capital ratio 15.30% 13.44%
—WE AR Tier 1 capital ratio 19.13% 17.84%

U AR EER Total capital ratio 20.99% 19.78%
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5 RAEH (5 5.
5.2 WALLZ ()

Capital management (continued)

5.2 Capital ratio (continued)

ARSI R FEARER The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
HIRIR A & FE AR I capital ratios is analysed as follows:
Fram s -
2018 2017
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
LB RE— A A - TR CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
B feE
EHEETEEREGERE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
fE 4 A instruments 1,772,988 300,000
PR A Retained earnings 6,479,035 5,916,657
ELERA (S Disclosed reserves 1,368,455 1,364,678
BT > BT i s CET1 capital before regulatory
—4REAR deductions 9,620,478 7,581,335
HERE—REA R CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
FRG
AL Valuation adjustments (11,493) (6,390)
(eI SRR N =t )] Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax
IEIER AT liabilities (12,298) (19,911)
AN HEEGESESE Gains and losses due to changes in own
IR A B 1 {2 5 i i 52 credit risk on fair valued liabilities
BT AR LIRS (1,527) (1,302)
R AHr 5 dE=Y) (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from
RS S S Tl the revaluation of land and buildings
18R i 7 A ) B (own-use and investment properties)
AN TPEES (1,422,114) (1,308,504)
— AR T I Regulatory reserve for general banking
ek risks (414,377) (325,391)
S LR — A A A S Total regulatory deductions to
IR CET1 capital (1,861,809) (1,661,498)
IR —E AR CET1 capital 7,758,669 5,919,837
REIN— 4B AT1 capital 1,937,712 1,937,712
—IREA Tier 1 capital 9,696,381 7,857,549
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(continued)
5. EXREHE (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 EARLEE (&) 5.2 Capital ratio (continued)
2018 2017
AT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
THER BB RCERE Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEE A REARH Collective impairment allowances and
R TR R — RS regulatory reserve for general banking
SRATIR A risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
el capital 306,970 263,415
BRI AR &R Tier 2 capital before regulatory
deductions 306,970 263,415
THEAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
mE&E&ERET A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains
AR Ry s arising from the revaluation of land
1 (EFERIEESR) and buildings (own-use and
YN, N investment properties) eligible for
ﬁ{?{%{%%{ﬁﬁﬁéﬁt inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HY R A PR ENE 639,951 588,827
B OMEARANEE Total regulatory deductions to
R S Tier 2 capital 639,951 588,827
THRER Tier 2 capital 946,921 852,242

H-FN Total capital 10,643,302 8,709,791
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(continued)
5. BAEH (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.2 EARLEE (&) 5.2 Capital ratio (continued)

EETEALLRTT T The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

2018 2017
frzEsEErE A= Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.875% 1.250%
S R S TEAE I EE Higher loss absorbency ratio - -
Wi R HASR ETE AR Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 1.448% 0.993%
2018 12 H 31 H- & As at 31 December 2018, the applicable jurisdictional CCyB ("JCCyB") ratio in
BB REEEBARN Hong Kong was 1.875% as set by the HKMA. The ratio increased from  1.250%
H k& W & CCyB to 1.875% on 1 January 2018. For the rest of the jurisdictions in which the
(FJCCyB | ) tE&E & Bank had private sector credit exposures, the applicable JCCyB
1.875%-1> 2018 =1 H 1 ratios were 0%.
H » F# JCCyB thZMH
1.250%# 1% 1.875% -
AATRLN (S F U 2
TN E e EAE
YA H] JCCYB LE# fy 0%
BHEAT BT ER The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section
I/ NI 3 - A= “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

www.chiyubank.com
VETEDEE | —HREE -
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(continued)
5. RBAEH (&) 5. Capital management (continued)
5.3 fEMRER 5.3 Leverage ratio
TEARLER M T - The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2018 2017
AT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B 6= ¥%N Tier 1 capital 9,696,381 7,857,549
TEFREE R R R Leverage ratio exposure 105,325,379 84,911,456
FEAREE= Leverage ratio 9.21% 9.25%
B RIERRLL R B The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
TER AN AR T EH “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.chiyubank.com.

www.chiyubank.com

METERE  HEEE
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6.

w

BIFR(RE

DU 73 #1752 BE A o BB
RITHRYGT < BB R
BSR4 - [P
FEFZ UG 5 T T A S T
A BRI 1% LIS 5 3 T
Z A K R R HE A St 5
i HRAEFIERE A B2

S BRI B A 2 S
T (PR IO AP
B S TR E R [E] > Al
JE\ B RS B HE DR Z T
FEHY 5 R AR T 2R
T HE R e =%
PR T L B TRTENR? -

5 8 {1 1) [ % L B
H UG R i i & 5B
PRETRELEEE 10%=0l B2
AT ¢

(continued)

6. International claims

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is
located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office is
located.

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

2018
FEHUTRNEE
Non-bank private sector
FEHUT Fes
ST BTt SRR AN
Non-bank

Official financial Non-financial

Banks sector institutions private sector
BETE BT BET BT EHET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
o [5] AT HE, Mainland of China 21,282,000 348,000 769,000 6,409,000 28,808,000
T Hong Kong 840,000 - 1,644,000 14,772,000 17,256,000

2017
FESRATRLA RS
Non-bank private sector
FEIRTT FE<ERl
$RAT BT ERbTERE LN
Non-bank

Official financial Non-financial
Banks sector Institutions  private sector Total
BT BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
o [B7] AT b Mainland of China 9,777,000 86,000 984,000 4,311,000 15,158,000
T Hong Kong 1,209,000 - 833,000 11,542,000 13,584,000
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(continued)

JESRTHIAMEREZIE 7. Non-bank Mainland exposures

HIERIT RS H THIA
el v s e VA E
RAMAERZ2ER
AR AR TS R TSI A
TR ) R B b e 51 4
B - LR AT
st BRI

FPOREUR ~ REUREA R
i - HIfE AT AR
2

MR ~ 5B RA R
i - HIfB AT REE
2

BRI E R B A 5
PIEEHIHRS « HATE A
HREERE

A EFEAE AU —TH Y
JiF P EL At A A

TELFELE A —IEH T
JF R A

h BRI NE R B N
IR > FHRENE
B8

St 2 T T o
W Ry ESRT TIPS
HRIE

HET

TR 1 Y A 4EER

B A AR E R
GG IR

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank only.

2018

HEAHE HEAE

SR RAH RIM
e FREE  RREE  RREE

ltems in On-balance Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
HEWTIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Central government, central

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 8,573,727 30,368 8,604,095
Local governments, local

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 5,621,339 774,532 6,395,871
PRC nationals residing in Mainland

or other entities incorporated in

Mainland and their subsidiaries and

joint ventures 3 9,147,661 721,633 9,869,294
Other entities of central government

not reported in item 1 above 4 345,922 22,100 368,022
Other entities of local governments not

reported in item 2 above 5 187,720 - 187,720

PRC nationals residing outside

Mainland or entities incorporated

outside Mainland where the credit is

granted for use in Mainland 6 9,714,819 822,205 10,537,024
Other counterparties where the

exposures are considered to be

non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,028,808 - 1,028,808
Total 8 34,619,996 2,370,838 36,990,834
Total assets after provision 9 102,916,742

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 10 33.64 %
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7. JHRTHNHERERE 7.

Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

(&)
2017
HEAMR EEAE
LAE FAM FAINT
HWEIEH JoE A JEBRARE  AEE R
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AETIT AERETIT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FLEURF ~ SRR EEFEAY Central government, central
i - HifE AT NEE government-owned entities and their
13 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 4,550,578 1,855 4,552,433
HOFEU ~ # 5 EURFFARY  Local governments, local
g~ HitB AT REE government-owned entities and their
e subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 4,057,713 706,241 4,763,954
FE AN R EHAFEE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
NEEHIM A ~ EbT RS A or other entities incorporated in
HREERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 7,386,894 529,247 7,916,141
FEFELE FitsE—IEh g Other entities of central government
JF B E At i not reported in item 1 above 4 414,527 3,468 417,995
REFEAE FilsE 35 58 Other entities of local governments not
I A LA iR reported in item 2 above 5 i} ) )
g NE R FEEME - PRC nationals residing outside
MR - EAREN Mainland or entities incorporated
(B35 outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 3,331,521 77,787 3,409,308
Hp Az ¥ FmEE&IE  Other counterparties where the
R B ESRT T Py bl exposures are considered to be
HYE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 490,126 - 490,126
HEGT Total 8 20,231,359 1,318,598 21,549,957
IR E S0V E ELE Total assets after provision 9 84,092,574
BEABEENWEEEE On-balance sheet exposures as
IEEEYEHE I percentage of total assets 10 24.06%
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Senior Management

Executive Director
Lyu Yaoming

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Zheng Wei

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Chan Yiu Fai

Deputy Chief Executive
Fung Chi Lap Pierre

Chief Risk Officer
Ye Xin

Chief Financial Officer

Wong Siu Man
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THTHER

Branch Network

DTN
BRANCH (Br.)

EHE

HONG KONG ISLAND

ST
Central Br.

dbfas T
North Point Br.

BT
Wanchai Br.

ST
Sheung Wan Br.

PEE ST
Western Br.

ORI T
Quarry Bay Br.

BEFIT
Aberdeen Br.

JuRE
KOWLOON

AL TT
Hung Hom Br.

BB
Kwun Tong Br.

HIK T
Sham Shui Po Br.

W T
San Po Kong Br.

SHREHE ST
Yau Ma Tei Br.

HLES T

Castle Peak Road Br.

TR

Kowloon Bay Br.

BT
Tokwawan Br.

BELT
Tsz Wan Shan Br.

Hrhk
ADDRESS

IR R E T 78 5
No. 78 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, H.K.

A5 28 390-394 it T
G/F, No. 390-394 King's Road, North Point, H.K.

S FREFTE 323-331 5~ C A1 D &
Shop C & D, G/F, No. 323-331 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, H.K.

s RERE AP 315-319 5T 3 5kdl
Shop 3, G/F, No. 315-319 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, H.K.

AT S GEVY 443-445 ST 13 SR

Shop 13, G/F, No. 443-445 Queen's Road West, Western District, H.K.

BRI EE 967-967A JEIt T
G/F, No. 967-967A King's Road, Quarry Bay, H.K.

EATABFRE 138-140 5L~
G/F, No. 138-140 Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, H.K.

JUBEAT R T p s 23-25 ST
G/F, No. 23-25 Gillies Avenue South, Hung Hom, Kin.

JUFEEIEE 398-402 St N A Bl
Unit A, G/F, No. 398-402 Kwun Tong Road, Kin.

JUHEATKIS T i 235-237 ST
GIF, No. 235-237 Laichikok Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

FJURE R R FE 981 61-63 SRt T
G/F, No. 61-63 Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kin.

JURERIRA EORE 117-119 SN
G/F, No. 117-119 Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kin.

TUHEZKISE 1178 226-228 51T
G/F, No. 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Sham Shui Po, Kin.

JURET RS IR T 10 Jz 10A S8

Shop 10 & 10A, G/F, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kin.

JUHETJIVE S 78-80W 5~ 11-13 554
Shop 11-13, G/F, No. 78-80W To Kwa Wan Road, Kin.

FUHEREE L0, 7 1% TO3A 5%
Shop 703A, 7/F, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, Kin.

EERE
TELEPHONE

(852) 3556 9730

(852) 3556 9731

(852) 3556 9734

(852) 3556 9737

(852) 3556 9739

(852) 2811 3131

(852) 3556 9753

(852) 3556 9732

(852) 3556 9733

(852) 3556 9735

(852) 3556 9736

(852) 3556 9738

(852) 3556 9740

(852) 3556 9741

(852) 3556 9742

(852) 3556 9751

-
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Branch Network (continued)

PARREZY ] ik B
BRANCH (Br.) ADDRESS TELEPHONE
5
NEW TERRITORIES
HFI1T HrSF 2 E T HAND.S N I 11 N-125
Tuen Mun Br. Shop N-125, Level 1, Zone N, H.A.N.D.S, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun, N.T. (852) 3988 9508
ZEEE T H SRS S B R 1 SREE
Kwai Hing Estate Br. Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T. (852) 3556 9745
RIS T FSOR AR 22 I 112-114 58
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br. Shop 112-114, G/F, On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T. (852) 3556 9746
A CE 1T RS EREE =T 5A SR
Belvedere Garden Br. Shop 5A, G/F, Belvedere Square, Belvedere Garden Phase 3, Tsuen Wan,  (852) 3556 9747
N.T.

ES A Wit DI E 131-135 G R
Tsuen Wan Br. G/F, No. 131-135 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T. (852) 3988 9518
YRS T 5D R SUTEA RS 1 4 F7 5k
Shatin Sui Wo Court Br. Shop F7, 1/F, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T. (852) 3556 9749
LT R CEfCE SRS 3 1 313 Sk
Ma On Shan Br. Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, Bayshore Towers, Ma On Shan, N.T. (852) 3556 9750
AT SRR LU S e P 2 1 238 i
Sheung Tak Estate Br. Shop 238, 2/F, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Estate, (852) 3556 9752

Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

s RS,

MAINLAND OF CHINA

[&EF531T TEERAEM T EAR 861 5t 1% 111-113 BT

Xiamen Br. Unit 111-113, 1/F, No. 861 Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China (86-592) 585 7690

EEAT EEEAEM T EERSEILE 68-71 57

Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br. No. 68-71 Lehai Bei Li, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China (86-592) 619 3300

ST R e P R S R S 170 5% O 57A% 17 g 1702E K 1703A =

Guanyinshan Sub-Br. Unit 1702E & 1703A, No. 9 Building, No. 170 Tapu East Road, Siming District, (86-592) 599 0520
Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

&N TT R RN T FLPURS 210 SREIMERE 1 1

Fuzhou Br. 1/F, International Building, No. 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, (86-591) 8781 0078
China

FYNAT HREZRYIT s i 6003 sfsErg s A B8 1 Jg 01 Bt

Shenzhen Br. Unit 1, Level 1, Block A, Rongchao Business Center, No. 6003 Yitian Road, (86-755) 3690 8888

Futian District, Shenzhen, China
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